* For identification purpose only {£ 3% 51|

FUTURE BRIGHT

HOLDINGS LIMITED £R&EHRARE"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBEFETMRILZERAT)
(Stock code BRR X8R : 7083)




CONIENTS
E ﬁgﬂz 2 Financial Highlights

MBEHE
3 Important Dates
EZAH
4  Corporate Information
NRIAH
6 Chairman’s Statement
FE®RE
15 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE g RERWRSE
66 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIR Eama R AT
100 Profile of Directors
£5-%
102 Profile of Senior Management
SREBAE—E

103 Directors’ Report

EEemE

112 Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B

119 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
et ElER

120 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBI K

122 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e REZE MK

123 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meBHenER

125 Notes to the Financial Statements
TSR I 5

246 Financial Summary
MEHE

247 Group’s Properties
rEEME

249 List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores
BE/EXREGEN/EH—8

261 List of Food Souvenir Shops/Kiosks
BRmFEE/HE=T—8

263 Definitions
Ex



Financial Highlights
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Gross operating profit
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Loss attributable to
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Special final dividend per share

e
EF
REEER

(BEBITDA) /EBITDA

RATHE AEEER

EREEEBRTHR

BRERER

SR RIRIE

Total assets

Net assets

Net assets per share
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Total assets/total liabilities ratio
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEFE

2019
—E-NEF
HK$°000
TR
1,142,308
797,013

123,954

(134,272)

(376,838)

(360,031)

HK(54.28) cents
(54.28)7& 4L

2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FEx
1,737,395

641,727

HK$0.924
0.924% T

130.0%

1.59

2018 Change
—T-N\F &
HK$’000 %
TFET Aatl
1,133,308 +0.8%
793,172 +0.5%
146,818 -15.6%
17,861 N/A
T EA
(60,125) +526.8%
(565,144) +552.9%
HK(8.66) cents +526.8%
(8.66) Ll
HK1.0 cent -100%
1.0/l
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 Change
—T-N\F -
HK$’000 %
FH&T At
1,800,387 -3.5%
981,501 -34.6%
HK$1.414 -34.6%
1.414% 7T
74.8% +55.2%
2.20 -27.7%



Important Dates
BEEHH

Board meeting approving 2019 annual results 27 March 2020
ME_ZT-NFrFEXECEETEER —ZETF=HA-++H
Closure of shareholder register for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ eligibility to 20-25 May 2020
attend and vote at the 2020 AGM (both days inclusive)
TiEmERMHBFRERL  MEERREFE_Z_ZTFRREBFAGINEG LREZER —ECEFRAATHE
—thR(BREEEMA)

Record date of the 2020 AGM 25 May 2020
—E_TFERFBERG 28 EH —E-EFRA-+EHH
Date of the 2020 AGM 25 May 2020
—ETFRRAFRGETAY ZEZEFRAZTEH
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders the annual
report of the Group for the Year.

The trade and technology disputes between US and China and the civil
unrest in Hong Kong in the Year have slowed down the economy of
Hong Kong, and to some extent, to the tourist industry of Macau, the
effect of which has made the operating environment of the Group tough
and competitive. This has resulted in a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of some HK$376.8 million in the Year, mainly due to (i) the loss
attributable to owners of the Group’s food souvenir business of some
HK$18.1 million; (i) a net fair value loss of some HK$20.2 million derived
from its Key Investment Property (as further described below); (i) a net
loss of some HK$140.6 million (comprising of disposal loss in value of
some HK$98.5 million and an exchange loss of some HK$42.1 million,
together called “HQ Disposal Loss”) derived from the disposal of its
development property project on Hengqin Island (“Henggin Land”); (iv) the
loss from written off/impairment loss of property, plant and equipment of
some HK$62.1 million including the loss from the closure of the Group’s
food court-Foodium at West Kowloon Station and its restaurants in
Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Hong Kong and Taiwan; and (v) impairment loss
of right-of-use assets of food and catering business of some HK$59.3
million.

The Group has recorded for the Year:

(i) increases of some 0.8% in turnover, of some 1.5% in cost of sales
(food costs), of some 4.1% in direct operating expenses, of some
2.8% in administrative expenses, and of some 217.6% in finance
costs, as compared to that of the year of 2018;

(ii) a drop of some 15.6% in gross operating profit as compared to
that of the year of 2018;
(iif) a loss attributable to owners of some HK$376.8 million as

compared to a loss attributable to owners of some HK$60.1
million for the year of 2018;
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Chairman’s Statement =E#RE

(iv) a stable gross margin ratio of some 69.8% with a negative
EBITDA at some HK$134.3 million as against a gross margin ratio
of some 70.0% with an EBITDA at some HK$17.9 million in the
year of 2018;

(v) the Net Ordinary Operating Loss of HK$360.0 million, as against a
Net Ordinary Operating Loss of some HK$55.1 million for the year
of 2018; and

(vi) an increase of 2.4% in the same store performance of its
restaurants and industrial catering business, and an increase
of 36.2% in the same store performance of its food souvenir
business, as compared to the year of 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Key Investment Property (which comprises
of the whole of the ground floor to third floor and basement level 1 to 3
of the 6-storey commercial building at Centro Commercial E Turistico
“S. Paulo”, Largo) has been valued by an independent professional
valuer at some HK$560.0 million (31 December 2018: HK$505.0 million).
The Group has recorded the HQ Disposal Loss in the third and fourth
quarters of 2019 and a net fair value loss of some HK$20.2 million
(being a gross fair value loss of HK$23.0 million) in respect of the Key
Investment Property.

In respect of the exchange differences on translating foreign operations
which mainly relate to the Group’s subsidiary companies in Mainland
China, the Group has recorded an overall other comprehensive income
of some HK$35.1 million for the Year, as compared to an overall other
comprehensive loss of some HK$20.2 million for the year of 2018. Details
of financial analysis and breakdown of the Group’s performance in the
Year are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 66 to 99 of this annual report.
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#RE

HKFRS 16 “Right-of-use asset”, which superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations, has since 1 January 2019 introduced a single
lessee accounting model and required a lessee to recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognize
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

This accounting treatment under HKFRS 16 has considerable impact on
the Group’s balance sheet and on the disclosure requirements for the
Group under the Listing Rules, as evidenced in the recent proposals for
entering into of new tenancies where the proposed entering into these
tenancies of more than 12 months may be regarded as disclosable
transactions under the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group has recognized on its balance sheet a total right-of-use assets
of HK$303.3 million, and a total lease liabilities of HK$385.2 million, in
which lease liabilities payable within one year were HK$127.0 million that
were recognized as current liabilities with considerable adverse impact on
the Group’s net current asset level. In the Year, the Group has recorded
impairment loss of right-of-use assets of food and catering business
and food souvenir business of some HK$59.3 million and HK$9.3 million
respectively. Impact of this accounting treatment under HKFRS 16 is also
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 66 to 99 of this annual report.

The Net Ordinary Operating Loss for the Year was HK$360.0 million, as
against the Net Ordinary Operating Loss of some HK$55.1 million for the
year of 2018. Details of financial analysis and breakdown of the Group’s
performance are set out in the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” below.
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Chairman’s Statement =E#RE

It has always been the policy of the Company to maintain a healthy
dividend payout policy, hopefully at a payout ratio of not less than 30%
of our Group’s annual Net Ordinary Operating Profit. In view of the
Net Ordinary Operating Loss for the Year and the considerable loss of
revenue in the first quarter of 2020 from the temporary closure of many
restaurants of the Group due to the dire operating environment under
Covid-19 infection, the Directors do not propose to declare and pay out
any dividend for the Year in order to keep sufficient cash flow to brave
the current storm of uncertain duration in those cities in which the Group is
operating.

FOOD AND CATERING BUSINESS REVIEW

Restaurant Chain (self-owned and under franchise)

The Group has been subject to tough and challenging operating
environment recording losses due to the US and China trade and
technology disputes and the civil unrest in Hong Kong in the Year, during
which the Group’s restaurant chain business has recorded a loss before
non-controlling interests of some HK$22.5 million in the first half of the
Year and a loss before non-controlling interests of some HK$156.3
million in the second half of the Year. In the Year, the Group’s food and
catering business in Macau has underperformed against the improved
level of visitor flow to Macau, and has underperformed against the slight
drop in Macau Gross Gaming Revenue, where a total of 39.4 million
visitors to Macau have been recorded with an increase of 10.06% and
the Macau Gross Gaming Revenue has dropped slightly by 3.5%, as
compared to the year of 2018.

The results of the Group by geographical segments for the Year have
been at a loss of some HK$16.0 million in Macau, a loss of some
HK$188.1 million in Mainland China, a loss of some HK$127.8 million in
Hong Kong and a loss of some HK$44.9 million in Taiwan. The Group
has recorded an overall increase of some 4.9% same store growth in
the Year, and the Group has expanded its restaurant and food court
operations in Hong Kong reaching a total turnover of some HK$950.1
million with a turnover decrease of some 1.5%, as compared to that of
the year of 2018. The Group’s Japanese restaurants have recorded a
total turnover of some HK$286.9 million with a drop of some 9.6% in its
turnover in the Year, as against its turnover of some HK$317.3 million for
the year of 2018. And the Group’s franchise restaurants have in the Year
reached a total turnover of some HK$221.4 million with a drop of some
8.9% in its turnover, as compared to some HK$243.0 million for the year
of 2018. Management has also, after its expiry in April 2019, partially
renewed its franchise—“Pacific Coffee” for its remaining four coffee shops
in Macau where their tenancies are still ongoing. Detailed breakdown of
the performance of the Group’s different restaurants during the Year is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 66 to 99 of this annual report.
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#RE

FOOD AND CATERING BUSINESS REVIEW - continued
Restaurant Chain (self-owned and under franchise) - Continued
During the Year, as a continuous review process of the performance of
its restaurants, the Group has closed down 3 restaurants and 2 coffee
shops in Macau, Foodium food court in West Kowloon Station in Hong
Kong, and 1 restaurant in Mainland China. In the Year, the Group has
also converted its Vergnano restaurant at The Venetian in Macau into a
Bistro Seoul restaurant. And during the Year, the Group has opened the
following restaurants and food court counters:

° Bari-Uma ramen restaurant at Breeze Nan Shan, Taiwan;

° Mad for Garlic restaurant at Breeze Nan Shan, Taiwan;

o Canton Roast at West Kowloon Station, Hong Kong;

° Bari-Uma ramen restaurant at Cocopark, Mainland China;

o 1 food court counter at Hong Kong International Airport; and

° 10 food court counters — Food Playground at K11 Musea, Hong
Kong.

In the year of 2020, management plans to open a food court at a new
hotel complex in Macau, and one Edo Japanese restaurant and another
food court at another new hotel complex in Macau. The management
also plans to convert its 456 Modern Shanghai Cuisine at The Venetian
to Shiki Hot Pot restaurant. Due to its performance being unsatisfactory,
management will by the end of March 2020 completely close down
Canton 12 restaurant in Taipei, one Fu-Un-Maru restaurant in Hong
Kong, and the Azores restaurant and Musashi Japanese restaurant in
Zhuhai. Management plans before the end of first half of 2020 to close
down the Bari-Uma ramen restaurant at Breeze Nan Shan, Taipei,
and two Bari-Uma ramen restaurants, one Bistro Seoul restaurant and
one Mad for Garlic restaurant in Hong Kong. Details of the list of the
restaurants of this business are set out in the section headed “List of
Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores” on pages 249 to 260 of this
annual report.
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Chairman’s Statement =E#RE

FOOD AND CATERING BUSINESS REVIEW - continued
Industrial Catering Business

In the Year, the Group has operated canteens, restaurants and coffee
shops at University of Macau in Hengqin Island, a canteen at International
School of Macau and a canteen at Macau University of Science and
Technology. The Group’s industrial catering business has attained a total
turnover of some HK$40.7 million, being a drop of some 16.4% in the
Year, as compared to some HK$48.7 million for the year of 2018. The
Group has since June 2019 closed down its canteen “Food Paradise”
at University of Macau in Henggin Island. The Group’s central food and
logistic processing centre in Macau has become operational helping to
improve the efficiency of the Group’s industrial catering business as well
as the production efficiency and quality for the Group’s food souvenir
business.

Wholesales of Japanese food and materials Business

The Group’s wholesale business of Japanese food and materials has
improved during the Year with a turnover of some HK$44.7 million,
representing a good growth of some 6.4% as compared to the year of
2018. Management will continue to look for opportunities to expand the
sales channels of this business both locally and in Zhuhai.

FOOD SOUVENIR BUSINESS

The Group’s food souvenir business has continued to improve with a
healthy increase in turnover (in terms of volume and geographical areas)
with slight reduction of its loss in the Year, since the food souvenir
business was still adversely affected by the high rental and staff costs,
with the following results:
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WEMME  BEE5E4A44,700,000%8 7T
BT \FBEEERN6.4% BB BEE
SRBB IR RZEB R A MK 2 HE R
;E °

KRR FERGOE
AEEZRBFEEBRBBENE  EX8
(RBERMETE)RRIEE  MHRRAT
EEBNAZSBHEHSAXRE IRAZ TH
TE ANFEEERERD  EXREWT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018

ZB-hF —E-NEF

HK$’million HK$’ million

BEER BEET

Macau P 86.2 69.7
Mainland China EalEipN 173 10.1 2.7
Hong Kong BB 0.7 4.9
Taiwan =) 3.7 1.1
Total Turnover MR 100.7 78.4

Cost of sales SHE R AR (28.0) (20.2)
Gross margin EF 72.7 58.2

Direct operating expenses BELERX (75.0) (69.4)

Gross operating loss REER (2.3) (11.2)
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#RE

FOOD SOUVENIR BUSINESS - continued

The Group’s central food and logistic processing centre in Macau
has become operational helping to improve the production efficiency
and quality for the Group’s food souvenir business. The Group’s food
souvenir business has in the Year recorded a total turnover of some
HK$100.7 million with a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
some HK$18.1 million (comprising of operation losses of some HK$8.8
million and impairment loss on right-of-use assets of some HK$9.3
million), as against the turnover of some HK$78.4 million with a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of some HK$18.7 million for the
year of 2018. The increase in turnover of the food souvenir business was
mainly due to the increases of turnover from the new Yeng Kee bakery
shop at Macau Airport Terminal and from its distribution sales in Mainland
China. In the Year, management has closed down 3 Yeng Kee shops in
Macau. In the year of 2020, management plans to open a Yeng Kee shop
at Lisboeta Macau, and another Yeng Kee shop at another new hotel
complex in Macau. To improve its sales, management has continued
its policy to expand its sales networks with more stores and kiosks,
more online sales platforms, and exploration to identify more distribution
agents in Mainland China and overseas countries. Details of the financial
analysis of this business are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 66 to 99 of this annual report.

Details of the list of shops and kiosks of this business are set out in the
section headed “List of Food Souvenir Shops/Kiosks” on pages 261 to
262 of this annual report.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has, as previously announced, signed a lease agreement in
July 2019 to lease the entire Key Investment Property to an independent
third party as tenant for a period of 8 years from commencement of the
tenant’s business or end of the rent free period. The tenant has taken
possession of the Key Investment Property, and should start to pay rent
from April 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement =E#RE

PROPERTY INVESTMENT BUSINESS REVIEW - continued
As previously disclosed in October 2019, the Group has sold to an
independent third party, at the cash consideration of RMB300.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$335.7 million), all its equity interest in
and shareholder loans to its wholly own subsidiary in Macau which owns
the Hengqin Land. Completion of such disposal took place in December
2019, giving rise to a gross disposal loss of approximately HK$140.6
million. As stated in its circular to Shareholders of 29 November 2019,
with substantial cash inflow upon completion of such disposal, the Group
intends to use the net sale proceeds of some HK$318.8 million from
such disposal as to HK$150.0 million to repay its bank borrowings, as
to HK$80.0 million to finance opening of new restaurants/shops for its
food and catering business and as to the balance of HK$88.8 million for
its working capital, and it is the current intention of the Group that it shall
continue to focus on its existing markets without any plan to tap on the
food and catering market of Hengqin Island as the economic growth of
Hengqin Island is much slower than expected.

Details of the financial analysis of this business are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

OUTLOOK

With the signing of the first phase trade agreement between US and
China, hopefully the US and China trade relationship may get more
stable and steady, while the technology conflict between US and China
still continues. Although the civil unrest in Hong Kong since June 2019
has shown signs of slow down, the outbreak of Covid-19 infection since
mid-January 2020 in many cities in Mainland China, Macau and Hong
Kong, has critically and adversely affected the retail business in Macau,
Hong Kong and Mainland China and hence, the Group’s business.
With the Group’s temporary close down of most of its restaurants and
shops in Macau, Hong Kong and Mainland China for about two weeks
in February 2020, it would substantially reduce its revenue contribution
in the first quarter of this year although most of the Group’s restaurants,
which have temporarily been closed down in February 2020, are now re-
opened with some at limited business hours. The current dire operating
environment of the Group is unprecedented. It is currently unable to
make any estimation on when Covid-19 infection may be over, and its
negative economic impact on those cities the Group has operations, and
hence on the Group’s business. Management expects that with Covid-19
infection still hitting hard on China, and then recently on US and Europe,
visitors to Hong Kong and Macau will be so adversely affected that the
operating environment of the Group in the first three quarters of 2020
will be very tough, and cost savings measures (including rental reduction
requests to the relevant landlords) have already been taken to brave this
coming storm of the uncertain operating environment of those cities in
which the Group is operating.

MR ERBOE -
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Chairman’s Statement EfE#RE

OUTLOOK - continued

To cope with such challenging circumstances, the Group’s current
business strategy is not to open any new restaurants in the Greater
China area except for those of which the Group has already committed.
Management will also continue to tap on overseas distributors
to distribute its food souvenir products in the overseas markets.
Management takes this opportunity to thank all of the staffs of the Group
for their efforts contributed in keeping the Group moving forward.

CHAN SEE KIT, JOHNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - g RERME

REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

This environmental, social and governance report (“this ESG report”)
covers the Year and addresses all the General Disclosures under each
Aspect of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(“ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. And this ESG
report has been reviewed by the Board to confirm that the information
herein is reliable and accurate in all material aspects.

In preparation of this ESG report, the Group has consulted both the
internal and external stakeholders with a view to identify its related
attributes for active management purpose. The Board has retained
a professional firm to assist in drafting this ESG report, and has also
conducted a cross department review during the drafting process where
particular sustainability-related matters, which are material to the Group,
were identified and results of which are disclosed below.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

A Successful Sustainable Business

Sustainability is always the Group’s strategic priority and business
imperative, and good corporate governance and being socially conscious
are its core values. Hence, the Group has a firm commitment to help its
staff, business, communities and environment to be more sustainable,
socially friendly and accountable.

The Group undertakes regular reviews of environmental, social and
corporate governance aspects of its business, and the Group grows
its business closely with and better for the local communities while
complying fully with all relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to
its business, to adhere to strong compliance and good practices for its
corporate governance, and to follow the guidelines on environmental
protection and social responsibility.

REEARER
ARE - e REFREARME(TARE - HE
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EEARE #H@LERRE  ERNEERE
HETERFEEIN - SRHAKREMEEE
RZEBAIFEERRABME - LN T X
EAHBER -

RIERE

PRIEESE EELE S
AEBE-BEUARKEERESRBEN NER
WRERF MREFGRER  MEAGLSHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Emissions (A1)

ESG Management

The Group has a proper management which is well structured to fulfil
its strategy to support and serve the society and the environment with
properly sustainable development.

The Board has directors of a balance of skill and experience with division
of responsibilities where the Chairman takes on the responsibility
for formulation and approval of the Group’s development, business
strategies, policies, annual budget and business plans, while the
Managing Director and his senior management team members undertake
the day-to-day management including the effective implementation of all
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board on operations, financial,
environmental protection and social obligations.

The Group’s management structure on the environmental protection and
social obligations includes:

16

Its operation head office in Macau where the Chairman, the
Managing Director together with its senior management team
members are based, is responsible for the overall management
and supervision of all the shops, restaurants, central kitchen
and logistic centre. They undertake regular reviews on all the
environmental and social issues and obligations, and ensure the
Group’s policies and procedures are fully complied with.

The Group has its own “Food Safety Department” to monitor the
overall food safety and hygiene of all its operations. And at the
restaurant and retail outlet levels, each particular food cuisine
has a cuisine manager/brand operation manager to supervise
the relevant restaurants and retail outlets, and each restaurant/
retail outlet is in turn headed by a shop manager who oversees
its daily operation. The staff of each restaurant is divided into
two divisions: (i) the kitchen division which is managed by a head
chef to supervise the operation of the kitchen including hygiene
and safety, and food production; and (ii) the dining services
division which is managed by the shop manager to oversee the
operation of the dining area of the restaurant to ensure delivery of
satisfactory services to the customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « &R ERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued
Emissions (A1) - Continued
ESG Management — Continued

The Group’s central kitchen and logistic centre is located in Macau
which houses its central kitchen, warehouse, food production
facilities and administration offices undertaking purchase, delivery
and distribution of fresh and safe food ingredients as well as other
supplies to the restaurants operating in Macau. The Group also
has a central kitchen of smaller scale in Hong Kong to undertake
preparation and cooking of certain food items for its restaurants in
Hong Kong.

The Group engages independent professional firms undertaking
annual reviews on its internal control and risk system as well
as to prepare the annual environmental, social and governance
reports to ensure the Group’s compliance with its environmental
and social responsibilities and obligations, as required by the ESG
Guide and the related regulations of Hong Kong and other local
specific guides and regulations of the food industry in different
cities.

The Board regularly reviews, addresses and reports on all the
environmental and social issues listed in the ESG Guide, and
adopts updated strategies and policies, and assigns senior
management team members to implement these updated
strategies and policies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Emissions (A1) - Continued

Compliance and Policy

It is the core policy of the Group to always comply with the relevant
laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The Group’s policy on the uses of resources
(including energy, water, packaging and other raw materials), greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, is to strive for attaining source
reduction, re-use, recycling, treatment, appropriate disposal and use of
sustainable materials. The Group has an ambition to do better in different
environmental focus areas by the year of 2022.

Emission Details

The Group has not generated any significant greenhouse gas emissions
during the Year. The emissions have been indirectly and principally
generated from consuming electricity and gases at the workplace,
vehicles and business travels by employees.

The Group had no material non-compliance with the relevant laws,
rules or regulations that have a significant impact on itself relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the Year. The
non-hazardous waste of the Group comprises mainly of waste water,
waste oil, paper waste and food waste, details of which are set out in the
latter part of this ESG report. The Group has only since December 2018
commenced its operations in Taiwan such that there are inadequate
data of its operations on usage of water, carbon emission or packaging
materials consumption in Taiwan for the year of 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Emissions (A1) - Continued

Emission Details — Continued
Emissions of NO,, SOxand PM (A1.1)

The following tables show the total emissions of NO,, SO, and PM from
combustion of fuel of the Group for 2019 and 2018:

BRERE-w
BEMI(AT) -4
PR — 4

BEACY) ~ MBILY REFRFHILATL)

TREATAEER _ZT-AFLR T \FHN
BEMBEEZRAY MBI RBINF

BIENE -

Annual NO, emissions were: AELYEHEKRES
2019
—E-hE
kg NOx
TRAFLY
Macau RFT 102.3
Guangdong ER 31.3
Hong Kong BB 41.8
Taiwan =y 11.8
Total =t 187.2

Annual SO, emissions were: MECMFEHRES !
2019
—E-hEF
kg SO
TRRELY
Macau P! 0.9
Guangdong =51 0.1
Hong Kong B 0.3
Taiwan =N o
Total w5t 1.4

2018
—T-N\F
kg NOx
TRASILD

88.5
36.4
411

166.0

2018
—E-N\F
kg SO*
Frinaty

0.9
0.3
0.3

1.5
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued BIERE-»
Emissions (A1) - Continued BERI(A1)—4F
Emission Details — Continued BEIRARED — 4
Emissions of NOy, SOxand PM (A1.1) REEY - TR IEY REFH FHEATLT)
Annual PM emissions were: !Ei’-?ﬁ?ﬂiﬁmg& :
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-NF
kg PM kg PM
TFrREZEN T FRBEN T
Macau ] 3.1 2.8
Guangdong BEX 0.1 0.3
Hong Kong a5 0.5 0.4
Taiwan L > B
Total #ast 3.7 3.5

The Group’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the years of 2019 and AXERZZT—NFR - N\FRERE

2018 are presented below: BEMEHWT -

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions (A1.2) B EREEHALL)
Annual GHG 2018
emissions were: —E—N\F
FERERBEEEHNS tCO,e
/'\umﬁ
0 yNL
A 4-1 /0 —EtikEE
Macau JBFY 11,376
Guangdong =33 4,996
Hong Kong BB 2,614
Taiwan = 2
Total FEET 18,988
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « &R ERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued
Emissions (A1) - Continued
Emission Details — Continued

BRERE-w
BEMI(AT) -4

PERCATED — 4 ‘?’?

The Group’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the years of 2019 and AEBER-_ZT—-HNFER T N\FZ E=RE
2018 are presented below: b2 =2l ZZITI— :
Annual GHG 2019 2018
emissions in terms of —E_hE —=_ N\
different scopes were: tCO,e tCO,e
BRIAEESEFECEERE AW NI
RRERGBS | ST —anuE
A 4 _1 0/0 Scope 1 (note 1) #E1(MFE1) 2,023 1,750
Scope 2 (note 2) #E2(MIzE2) 17,539 17,001
Scope 3 (note 3) #E3(PI7E3) 209 237
Total wEt 19,771 18,988

Food and Other Waste Management (A1.4, 1.5 & A3)

It is the Group’s policy to strive for reducing waste in its operating
activities which produce non-hazardous wastes comprising mainly of
waste oil, food wastes, paper wastes and waste water. Waste oil and
waste water are mainly generated from restaurant’s kitchen, food wastes
are mainly derived from cooking and unconsumed food by customers
while paper wastes are mainly derived from the used napkins from
restaurants.

The Group has a central kitchen and logistics centre in Macau to
enhance operation efficiency and minimize food wastes where this
centre has multiple functions including a centralized warehouse and food
precaution facilities for the restaurants operating in Macau such as bulk
purchase, delivery and distribution of food ingredients and other supplies.
The Group has also in place management guidelines and procedures
on its inventory control to ensure the efficient inventory control to avoid
wastage. The Group also requires its restaurant managers and the chefs
to undertake proper control on food and drink quality and preparation,
and minimize non-consumed food wastes.

Bk EMEYEE(A1.4 1.5KA3)
AEEZHEABIRNEEEBRE  BREK
EEBREACEEEEYTIEREER B
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Food and Other Waste Management (A1.4, 1.5, 1.6 & A3) -
Continued

All of the Group’s food wastes and waste oils are, wherever practicable,
handled by proper waste disposal companies, while waste water
generated by its restaurants are collected and discharged daily to the
public drainage. Paper waste are, wherever practicable, collected for
recycling purpose as appropriate. To control paper waste, all staff are
encouraged to use electronic messages and print on both sides of paper.

Total Non-Hazardous Waste (A1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 1.6 & A3)

As the Group has restaurants and offices in different cities, some of the
non-hazardous waste are not centrally collected and disposed of, due
to the absence of proper waste disposal companies in some cities. A
complete data for non-hazardous waste has therefore not been available
for the Year. The Group is working on the procedure for a better data
collection of its non-hazardous waste. Based on the data available so
far, the Group has, in the Year, generated the following estimated non-
hazardous waste from its operations:

BIERE-»
EHEHMBEWEE(A14-15 16K
A3)— &
AEBEFMEFSGMERZIRAEYRIER R
ZERE MEEBESXZBEKEHHEZR
£ WAEBEKERE AR SRS - BEARE
BEEEE BN TRENHBEREBRA - BIEHIE
M RMERE2EETFREFMEETE
E5IED o

EEBEEYHE(A13-14-15-16K
A3)
ARAEER TR MEEEELNIAE - M
ERIoWMMBREEEMEE NG  HE
EEREVIEFRRERERE - AL - RAF
BEYEEERZEY . TBEE - AEBEIEEH
WEFTRBECBEEBREMHE - BERAH
B AEBRAFEREKLEEFPELEUT
HETEEREEY

2019 2018

Non-Hazardous Waste —E—hE —E—NE

Materials mEREEYH Unit Amount Amount

By HE #yE

Food Waste B gk Tonnes 296 292
NI

Waste Ol [ Litre 74,096 79,169
T

Paper #oR Tonnes 60 57
NI

In addition, the Group was not involved in any significant consumption of
chemical reagents, thus no hazardous waste has been recorded for the
Year.

It is the Group’s policy to always look into means to enhance recycling
such as segregation of different wastage materials among papers,
plastics, cooking oil and food materials, and whenever practicable,
feeding food wastage into digesting machines to turn it into grey water
which can be safely discharged down the drain. To strive for finding
means to achieve food waste recycling, the Group’s restaurants at
the University of Macau in Hengqgin Island are using utensils made of
recyclable materials while food waste are separated and collected for
recycling at the food waste recycling machines provided by the university.
Management is also monitoring the development of the food wastage
measures to be introduced by any local government authorities with a
view to utilize such development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Use of Resources (A2.1-A2.5)

Efficient use of resources is the guiding policy of the Group’s operations
covering matters ranging from the wise consumption of water, use of
sustainable materials in renovation, smart use of transportation to its
central kitchen and logistic centre, as mentioned in this ESG report.

The Group does not have any issue in sourcing the supply of water
that is fit for its purpose as its water has been supplied from the local
water supply authorities. The Group’s central kitchen and logistic centre
is located in Macau near the local wholesales market facilitating the
purchase of fresh fruits and vegetables. All these would not only enhance
business efficiency but also would reduce transportation cost, thus better
use of energy and water, and hence reduce carbon footprint. (A2.4)

The Group’s energy consumption and water consumption in the years of
2019 and 2018 are presented below:

Energy Consumption (A2.1)

Annual electricity

BRRE-#

ERFEHA.2.1-A2.5)
AEBELETPRBAERERERZETR
% BEPRAEHAK BARSEAFHED
B RBAEAXBUEARRE e RERW
EtRREERRPLESEH ©

HRRK—EREHREEHRE - NEEH
BRECMEKRERARZEN - AKELZ
RREE LR T O RORM - AT R B
W% DEERBEHELR - RFRETERT
g - TMRREERKA - M E AR E
FREEIR N 7K - WFHEFR R - (A2.4)

REBR-_ZE-NFR-ZF-N\FZRERHER
NFKEZ5IT

BEJFR B FE(A2.1)

2019 2018
consumptions were: —E—hE —EN\E
FEREEAH: kWh kWh

0 FTRE TR

A 3.0% \
Macau SR P 12,430,047 12,267,339
Guangdong EBR 3,768,179 5,256,559
Hong Kong &5 3,794,350 3,213,010
Taiwan =y 1,377,596 2,263
Total st 21,370,172 20,739,171
Annual fuel 2018
(stationary and mobile) —E—N\F
consumptions were: litre
FERB(BEERER) nF
FERER: Macau P 39,333
A 4 3 0/0 Guangdong BR 4,281
- Hong Kong B 5,988
Taiwan = —x*
Total Mt 49,602
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Use of Resources (A2) - Continued
Energy Consumption (A2.1) — Continued

BIERE-»
ERERA2)—&F
BEIREAEAL. 1) —#&

2019
—E-hEF
million MJ

BHEXEE

15.02

7.31
8.82
2.93

34.08

* ZEIE HEFEAE B o
FEKREAL2.2)

2019
—E-hE
meter3?

M T3 K

286,199
73,867
42,801
24,756

427,623

Annual gas

consumptions were:

FERRERAER

%

A 16.3%
Macau JEFT
Guangdong =3
Hong Kong HE
Taiwan =)
Total st

- These items were relatively negligible.

Water Consumption (A2.2)

Annual water

consumptions were:

FEEKES:

v %

11.1%

Macau JEFT
Guangdong EX
Hong Kong B
Taiwan =
Total BET

- These items were relatively negligible.
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2018
—E—N\F
million MJ
AEKEH

12.51
8.02
8.78

*k

29.31

2018
—T-N\F
meters

MK

307,447
103,094
70,675

*k

481,216
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued BIERE-w
Use of Resources (A2) - Continued BRERA2)—&
Packaging Materials Consumption* (A2.5) BIHEMFIFEHE " (A2.5)
The Group’s annual packaging materials (including the use of paper KEBZEFEQRZMB(GERAZHK)ER
in offices) consumptions were: g5
2018
AL
tonne
YN
Paper gy
Macau ] 156.5
Guangdong BEX 3.0
Hong Kong & 14
Taiwan oy 01*
Total 5T 161.0
Plastic 2B
Macau SEPY 33.4
Guangdong ER 8.4
Hong Kong & 11
Taiwan Y »
Total Bt 42.9
Metal B
Macau ] 46.8
Guangdong B® -
Hong Kong EE _#
Taiwan &y »
Total 5t 46.8
The consumption was less than 0.1 tonne or relatively negligible. # FEHE LRO.1 MBS AT 81 o
* The annual total packaging materials consumptions for the year of 2018 (including — * ZE-NFZFEORNFEFEE (BIEHAEA
the use of paper in offices) were restated. H)AEE ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued BRREE-#

Use of Resources (A2) - Continued ERFEHA2)-&

Energy, Greenhouse Gas, Water and Packaging Materials BEJR ~ JBEmpg KN ERE R E
Consumption Intensity (A2.3) (A2.3)

Annual total energy intensity 201 9 201 8

(kWh/HK$’m revenue) was:

FRERERRE :g—j'l.$ —FE—)\F

(TRE SEE88TWR) S :
+5.9% 27,420 25 896

Annual total GHG
(greenhouse gas) emission intensity

(tCO2e/HKS$’m revenue) was: 201 9 201 8

FESEERE R — = ==
(mﬁﬁ:ﬁfhﬁtﬁi/@ﬁ%}ﬁﬂ&ﬁ)}%: —g_ j-LE _%_?_}\E
+3.0% 17.3 16.8

Annual total water consumption intensity 201 9 20 1 8

(m¥/HK$’m revenue) was:

FEARARTE :;ﬁ—ﬂﬁ —F—)\F

(XK SEHEBTREB
-12.0% 374 425
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Use of Resources (A2) - Continued

Energy, Greenhouse Gas, Water and Packaging Materials
Consumption Intensity (A2.3) — Continued

Paper

2019 2018 2019
ZE-NE “T-)\F ZB-nE —T-)\F ZE-NE —T-)\F

0.15 0.14 0.03

RIEFRE-#

EREHNA2) &

BEE ~ JEEmpE KR EERNFHEFEZZE
(A2.3)—4&

~—

Metal
€

]
2018 2019 2018

0.04 0.06 0.04

2022 IMPROVEMENT AMBITION FROM 2020

To reduce total GHG emission intensity in operation by 3% (in terms of

tCOe/HKS' m).

To reduce total water consumption intensity in operation by 3% (in terms of

meter®/HK$’'m).

To reduce total packaging materials (including the use of paper in offices)

consumption intensity by 3% (in terms of tonne/HK$'m).

BEZE-EFHURE-_SE__FRERSE
B R AR = R A A GR 8% (IR AME —
SiciEE  SFEEBT) °

WA EEBRBEKEREIR(RL K BE
BT °

RO BEBEMBRE(BENAZAK AE2RE
3% (IR MR/ BHEEHEITT) °

Notes:

1. Scope 1 includes direct emissions such as vehicle fuel consumption and
consumption of natural gas and towngas.

2. Scope 2 includes indirect emissions from consumption of purchased electricity,
natural gas and towngas.

3. Scope 3 includes emissions produced indirectly from water consumption and
commercial business travel by airplane.

4. Energy intensity and GHG emission intensity are calculated by dividing the absolute
energy consumption and emissions by the total revenue from the Group’s operations.
By reporting energy intensity and GHG emission intensity, it helps to enhance
efficiency in the context of environmental performance.

5. The annual water consumed in the years of 2018 and 2019 was supplied by the local
water supply authorities only. The annual gas consumed in the years of 2018 and
2019 has been natural gas supplied from The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited and natural gas and LPG supplied by local suppliers.

6. The efficiency of using resources depends on lots of factors among which some are

relatively constant such as electricity for the Group’s restaurants and outlets. The
higher sales volume, the higher usage of electricity. Therefore, to attain the 2022
ambition targets will also depend on the sales performance of the Group from the

years of 2020 to 2022.

Wit -
1. RETESEERN . IMERREMEN RAAR
RAZAFEAIE -

2. BECEZFAFIBEET)  AARRERZ FIEH
e

3. BEBEEFEKERBH L ERFIETREZ FZEH
H e

4. FEIR 78 JZ IR = RE PN S8 SR 1 AB 2T 6E 5B FE R
BRI B RSB £93E 2 4iamat B o HERER%E
B R R RN ER BB IEBRRRETHZ A

5o

5. —E-NFR-F-NFZFERKEEHE BN
KRR - —F—NFR-F-NFZFEFHR
FEFE Bl BB P ERRER L AT Z XA
R B R IE B (2 KRR BRI AR

6. BFREAAFRARZERZF - AP IHEE
T WP EECEEREHHEE - HEY -
HEHE o AUt - gL EE-F = —F A EN
BHAR A EEG - FE - TEF T - F7HE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

The Environment and Natural Resources (A3)

Source Reduction and Reuse

The Group prefers source reduction and reuse, also known as waste
prevention, which means reducing waste at the source, and is the most
environmentally preferred policy since source reduction and reuse do:

° Reduce pollution.

° Reduce the toxicity of waste.

o Save natural resources.

° Conserve energy.

° Save money for customers and businesses alike.

The Group takes many different forms of source reduction, including
reusing or donating items, buying in bulk, reducing packaging,
redesigning products, reducing toxicity and whenever possible, using
sustainable materials. And the Group is, to achieve better environmental
protection, whenever possible, using environmentally friendly materials
such as:

° LED for the lighting;

° Power saving frequency inverters for its kitchen exhaust fans;

° VRV system air-conditioners for air-conditioning (being multi-split
type air conditioner for commercial buildings that use variable

refrigerant flow control developed to provide with the ability
to maintain individual zone control in each room and floor of a

building);
° Water saver faucets; and
° Green plants for the exterior walls,

for the renovation of its restaurants and food souvenir shops and for its
central kitchen and logistic centre in Macau.

With source reduction in mind, the Group’s food souvenir business
uses lighter-weight packaging materials wherever possible. The Group
encourages reuse of used kitchen equipment and renovation movables
for its restaurants and outlets, and used papers for offices. The Group
also encourages responsible food consumption to its customers to avoid
food wastage at source.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

The Environment and Natural Resources (A3) - Continued
Treatment and Disposal

The Group recognizes that prior to disposal, proper treatment can
help reduce the volume and toxicity of waste where treatments can be
physical (e.g. shredding), chemical (e.g. incineration), and biological
(e.g. anaerobic digester). And landfills are the most common form of
waste disposal and are the important component of an integrated waste
management system. The Group is aware that landfills are costly to the
society. The Group always complies with local regulations regarding its
disposal of waste to landfills.

Recycling
The Group understands the need of recycling. And the Group has

in place the guidelines to all staffs to using any chances of recycling
including to collect used, reused, or unused items that would otherwise
be considered waste; and sort and process the recyclable products. The
Group also, whenever possible, participates in programs for recycling
such as composting of food scraps. The Group values the benefits of
recycling which include:

° Saving energy, and reducing the need for new landfills and
combustors.

° Preventing the emission of greenhouse gases and water
pollutants.

° Stimulating the development of greener technologies.

° Supplying valuable raw materials to industry.

° Conserving resources for our children’s future.

° Creating jobs.

BIRGRE -

BRERRRERA)-#&

IR EE
AEBRRERENLETZERER KD
BEMIBERSE  BREER AYIE (NN
BE) B (RE) RAEY (REHLER) TR
T - HEBERAREALCENRELN LA
HEEMEERGRCERENTD - AEEH
THEERHHENMEAESS  ARERZE
SEMBBENERRENRE 2R
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AEEROEDKRZEEN WERNE2EETH
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

The Environment and Natural Resources (A3) - Continued
Measures

The Group encourages employees to pay due attention to energy saving
measures and to explore new ideas on energy saving while performing
their duties. The Group has various measures to, whenever possible, use
resources wisely and efficiently, and to reduce air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste including:

Energy Saving:

° Use daylight whenever possible.

o Use energy-saving light bulbs.

° Use dimmers where possible.

° Place lighting carefully where it needs.

° Use non-opaque, light-colored lamp shades.

° When buying new lighting, consider choosing compact fluorescent

lamps, which use 75% less energy than standard bulbs for the
same amount of illumination.

° Keep light fixtures and lamps clean to maximize their efficiency.

° Switch off the lights and air-conditioning when not in use.

o Switch off computers before the end of a working day.

° Make good use of the energy-saving features and options which

come with the operating system of the computers.

° Switch off all electrical appliances or, where appropriate, switch
them to the energy-saving mode when not in use.

° Use energy efficient electronic equipment as far as possible.

° Encourage the use of staircase instead of taking the lift for inter-
floor traffic.

° Keep track of the power consumption records and take measures

to reduce power consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

The Environment and Natural Resources (A3) - Continued
Measures — Continued

Air Conditioning:

Avoid installing air-conditioners where the place is exposed to
direct sunlight.

Set the office temperature at 25.5°C in summer, if possible.

Close off areas that do not require air-conditioning, and turn air-

conditioners off in unoccupied rooms.

Clean or replace the filters in all air-conditioners at the beginning
of summer, and clean them regularly from then on.

Carry out regular leakage check on the air-conditioning system to
check for possible leakage of refrigerants.

Paper Saving:

Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via email or
e-bulletin boards) as far as possible.

Order recycled paper for office photocopying, whenever possible.
Set duplex printing as the default mode for most network printers.
Encourage the staff to use paper on both sides, reuse envelopes
and loose minute jackets, and use the backside of letter pads with

outdated letterhead for drafting or printing.

Place boxes and trays beside photocopiers as containers to
collect single-sided paper for reuse and used paper for recycling.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

The Environment and Natural Resources (A3) - Continued
Measures — Continued

Water Saving:

Determine water requirements for each facility and check usage
regularly.

Carry out regular leakage tests on concealed piping and check for
overflowing tanks, waste, worn tap washers and other defects in
the water supply system.

Fix dripping taps immediately.

Turn off the water supply system at night and on holidays.

Reduce water pressure to the lowest practical level.

Place posters and other publicity materials in prominent places to
encourage water conservation.

Waste Disposal and Recycling:

Use, at the canteens of the University of Macau and of Macau
University of Science and Technology, the green pack waste
boxes for collecting disposals without plastic substances.

Utilize the universities’ kitchen waste recycling machines to collect
and treat such kitchen wastes, to minimize the hazardous impact
on the environment.

Vehicle Maintenance:

32

Keep cars properly tuned: an inefficient car uses more fuel and
emit more pollutants, which harm the environment and cost more
money.

Maintain correct car tyre pressure by inspecting car tyres
regularly and inflating them to the pressure recommended by the
manufacturer.

Switch off car engines when idling.

Avoid sudden acceleration, because it increases fuel consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

Sourcing Sustainably (A3 & B5)

The Group places high importance to ensure food quality and traceability
keeping a delicate balance between quality and cost, reliability and
safety, and the Group always complies with all the local relevant laws
and regulations on sourcing of its supplies. It is the policy of the Group
to make appropriate enquiries from those suppliers to ensure that its
supplies are in full compliance with all the local health and food safety
requirements.

The Group always conducts regular reviews on its supply and sourcing
process to enhance its internal control system on quality and food safety
including to source from reliable and/or sustainable food materials,
dedicated to utilizing high-quality ingredients to ensure customers receive
the best possible products. Rigorous assessments of food materials
are undertaken by the Group’s central procurement team on-site or, if
needed, at suppliers’ factories and by the managers of restaurants and
retail outlets to ensure compliance with the standards laid down. And
the business with any supplier who fails to meet the required standards
frequently shall be terminated.

The Group strives to source locally wherever possible, to reduce
transportation cost and hence greenhouse gases, and to encourage
creation of jobs for local residents. The Group’s annual number of
suppliers and sourcing locally and overseas ratios for the Year were:

RIRRE-#

Rz R (A3KB5)
AEBEEREYMENTERERRELEE
LR AERZEHREEEFE+OE
B MAKREERHEERETE B8
BEWRBEELER - AEEZHRBESR
AZEHEBELEESH  EREA®EZE
BTAIAEHREERRMLERTE °

AEE-BEHEHKEIERBREETIITR
T URARERMRMBEZAEES R
Mo BRERBAERSATKELEZRMY
BORASEEMH  URREPEIIETE
RIEZEM- - AAKEZ P RIRBEGKE X
(BRI RNHERRELBERRTERDH
RIEHRMETEREFG  BRETEIHAZ
R - T EEENER REEDRTRE
AR A LE RS2

AEBBAIGEEAITIER TREHRE - UK
BEBKAMAERE  URBREHERA
ERERE  RAFE  AEBZFEHER
BB AR A S BIMRBLL R

Macau: SEFS
Local Kb 136 61%
Overseas NEZN 76 39%
Guangdong: BE:
Local i 88 99%
Overseas NEZN 2 1%
Hong Kong: s
Local i 106 89%
Overseas RSZAN 1 11%
Taiwan: =¥
Local 7N b, 39 88%
Overseas I 1 12%

ANNUAL REPORT ## 2019 33



Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

SOCIAL ASPECT

Employment (B1)

The Group is staff-oriented: it recognizes that staff is a valuable asset,
and human capital is important to its business growth. It is one of the
Group’s business priorities to be “customer-driven” to provide customers
with valued and quality food and services using its culinary and
professional hospitality management.

Compliance, Policy and Labour Standard (B1&B4)

It is the policy of the Group to fully comply with all the local relevant laws
and regulations with regard to labour and employees. The Group had no
material non-compliance with the relevant laws, rules or regulations that
have a significant impact on itself relating to compensation, dismissal,
recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare during the
Year.

To attract and retain talents, the Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages (including competitive wages,
incentives and discretionary performance bonus, transportation
allowance and staff meals), along with promotional opportunities and
discretionary grant of share options. Remuneration packages are
constructed with reference to the prevailing market level in line with
competency, performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Performance bonus are given to outstanding employees on a
discretionary basis, and as a recognition of his/her contributions.

All employees are also entitled to Mandatory Provident Fund and other
similar local pension funds, and are paid with salaries and wages on time
and are entitled to statutory holidays, annual leaves and sick leaves. In
addition, policies on remuneration, benefits, training and occupational
health and safety are regularly reviewed, and disciplinary action would be
taken if an employee has committed an act of serious misconduct.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Employment (B1) - Continued

Compliance, Policy and Labour Standard (B1&B4) — Continued

To facilitate employees’ understanding of its mission, policies and
guidelines, the Group has in place, for all its employees, an employee
handbook which clearly sets out the guidelines for its employees to
follow in respect of standards on employees’ rights and obligations,
the principle of non-discrimination in hiring and giving fair and equal
opportunities to all suitable employee, regardless of gender, nationality,
marital status, disability, age, religious or political beliefs, including a clear
set of company policies on disciplinary and termination procedures. All
successful recruitments are concluded with proper contracts in writing
with the employees.

The Group had no material non-compliance with the relevant laws, rules
or regulations that have a significant impact on itself relating to preventing
child and forced labour during the Year. It is the policy of the Group to
require all management staff to check identity and age of all potential
employees to ensure that no child or forced labour shall be employed.
On sourcing of supplies, management staff shall, if in doubt, make
appropriate enquiries from those suppliers to ensure that their supplies
are in full compliance with all the local laws and regulations on health,
food safety, labour and other aspects.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Employment (B1) - Continued

Employee Profile and Development and Training (B1&B3

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 2,130 full-time
staff and 824 part-time workers. With a diversity of employees, the Group
enjoys a valuable mix of perspectives, skills, experience and knowledge
for addressing contemporary business issues, where all employees enjoy
a discrimination-free working environment. Details of its employee profile
for the Year are set out as follows:
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Average
Monthly
Turnover
Full-time Part-time Rate (%)
Fig8A
28 R KR (%)
Geographical region HE
Macau JEFY 1,354 35 2.3%
Guangdong BER 373 223 8.5%
Hong Kong BB 324 566 5.8%
Taiwan =y 79 - 14.3%
Total @Et 2,130 824
Gender* B>
Female pegs 1,026 516 2.1%
Male B 1,104 308 2.3%
Total st 2,130 824
Age Group* FHrAE B
Below 30 30BRA T 680 484 2.4%
30-50 30-50%% 1,086 241 1.6%
Over 50 5087 A £ 364 99 0.4%
Total st 2,130 824

The gender classification is reported, based on the official identity cards and/or
passports of the employees, and no employee has declared to fall within transgender
classification. The average monthly turnover rate is the average of the turnover rate
of each month of the year, based on the total number of full-time employee leavers of
the month divided by the total number of full-time employees (irrespective of gender
or age) at the end of the month.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Employment (B1) - Continued

Employee Profile and Development and Training (B1&B3) -
Continued

The Group provides staff with proper training to enhance their
commercial and technical skills and expertise. Training and regular
reviews are given to all staff with a common approach to driving good
leadership to build a winning culture through personal demonstration and
impact, and to enhance competencies to manage performance, to face
up to challenges, develop leaders, assess future leaders, recruit for roles,
and review employee engagement.

The Group also provides scholarships and internship opportunities to
those who are interested in pursuing a career in the food and catering
industry. In addition, the Group also participates in the promotion and
education to the communities of the importance of sustainability for the
food and catering industry. A scholarship scheme of the Group has been
established since the year of 1999 to award employees’ children on the
basis of their satisfactory academic results, with an aim to encourage
and support employees’ children in pursing their path to higher level of
education attainment as well as to contribute effectively towards the
community. During the Year, there were a total of 19 employees’ children
granted for such award.

Set out below is the average training hours per employee by gender and
age of the Group during the Year:
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2019
—EF-NF
Average hours of training per employee SE2EE T E 7
Gender 4 5
Female peg 7
Male B 7
Age Group FR4a Rl
Below 30 305 AT 8
30-50 302505% 7
Over 50 505 £ 6
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Health and Safety Standards (B2)

It is the policy of the Group to maintain a healthy workforce; ensure
healthy working conditions, safe working environments; and enable
employees to maintain a healthy lifestyle. Appropriate employees’
compensation insurance is always maintained. A medical benefit scheme
and group travel insurance for employees has been long introduced.

The Group treats occupational health and safety as one of its top
priorities, and is committed to maintaining a high occupational safety and
health standard, fostering a safe and comfortable working environment
for its employees. The Group is investing in internal training and
safety procedures and, whenever possible, working with the relevant
organizations to make its business safer. During the Year, the Group has
satisfied all legal requirements and operate with valid operation licenses
including the general restaurant licenses, light refreshment license, liquor
license, water pollution control license and food factory license, without
any material complaints or claims from customers.

To maintain high quality of its food and environment hygiene, and of its
food safety in its restaurants, the Group has set up its own “Food Safety
Department”, which is headed by a food safety manager, to monitor the
overall food safety and hygiene of all its operations. The Food Safety
Department has many responsibilities including to: (i) undertake inventory
quality control of raw food, meats, fruits and materials; (i) constantly
monitor quality of cooking and food production processes and quality of
food and drinks to be served on customers; and (jii) inspect regularly the
cleanliness of the floor, furniture and fixtures, utensils and equipment,
employees’ uniforms, personal hygiene and food handling and storage.

All premises are equipped with first aid kits, and safety procedures
are in place to handle emergency cases. Regular safety inspections
are conducted and passed by relevant government department to
ensure a safe working condition is maintained. Furthermore, internal
control manuals are laid down to provide guidelines on occupational
and restaurant safety matters for all employees to follow. Safety
and workplace hygiene trainings are also arranged as a mandatory
requirement for all restaurant employees.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued
Health and Safety Standards (B2) - Continued
Safety guidelines for restaurants and office premises include:

° Administration department regularly (i) undertakes and records
tests on the fire warning system, (i) provides adequate training in
fire safety to employees periodically and (iii) ensures proper fire
extinguishers to be maintained for use.

° Materials and operating equipment at all workplaces are safely
stored, stacked or kept avoiding any danger to any person.

° The surface floors of restaurants and office premises are
maintained even and non-slippery, with effective drainage to be
installed in kitchens to ensure smooth flow of water.

° Kitchen employees are required to wear proper work clothes,
protective gloves and aprons and non-slip shoes, and kitchen
floor surface area should be laid with non-slip tiles.

° Knives are kept safely with blades properly covered and used
for the intended job, containers for hot water or oil must not be
overfilled and properly placed while handles of cooking pans are
kept away from aisles.

° First aid kits are available to employees at all workplaces with
easy access, and proper fire instruction notices are displayed at
all conspicuous positions of the workplaces in case of fire.

The Group has an accident reporting guideline on any injury or accident
occurred at restaurants, warehouse or office premises to be reported to
the management as it recognises that accidents in business are costly. It
has been reported that very few employees were involved in the injury at
work places with an overall lost day rate of less than 0.19% due to work
injury during the Year.

EEBE-#
REHEZEEXEB2)-&
ZERPIIBH RS 04E

TTECERPTE B A B R RAET TR 1
ek (NEHREBRRERIENZE
15| e i) B AR T B A TR N R A A

IBTESMZM R RREREER R
N HEERTE - @R ERAERK
EEk -

BRI TS WEREE F/BRIR
BERARRKEMZIBRERS - BEKR
W5 o

HEEEAFEEE TIER BHEF
£ -BEREEBEE  BREMEEHRE
B o

NEEZEBE  BREAREHT
1 BOKRE AR R T FBRMALZEW
E - M REERIET FR T EREERT

MBETIESHMEEHAIEAZKE - B
FET® - SR TG Z B BIRAL
ERBEENEETEAN  SHELXN
ERFREUZ HE T

MR ARERAREBFELEBIMESS -
HEpNER EEIMASABELEZENEE
KEBINEBEEIMNRERESIAAEEERS
RIESHZGEZREZZEL RAFE -
AT HBEH 7 BEELAHLEER0.19% -

ANNUAL REPORT ## 2019 39



Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « #ERERHE

SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Code of Business and Anti-Corruption (B5&B7)

The Group has in place its code of business conduct, marking steps
forward in its approach to honesty and committing to conduct business
with fairness, integrity and respect for the law and its values.

The Group had no material non-compliance with the relevant laws, rules
or regulations that have a significant impact on itself relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering during the Year. As preventive
measures, all employees are regularly reminded of in the performance
of their duties to comply with the relevant laws, rules and regulations on
anti-corruption practices. It is the policy of the Group to ensure that all its
employees shall strictly adhere to such compliance where the employee
handbook of the Group contains rules and guidelines on this matter.

All suppliers of the Group are managed by the Group’s “Vender
Management System”: suppliers are selected based on quality, services
and pricing through an open tender process. Suppliers are required to
sign supply agreements, under which the suppliers agree to supply food
and materials as per specific requirements including quality specifications,
appropriate trading documents, health and food safety certificates. And
the Group’s supply and sourcing system for the supplies of its daily
operations and set-up of new restaurants and retail outlets requires open
competing tenders (whenever possible) and selection of qualified tenders
are made jointly by management staff of the procurement and accounting
departments, so as to prevent corrupt practices.

Supply Chain Management (B5)

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business goals.
The Group’s procurements will, whenever possible, undergo a tender
process without conflict of interests. The Group implements a just and
fair tender process to ensure adequate competition and to adopt a series
of assessment methods in relation to supplier management to ensure the
quality of its supplied products and services during performance process.

The Group works closely with a number of suppliers in providing a
range of goods and services. The Group assures their performance for
delivering quality sustainable products and services through supplier
approval process and by spot checks on the delivered goods. Further
details of supply chain management is also set out in the section headed
“Sourcing Sustainably” above.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Product Responsibility (B6)

The Group has a centralized procurement department to master-
control most of all sourcing for its restaurants and food souvenir
shops. And the Group maintains quality standards and food traceability
through its centralized warehouse including random site inspections.
To ensure quality assurance, the Group has also for many years
adopted international best practice as its management system with the
certifications of: ISO 22000, ISO 9001 and HACCP accreditation for the
central food and processing centre, whilst ISO 22000 for the catering
services at the canteen of University of Macau. These certifications cover
standards on identifying and controlling safety hazards and effective
management system. And appropriate product liability insurance is
always maintained.

The Group is committed to serving high quality of food to customers
as part of the “product responsibility”. Hence, the Group has in place
policies and procedures on food quality management since quality of
food and hygiene and safety are the Group’s business imperatives. The
Group has its strict internal quality control standards on the quality,
hygiene and safety of food served to our customers such as:

° The Group sources its supplies purchases from reliable and
approved suppliers with proven good track records to ensure the
quality of food ingredients.

° The Group strives to source supplies locally whenever possible
to ensure freshness of food ingredients. Food ingredients are
whenever practicable bulk-purchased and kept at the central
kitchen and logistic centre in Macau while perishable food
ingredients are kept at an inventory level sufficient for the short
term needs. Any unused vegetables are discarded at the end of
the day.

° Employees are properly trained in food safety handling and food
processing including: washing, cutting, seasoning, cooking and
serving. Raw food and cooked food are stored separately to avoid
cross-contamination, and all food processing equipments are
cleaned thoroughly before its use.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Product Responsibility (B6) - Continued

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group had no material non-compliance with the relevant laws, rules
or regulations that have a significant impact on itself relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress during the Year. It is the policy
of the Group to seek, if required, professional advices and assistance to
ensure compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations on product
responsibility. Also, hotlines for complaints (on products, services and
others) are available to the public. Once a complaint is received, a formal
investigation shall be conducted and follow-up action shall be taken
in a timely manner. It is also the policy of the Group that if there is any
material problem on our product quality, a product recall shall be taken.
There has not been any product recall during the Year.

Data Privacy Compliance

It is the policy of the Group to protect the information privacy and
confidentiality. With the substantial volume of private, confidential and
sensitive information from its operations, employees are properly trained
to handle confidential information with due care, and all employees and
parties having dealings with the Group are required to keep all privacy or
sensitive information confidential at all times. Personal information and
credentials of job applicants are kept in a secured data system for not
more than six months, which is only accessible by restricted supervisors.
And staffs are assigned to maintain and keep customer data and privacy
information confidential while appropriate cyber security software
systems are in place with assistance from professional firms. As a part
of its annual internal control and risk review, the Group also regularly
reviews its internal policy and system to ensure that intellectual property
rights are duly observed and protected. There were no issues occurred
concerning data privacy during the Year.

The Group’s senior management is fully aware that intellectual property
rights are material to business. The Group owns and is licensed to
use several trademarks and respects its intellectual property rights
and others, for example software installed in computers are genuine.
The Group is not aware of any material third-party infringement on its
trademarks and has fully complied with the relevant laws and regulations,
and there was no issue concerning data privacy during the Year. The
Group always stays alert to the relevant legal issues and updates its
internal policies when necessary to stay in compliance with regulatory
requirements.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Community Investment (B8)

Responsible Consumption

The Group is dedicated to high food quality, while responsible
consumption is continually promoted to customers to avoid wastage with
the following commitments:

° Committed to developing a workforce with positive mindset, skill
and knowledge to serve its customers attentively and to engage
with customers on the standard and adequacy of food avoiding
food waste to be sent to landfills.

° Committed to raising awareness of its customers of responsible
food and winery consumption.

° Committed to always reminding customers to be mindful of their
daily amount of food waste and to complete their meals by placing
promotional materials, whenever possible, at the restaurants and
food souvenir shops.

Growing with Communities

As its core policy, the Group values the importance of its social
responsibility and its impact on the community, with due regards to
the needs and interests of the communities. The Group therefore
integrates such elements in its business activities and participates in (and
encourages the staff to participate in) charitable activities to promote the
good corporate citizenship in Macau, Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan.

The Group strives to ensure that its success as a business helps the
communities and societies in which it operates to prosper, through direct
contributions, share of core values and exemplified behaviors. The Group
cares and provides employment for the underprivileged. The Group’s
employees proactively provide additional assistance to senior customers
and those in need while high chairs are available for customers with kids
to enjoy their food. The Group welcomes the visually impaired to visit its
restaurants and food souvenir shops with their guide dogs. The Group
has been participating in programs of non-profit organizations for the
underprivileged.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued

Community Investment (B8) - Continued

Growing with Communities - Continued

The Group has in the Year contributed cash donation, time, in-kind
donations and management costs to non-profit organizations. The
Group encourages all employees to become actively involved in the
communities in which they live and work. More than 132 employees
and family members of the Group have in the Year participated in the
36th Macau Walks for Millions. During the Year, employees of the
Group have taken part in volunteering activities including participation
in overseas promotion trips organised by local government and/or trade
organisations. The Group has a team of staff undertaking volunteer works
on a regular basis. The Group has also been undertaking relatively lower
margin canteen services for universities and schools in Macau as a part
of its social responsibility to serve the public.

Being a leading food and catering Group in Macau, the Group’s
contribution to the communities is the positive impact of its business
itself: creating jobs, providing business to suppliers and providing wide
variety of quality food and services to visitors of Macau to help the tourist
industry. The Group has for years been hiring people of special needs,
providing them with appropriate accommodation and job training. The
Group has been also supporting the social integration of people with and
without disabilities. In the years of 2017, 2018 and 2019, the Group was
granted the “Award of the Employment of Disability People” in Macau.

Since the year of 2017, the Group has set up a volunteer team to
actively participate in the volunteer activities to assume more social
responsibilities to serve the local community and to bridge the gap
between business and community. It is planned to include activities such
as visits to socially vulnerable groups, provision of training workshop for
the disabled, donations to elderly home and visits to the underprivileged.

In view of Covid-19 infection, the Group has in February 2020 made
donation of surgical masks, disinfecting wipes and Yeng Kee Bakery
products to the children and families of Ronald McDonald House
Charities Hong Kong, a residential family centre for sick children.
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SOCIAL ASPECT - continued
Community Investment (B8) - Continued
Awards and Community Recognition

The Group has been awarded with many recognitions from other
organizations and entities on its food products and services, resources
utilization and community involvement such as the achievements below:

ISO 22000: 2005 Food Safety Management System certified since
February 2019, and ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System
certified since January 2019.

HACCP (Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point) System and
Guideline certified since February 2019.

Award - 18 restaurants being accredited in the Year under “Quality
Tourism Services Accreditation Scheme” by Macao Government
Tourism Office With Edo Japanese Restaurant at Hotel Lisboa
being awarded the “Service Star Award”, the scheme of which
aims to recognize tourism businesses for their outstanding
services and excellent service management.

Award - Edo Japanese Restaurant, Senkizen Japanese
Restaurant and Shiki Hot Pot Restaurant being awarded “My
Favourite Restaurant” by iFood in the Year.

Award — Mad for Garlic and Bari-Uma Hong Kong being awarded
the OpenRice Best Restaurant Awards in 2018 and 2019.

Award — Mad for Garlic, Bari-Uma, Fu-unmaru, Bistro Seoul Hong
Kong being awarded “Customer Review Awards” by DianPing in
the years of 2018 and 2019.

Award — Mad for Garlic, Bari-Uma, Fu-unmaru, Bistro Seoul,
Azores Hong Kong being awarded by HK QQ Entertainment QQ
Favorite Restaurant Awards in the years of 2018 and 2019.

Award — One employee won the champion in the women’s
category and another employee was the second runner up in the
men’s category in “Tray Race 2019”, which was a supporting
annual event of the World Tourism Day held in September 2019
by Macao Government Tourism Office.

Award — Cantonese Dim Sum Silver Award and Cantonese Main
Course Gold Award in the Macao 2019 World Master Chefs
Competition For Cantonese Cuisine by The United Association of
Food and Beverage Merchants of Macao in November 2019.

“Award of the Employment of Disability People” in Macau in the
years of 2017, 2018 and 2019.
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PARAMETERS AND METHODOLOGIES (A&B)
Parameters and methodologies used in the sections of “Environmental
Protection” and “Social Aspect” of this ESG report are:

46

BDO Financial Services Limited has conducted a review over the
reporting mechanism of the environmental and social parts of this
ESG report and its recommendations have been adopted in this
ESG report accordingly.

This ESG report is prepared in accordance with the principles
and methodologies of local and international carbon accounting
standards, based on the available information as at the date
of this ESG report. This exercise is a fair and reasonable
representation of business activities and operations in which the
Group has direct operational control and full authority to introduce
and implement its operation policies. However, this ESG report
excludes emissions rising from outsourced operations and fugitive
emissions that they are considered not to have a significant
impact on its overall emission performance.

CO.,e, or carbon dioxide equivalent, is a standard unit for
measuring carbon footprints. The idea is to express the impact
of each different greenhouse gas in terms of the amount of
CO, that would create the same amount of warming. That way,
a carbon footprint consisting of lots of different greenhouse
gases can be expressed as a single number. Greenhouse gas
emissions comprise carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride
and nitrogen trifluoride. The data are calculated using locally
available methods and data where they exist. Where there is no
locally available method or data, the data are calculated using
other available appropriate references under the principles and
methodologies of local and international carbon accounting
standards. There are thus inherent limitations to the accuracy of
such data.
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PARAMETERS AND METHODOLOGIES (A&B) - Continued

4.

In calculating the greenhouse gas emission under Scope 1’s
mobile source for Hong Kong, reference was made to Guidelines
to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong published by the Environmental
Protection Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department in 2010. And calculation of emissions for Hong Kong
was made to include CO,, N,O and CH,, based on emission factor
for unleaded petrol for passenger car of 2.36 kg/litre for CO,,
emission factor for unleaded petrol for passenger car of 1.105 g/
litre for N,O, and emission factor for unleaded petrol for passenger
car of 0.253 g/litre for CH,. In calculating the total greenhouse gas
emission under Scope 1’s mobile source for Macau, Guangdong
and Taiwan, reference was made to 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories with the assumption of
same emission factors as gasoline. Calculation of emissions for
Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan, was made to include CO,, N,O
and CH,, based on emission factor of 2.271 kg/litre for CO,, 1.081
g/litre for N,O, and 0.104 g/litre for CH,.

In calculating the greenhouse gas emission of towngas usage for
Hong Kong, under Scope 1’s stationary source, calculation of
emission of CO,, N,O and CH, is based on the emission factor of
2.549 kgCO,/unit, 0.0000099 kgN,O/unit, 0.0000446 kgCH,/unit
with reference to HKEx How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs. Calculation of
greenhouse gas emission of natural gas usage of CO,, N,O and
CH, for Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan, is based on the emission
factor of 1.88496 kgCO,/m?3, 0.00000336 kgN,O/m3, 0.000168
kgCH,/m? with reference to GHG Protocol Emission Factors from
Cross Sector Tools March 2017.
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PARAMETERS AND METHODOLOGIES (A&B) - Continued

6.

48

In calculating greenhouse gas emissions for Scope 2 for Hong
Kong, emission factors for electricity (i) of 0.8 kgCO,e/kWh was
used, as based on the Sustainability Report 2018 of Hong Kong
Electric Investments Ltd issued in March 2019, and (ii) of 0.51
kgCO,e/kWh was used, as based on the Sustainability Report
2018 of CLP Holdings Limited issued in February 2019, while
emission factor for towngas of 0.564 kgCO,e/unit was used, as
based on the Sustainability Report 2018 of Hong Kong and China
Gas Company Limited issued in April 2019.

In calculating greenhouse gas emissions for Scope 2 for Macau,
emission factor for electricity of 0.883 kgCO,e/kWh was used,
as based on the Sustainability Report 2018 of Companhia de
Electricidade de Macau, and emission factor for natural gas of
0.564 kgCO,e/unit was used, as based on the Sustainability
Report 2018 of Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
assuming same emission factor as Hong Kong since the emission
factor for natural gas in Macau is unavailable.

In calculating greenhouse gas emissions for Scope 2 for
Guangdong, emission factor for electricity of 0.8367 kgCO,e/kWh
was used, as based on 20174 & & 5 B4 F 15 — AL igHE R
He-mhRINEN (FERE), and emission factor for natural gas
of 0.564 kgCO.e/unit was used, as based on the Sustainability
Report 2018 of Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
assuming same emission factor as Hong Kong since the emission
factor for natural gas for Guangdong is unavailable.

In calculating greenhouse gas emissions for Scope 2 for Taiwan,
emission factor for electricity of 0.533 kg CO,e/kWh was used, as
based on Bureau of Energy — Energy Statistics Handbook 2018,
and emission factor for natural gas of 0.564 kg CO,e/unit was used,
as based on the Sustainability Report 2018 of Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited, assuming same emission factor as
Hong Kong since the emission factor for natural gas for Taiwan is
unavailable.
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PARAMETERS AND METHODOLOGIES (A&B) - Continued

10.

11.

In calculating the other indirect emissions of greenhouse gas for
Macau, Guangdong, Hong Kong and Taiwan under Scope 3,
reference was made to Water Supplies Department Annual Report
2017/18 of Hong Kong for emissions due to electricity used for
fresh water processing by the Water Supplies Department with
the emission factor of 0.404 kgCO,e/m3. For that of Macau,
Guangdong and Taiwan, the same emission factor of 0.404
kgCO,e/m?® was used as relevant emission factors for Macau,
Guangdong and Taiwan are unavailable. And for calculating other
indirect emission of greenhouse gas for Macau, Guangdong,
Hong Kong and Taiwan due to business air travel by employees,
calculation was made by using ICAO Carbon Emission Calculator
(https://www.icao.int/environmental-protection/CarbonOffset/
Pages/default.aspx) with reference to the emission factor of
CO, per pax = 3.16" (total fuel* pax-to-freight factor)/(number of
y-seats* pax load factor) and ICAO Carbon Emissions Calculator
Methodology — version 10 June 2017.

In calculating the NOy, SOy and PM emissions for Hong Kong,
Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan (the amounts of which for Taiwan
were relatively so negligible that it was excluded) from vehicles,
emission factors of 0.0747 g/km for NOy, 0.0147 g/L for SOy and
0.0055 g/km for PM for Hong Kong were used since the emission
factors for NOy and SOy for Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan are
unavailable. The relevant emission factors are based on HKEx
How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs. There are thus inherent limitations to the
accuracy of such data. In calculating the NOy and SOy emissions
for Hong Kong, Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan from using
towngas and natural gas, emission factors of 4.02 kg/million MJ
for NOy and 0.02 kg/million MJ for SO were used, with reference
to HKEx How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs, with the assumption of same
emission factors as Hong Kong since the emission factors for
Macau, Guangdong and Taiwan are unavailable.
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The corporate governance report is set out below.

The Board is committed to maintaining and ensuring high standard of
corporate governance. It regularly reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Group to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are conducted in a
proper manner and to enhance the Company’s competitiveness and
operating efficiency.

The Company has complied with the CG Code for the Year except the
following deviations.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. Due
to personal commitments, Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln, an independent
non-executive Director, did not attend the 2019 AGM.

The Board has in place a set of up-to-date terms of reference on
corporate governance for its Directors in line with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code. These updated terms of references are published on
the Company’s website at www.fb.com.hk (“Company’s website”) and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board is led by the Chairman and currently comprises of four
executive Directors (one of them is the Chairman) and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Chak Mo (Managing Director)
Mr. Lai King Hung (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Leong In lan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Board Composition - Continued

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors” on pages 100 and 101 of this annual report. All
Directors have confirmed that they have taken an active interest in the
Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of its business.
The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate professional
qualifications and their professional opinions raised in the Board meetings
facilitate the maintenance of good corporate governance practices. A
balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element to the Board, which exercises
independent judgment effectively and makes decision objectively for
the best interests of the Company. The Company shall review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the Group’s business.

The Company does not at present have any officer with the title of “Chief
Executive Officer” but instead, its duties are performed by Mr. Chan
Chak Mo, the Managing Director. To have a clear division between the
management of the Board and the daily management of the business
operations of the Company, the role of the Chairman is separate
from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman focuses on overall
corporate development and strategic direction of the Group and provides
leadership for the Board and oversees the efficient functioning of the
Board. The Managing Director is responsible for all daily management
including planning and developing the Group’s strategy. Such division
of responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The Company shall ensure and facilitate
each Director to take an active interest in the affairs of the Group so that
each Director could make positive contribution to the Group.

All independent non-executive Directors are free from any business
or other relationship with the Company. The Company’s independent
non-executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his independence. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character and
judgment and that each of them meets the specific independence
criteria as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Moreover, all
independent non-executive Directors are engaged on service contracts
for a term of one year commencing on date of appointment and
thereafter for further successive periods of one year, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-
laws. Also a separate ordinary resolution in general meeting is necessary
for shareholders to retain an independent non-executive Director who
has served nine years or more.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Board Composition - Continued

The Board also regularly reviews the contribution and time of each
Director in his/her discharge of duties and responsibilities to the
Company. Each Director is fully aware of his/her obligation to inform the
Company on a timely manner of any change to significant commitments
to the Company.

To keep abreast of the responsibilities as directors of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Directors are from time to time provided with information on the
activities, development and financials of the Group’s business, and the
legal and regulatory requirements (including duties and responsibilities)
as a director of the Company. In addition, they are given full access to
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors at the Company’s expenses.

Under the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company has provided the Directors with
the relevant training reading materials as well as information on different
seminars and training courses during the Year. The Directors confirmed
that they have complied with provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the
Year on directors’ training. All Directors have confirmed that they have
during the Year participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars briefing and/or reading the relevant materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company.

The Board has in place a set of updated procedures for Shareholders to

propose a person for election as a Director, and these procedures are
published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has in place a code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in securities on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry with
the Directors, all of them confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of
conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in securities during the Year.

To enhance the corporate governance of the Group as a whole, the
Board has in place a written guideline on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and holding company who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Group or
securities of the Company. No incidents of non-compliance have been
noted by the Company during the Year.

Nomination of Directors

The Board has a nomination committee with specific written terms of
reference which set out clearly its authority and duties. These terms
of reference are published on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The nomination committee’s major role is to advise on and propose
the appointment of Director either to fill a casual vacancy on or as an
additional member of the Board. The selection criteria are mainly based
on the professional qualification and experience of the candidate. The
nomination committee also recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board and believes that it would enhance the decision-making capability
of the Board and thus benefit the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. When making nomination to the Board, members of the
nomination committee would take into consideration the gender, age,
educational background, place of domicile, experience and professional
expertise of the existing Board and the candidate(s) in order to attain a
balanced mix that is appropriate for the strategies of the Company. A
newly appointed Director must retire and be re-elected at the first general
meeting after his appointment. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The members of the nomination committee are:
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Nomination of Directors - Continued

A majority of the nomination committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. During the Year, no nomination committee meeting
was held as no new Director was proposed or appointed.

Board Meeting

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve
annual and interim results, review the business operation and the internal
control system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board
meetings are also held to approve major issues including, among other
things, overall strategy and investment plans of the Group. At least 14
days’ notice of each regular meeting is normally given to all Directors.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are usually sent not less than
3 days before the date of Board meetings to ensure that the Directors
are given sufficient review time. Draft minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings are circulated to Directors for their review
and comment while final version of the said minutes, duly signed, are
sent to all members for their records. All said minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

During the Year, 19 Board meetings were held, and the attendance of
these meetings by each Director is set out as follows:

EET-a

EEvRE-#
REBLZEERBOKERBILIFENITESE - R
AEE HRUVEEZXIEZENES  RITE
BITEMIREZREESSH -

Exegd

EXgEFELRTORME  HIEEEIE
FERTHES *“E AEBzEXHEERR
MIEEHIHIE - BRREMEIN EFG ML E

Ek%lﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂ BIE) NEEEER
BRI ETE - 2REE-RPVEAHIESRTT
RIERED14EBRA - 2R EEHEEe M
BERESEHRBITERARTD FBE%Q%
E HRESCSIASNHEEMN -EFE

ExeeR M EFREeeR QE%;;EE@“ZE%&
Ao AHEMHIE  MERZZGACTHEER

AR 2BEEENERFER - LA EHERL
BHMATMERE IRENESESNEFS
BRI H AR RAMILER

RAEE EFGLHRTIOREH - UTAS
ERhFE%EEIZBER

No. of meeting attended

Directors =) HESBRXE
Mr. Chan Chak Mo PUER ST A 14/19
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny PREANITE 16/19
Mr. Lai King Hung BRpI S 19/19
Ms. Leong In lan BOTR T 17/19
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit SRIEGESEAE 19/19
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln RIBRILAE 19/19
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso PREFESLE 19/19

No Board meeting was attended by any alternate Director during the
Year.

During the Year, a meeting was held between the Chairman and all
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with CG Code A.2.7.

All Directors confirmed that they have in a timely manner informed the
Company that there had been no changes in the number and nature of
offices held by him/her in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments during the Year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Board and Management

To enable all Directors to make informed decisions at Board meetings
and to discharge their duties and responsibilities, management always
provides the Directors with appropriate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner. In addition, management has been providing the
Directors with monthly management reports and quarterly business
update public announcements which contain the monthly and quarterly
financials, business development and reviews of the Group’s business.
To further reinforce independence, the Board and each Director can
have separate and independent access to the management and staff
of the Company if additional information is required. The Company also
provides appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors and senior management.

In order to have a clear principle in relation to matters specifically
reserved to the Board for decisions, functions between the Board and
the management of the Company are formalised. Matters reserved to
the Board for decision include the making of significant financial and
legal commitments, merger and acquisition, material asset acquisition or
disposal, the change of share capital, the approval of financial reporting,
budgeting, management succession and representation to Shareholders.
The management of the Company is thus responsible for the day-to-
day running of the Group; making reports on the operations to the Board
on a monthly basis and making recommendations to the Board on the
development of any major projects or business proposals and their
respective implementation. The Board is of the view that such division of
responsibilities does enhance the corporate governance of the Company.
The Board has in place specific written terms of reference in respect of
the corporate governance to perform the corporate governance function
of the Company.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, and reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the
CG Code and the disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Board has considered the following corporate
governance matters:

- review of the compliance with the CG Code; and
- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk

management systems of the Group through the audit and risk
committees.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Remuneration of Directors

The Board has a remuneration committee with specific written terms
of reference which set out clearly its authority and duties. The Board
has in place a set of updated terms of reference for the remuneration
committee, a copy of which is published on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

The remuneration committee’s role is to make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors and
senior management and to ensure that they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group’s overall performance, having regard
to the interests of Shareholders. The principal duties of the remuneration
committee include determining the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management, as well as reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

Details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior management
are set out in the notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements on pages
189 to 191 of this annual report.

The members of the remuneration committee during the Year were:

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny

A majority of the remuneration committee members are independent
non-executive Directors. During the Year, one remuneration committee
meeting was held to consider and approve the remuneration package of
the Directors, and the individual attendance of that meeting by members is
set out as follows:
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No. of meeting attended

Members RE HEEBERE
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso PREFELEE 11
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit ROBBESE 1/1
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny PRENLE 171
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

Remuneration of Directors - Continued

No remuneration committee meeting was attended by any alternate
Director during the Year.

The remuneration, comprising director’s fee, of independent non-
executive Directors is subject to recommendation by the remuneration
committee for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.
Reimbursement is allowed for out of pocket expenses incurred (including
traveling and hotel expenses) in connection with the performance of their
duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has an audit committee with specific written terms of
reference which set out clearly its authority and duties. The Board has
in place a set of updated terms of reference for the audit committee, a
copy of which is published on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. The audit committee is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and make relevant recommendations to the Board. The audit committee
meets the Company’s auditor at least twice a year.

The members of the audit committee during the Year were:

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln

All audit committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
During the Year, two audit committee meetings were held, and the
individual attendance of these meetings of members is set out as follows:
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No. of meeting attended

Members RE HESBXE
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso PRELEE 2/2
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit SROEGESEAE 2/2
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln RiFRASE 2/2

No audit committee meeting was attended by any alternate Director
during the Year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE - Continued

In discharging its responsibilities, the audit committee has performed the
following works during the Year:

0] review of the draft interim and annual financial statements and the
related draft results announcements;

(i) review of the change in accounting standards and assessment of
potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements; and

(iif) making recommendation on the appointment or reappointment of
the external auditors and approved their terms of engagement.

The audit committee allows employees of the Company to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The relevant arrangement is in place for the fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow up action. A
copy of such arrangement is published on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. The audit committee has since March
2012 established a whistleblowing policy and system for employees and
those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to
raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company. A copy of such
policy and system is published on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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RISK COMMITTEE

The Board has a risk committee with specific written terms of reference
which set out clearly its authority and duties. The Board has in place
a set of terms of reference for the risk committee, a copy of which is
published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The risk committee’s role is to make recommendation to the Board
on the risk management framework and internal control policies. The
principal duties of the risk committee include reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s risks. The risk committee also reviews the effectiveness
of the enterprise risk management function, including staffing level and
qualification as well as risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and
policies from time to time.

The members of the risk committee are:

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny

A majority of risk committee members are independent non-executive
Directors. During the Year, one risk committee meeting was held, and the
individual attendance of that meeting of members is set out as follows:
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No. of meeting attended

Members RE HEEBERE
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso PREFESLE 11
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln RIPRIALE 11
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny fRBNAE 11

In discharging its responsibilities, the risk committee has appointed an
independent professional firm named ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services
Limited to review the Group’s internal control system and to advise on
the relevant issues in respect of financial reporting procedures during the
Year. More details on risk and internal control are set out below.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Apart from carrying out the annual audit, BDO Limited, being the auditor
of the Company, carried out the review on the interim report of the
Company during the Year and other non-audit services. The fee of the
annual audit was HK$1,700,000 while the non-audit fees in respect of
the interim review and professional service fee in connection with the
very substantial disposal transaction were HK$550,000 and HK$500,000
respectively. The Group also paid fees of HK$184,000 for taxation
service to BDO Tax Limited. In addition, the Company paid the non-audit
fees of approximately HK$270,000 to BDO Financial Services Limited
for compliance review of (i) 2018 ESG report; and (i) other non-audit
assignments on non-financial operations of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
which have been prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. A statement by the auditor about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 112 to 118 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Group Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The audit and risk
committees assisted the Board to fulfill its responsibility. The Board
recognizes that risk taking is unavoidable as part of the Company’s
business. By appropriate risk management and continuous risk
monitoring, risk taking can bring value to the Company. The Board
believes that risks are acceptable after prudent assessment of their
impact and likelihood. The Company can protect its assets and
Shareholders’ interests and create value simultaneously through
appropriate risks management and control measures. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguards its assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensures
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensures
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

- Continued

Risk Assessment Approach and Risk Identification

The Board has the oversight responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks faced by the Group and reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s approach to addressing these risks. In addition,
the Board oversees management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

Based on last year’s result, risk assessment is reassessed annually
to ensure material risks to which the Company may be exposed are
properly identified, assessed, managed and monitored. The Company
shall perform ongoing assessment to update the entity-level risk factors
and report to the Board on a regular basis.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Company is
strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not limited by the
following ways:

1. Restrict access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

2. Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information and ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

3. Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place when
the Company enters into significant negotiations or dealings with
third party; and

4. Inside information is handled and communicated by designated
persons to outside third party.

The Board and the senior management review the safety measures
regularly to ensure inside information is properly handled and
disseminated.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

- Continued

Internal Audit Function

Professional firms also perform company internal audit function and assists
the Board in conducting a review of certain key parts of the internal
control systems of the Group. Based on the Company’s previous risk
assessment results and a three-year internal audit plan, the internal audit
review carried out during the Year includes: a) scoping and planning
audit locations as agreed with the audit committee and the Board; b)
review of the design of internal control structure by identifying the key
controls in place and determining significant gaps within the design of the
controls; c) testing of the key controls; and d) reporting to and making
recommendations to the risk committee on the major design weakness
in order to enhance the internal control of operation procedures, systems
and controls. The reports and recommendations were submitted to the
Board and rectification actions were taken based on recommendations
by the professional firm.

Management’s Confirmation on Risk Management

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal audit review
activities mentioned in the aforesaid paragraphs, the management
made a confirmation to the Board that the Company had maintained an
effective risk management mechanism and internal control system during
the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Company shall, for the purpose of keeping its shareholders duly
informed of their rights, publish from time to time the updated Bye-
laws in a consolidated form on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Group establishes communications with Shareholders through the

publication of announcements, notices, circulars, interim and annual
reports on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS - continued

According to the Bye-laws, Shareholders, holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company,
can, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary,
request to convene a special general meeting for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Any general meeting, at which the
passing of a special resolution is to be considered, shall be called by not
less than 21 clear days’ and 20 clear business days’ notice, whilst others
may be called by not less than 14 clear days’ and 10 clear business
days’ notice.

The chairman of general meetings ensures that the Shareholders are
informed of the procedure for demanding a poll by way of making the
disclosure in the circulars to Shareholders and repeating the same during
the general meetings. The chairman of general meetings also ensures
compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the Bye-laws.

Regarding the procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders,
Shareholders are encouraged to attend annual general meetings of the
Company at which the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the
various Board committees are available to answer questions related
to the Group’s business. The matters resolved at the 2019 AGM are
summarised below:

i approval of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018;

ii. approval of the special final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018;

iii. Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny was re-elected as an executive Director;

iv. Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Mr. Chan Pak Cheung Afonso were re-
elected as independent non-executive Directors;
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS - continued

BRREFREERE -

v. re-appointment of BDO Limited as the external auditor of the v. BEBEIGEERESTMEBAARRD
Company; AR A B INEAZERED
vi.  grant of a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal  vi. MEERL—RRE - A BT
with additional Shares not exceeding 20% of the total number of BEIENHAC BTN BE20%.2 58N
issued Shares; At
vii.  grant of a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares  vii. [AESERY—BE#E  UBEETBGEE
not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued Shares; and BITRHDEE10% 2 &m0 &
vii.  extension of the general mandate to issue Shares by adding  vii. FBIMAREE D SERELDRGEE
to it the number of Shares repurchased under the repurchase MEREEITR (D 2 — AR -
mandate.
The 2019 AGM was held on 21 May 2019, and the attendance of the —ZE— N ERFBEERAGR T —NERA
2019 AGM of each Director is set out as follows: Z+—BET UTASESFHERE _ZT—IF
RERBEFERE 21BN
No. of meeting attended
Directors 245 HESBIH
Mr. Chan Chak Mo BOER £ 4 on
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny fRBINAE 1/1
Mr. Lai King Hung RIS 11
Ms. Leong In lan Z2HTE L 0/1
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit SRIEGSTAE 11
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln REPRIALE 0/1
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso PR B ST 11

A special general meeting was held on 18 December 2019 to approve
the disposal of Hengqgin Land, and the attendance of that special general
meeting of each Director is set out as follows:

BERENAGR-_Z-AF+_A+N\HE
7 UBLERERESE L UTASESHE
ZBRFRIAREG ZER -

No. of meeting attended

Directors KE HEERRE
Mr. Chan Chak Mo BRIZR L 0/1
Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny PRENTE 1/1
Mr. Lai King Hung B S 11
Ms. Leong In lan RETH R+ 0/1
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit SRIEGESEAE 0/1
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln HIBRAAE 0/1
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso BRE L 0/1

64 FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED S 5BERA A



Environmental, Social and Governance Report & « &R ERHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS - continued

No general meeting was attended by any alternate Director during the
Year.

Shareholders’ comments and suggestions as well as any proposals put
forward to Shareholders’ meetings at a reasonable time are welcome,
and such comments and proposals can be sent in writing to the
company secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The Board endeavors to answer all valuable questions from the
Shareholders.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a public listed company, the Company values the importance
of corporate social responsibility and its impact on the community.
The Company integrates such elements in its business activities and
participates in or encourages the staff to participate in charitable activities
to promote the good corporate citizenship in Macau, Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognises that staff is a valuable asset, and human capital
is important to the growth of the Company. The Company provides
staff with training to enhance their commercial and technical skills and
expertise. In addition, the Company provides a safe working environment
to staff of different sections.

COMMUNITY

The Company has encouraged donation to people in need by staff and
our customers such as joining events organised by the Community Chest
and placing donation boxes in the restaurants for donation by customers.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Hon Fai remains as the company secretary of the Company.
He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Year.

BRREFREEERE -

BEESRAFEYEHNFEIARRAE -

RAREAREREEREERRAS LBE
EAMBEENARRLES  ARERNERT
ANEEFAESTARRBLEETEE XM
THARMERE - BEFTGTEREEERR

2E %’?E%EEFDEJ °

eEIERE

ERRABLEMAR  ARARHEEHERMER
REHHEZEEREER - ARAR/EER
FEATDEEHEEETE  BERSATE
BT2HERHEE  BMARRM - PEAER
ERHPELALELRED -

11
RRABFREEDED AR ERCEEEE
BRANER - BIREFHEEBEERTT - EXEKEE
RBEMZ - ARARAEREBIERHEE © I
KRB MAEHPIE TREL 2 THERE

it &
ERSARRSAERETH RN ERREBN
HREEFBRRELY  AAREGZEET
REFPRBTAEFEAL -

LFHE

REBAEBEARBZARNE  ARAF
BEID D16/ BEZERE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWIM R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

The turnover of the Group was approximately HK$1,142.3 million for the
Year, representing a mild growth of approximately 0.8% as compared to
that of 2018 of HK$1,133.3 million.

Details of turnover breakdown are as follows:

TURNOVER

Restaurants:

Japanese restaurants

Chinese restaurants

Western and other
restaurants (Note 1)

Food court counters

Franchise restaurants (Note 2)

ERE

AXEE

R ERR

PR &
Hib g (fEE)

EREZEN

Rt e B R (MaE2)

Industrial catering THEWR

Food wholesale B

Food and catering business BYREBERER
Food souvenir business BERFEER
Property investment business MEREER
Total st

66 FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £ S2&£EHER AT

Pt 365 [0 bR
EES

REBRAREE L EFEL /1,142,300,0008
7T - M= F— /A5 1,133,300,000%# 7T A1 A1

#70.8% °

LERBEHAFBOT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million

BEBTT BEBT AEET
317.3 293.2
182.7 178.6
123.4 99.1

97.8 65.9
243.0 183.4
964.2 820.2
48.7 43.1
42.0 31.3
1,054.9 894.6
78.4 62.5
1,133.3 957 .1




Management Discussion and Analysis B2 ER Kk S

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued

Below is a table of comparison of the turnover for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018:

TURNOVER EERE

Restaurants: BEE -

Japanese restaurants BXEEE

Chinese restaurants P EEE

Western and other AREE R
restaurants (Note 1) EnZEs (FIEE1)

Food court counters ERESEMN

Franchise restaurants (Note 2)

RrRte e 2R (ME2)

Industrial catering TEERK

Food wholesale RmitE

Food and catering business B RENRER
Food souvenir business EmFEER
Property investment business MEREEL
Total 4t

B3O EE -
EEE-W
TREBRBEE_Z—NWFH-_FT-N\F+=A
—t+t—RIEFECEERE
2019 Change 2018
—E-hF o) —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’ million
BEETT Bk ABEET
-9.6% 317.3
-13.1% 182.7
-34.4% 123.4
+106.7% 97.8
-8.9% 243.0
-1.5% 964.2
-16.4% 48.7
+6.4% 42.0
-1.8% 1,054.9
+28.4% 78.4
N/ATE A -
+0.8% 1,133.3

Note 1: The turnover relating to “Western and other restaurants” item included turnover from
the Group’s Western restaurants, and 1 sandwich bar.

Note 2: The turnover relating to “Franchise restaurants” item included turnover from the
Group’s Pacific Coffee shops, and Pepper Lunch, Bari-Uma ramen, Fu-Un-Maru,
Mad for Garlic and Bistro Seoul restaurants.

The decrease in turnover of the Group’s food and catering business was
mainly attributable to closure of some restaurants in Macau and Mainland
China. The increase in turnover of the food souvenir business was mainly
due to the increases of turnover from the new Yeng Kee bakery shop
at Macau Airport Terminal and from its distribution sales in Mainland
China. The turnover in the Group’s property investment business was
attributable to the rental income from the Key Investment Property in
Macau proportionally accounted for the Year.

Mt ARIANEREREMERRE 22 XHEKRA
AEBMAXBERB=CAE 2 &5 -

W2 ABEEHEEEE AL 2 B ERERAARE
KOG LARADREES - KB BB HIE  AE
A1+ Mad for Garlic % & & « #850/MEEEE 2 M -

FEERVMMEREH CEXBERD 2R
RAREPIRBEAERIERZEE - R
EEBZEFERNTIZOANRIIR ST ER
MBS REMRERPRERED 2 HER
BE AREMEREXRHZEXRBREIENRA
REFRUEPIARZRFIEZERENEZAS
YA e
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - Continued FA 5 RS — 40
Turnover - Continued SR -
Below is a table of comparison of the turnover of the first, second, third TXRHEBE TN FEH_-_ZT—-NFF— - F
and fourth quarters of 2019 and 2018: B REBENTE SRR
2019 Change 2018
—E-hF #E) —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEBT Bkt BEATT
TURNOVER = 2
First quarter F—=FF 295.6 +4.5% 283.6
Second quarter F-EFE 267.9 +4.6% 256.0
Third quarter F=FE 295.8 +0.4% 294.6
Fourth quarter FNFE 283.0 -5.4% 299.1
Total HET 1,142.3 +0.8% 1,133.3

Details of the Group’s turnover breakdown of the first, second, third and AEBR -_ZE—NFE—  F- - F=KEFEN

fourth quarters of 2019 are as follows: FEZEEBERAFEOT
2019
“E-hE
Fourth Quarter Third quarter Second quarter First quarter
ENEE E=FE BEEE E—FE
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BEBT BEBT BEBT HEBT
TURNOVER [=E 2
Restaurants: BEE
Japanese restaurants BXEEE
Chinese restaurants R B EE
Western and other restaurants 75 =%, &8 % H fih £ 2
Food court counters EREBEAM
Franchise restaurants B E g
Industrial catering TEZR
Food wholesale Rt

Food and catering business BYRBHER
Food souvenir business ERFEER
Property investment business ¥¥ R E X%

Total et
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued

Details of the Group’s turnover breakdown of the first, second, third and

fourth quarters of 2018 are as follows:

R 355 1RA —aw
ERE-M

REBR-_T-N\FE— E_

FEZEXBAMAFBOT

lﬁ‘Hi
I
X
i
=

2018
—E-N\F

Fourth Quarter Third quarter ~ Second quarter First quarter
RS E=ZF E-FF E—FF
HKS$’million HK$’ million HK$’million HKS$’million
BEBT BEAT BEATL BEEBT

TURNOVER R

Restaurants: B

Japanese restaurants AXBEE 77.6 80.2 76.4 83.1
Chinese restaurants R EEE 455 42.9 43.0 51.3
Western and other restaurants  TAz\EFE & H b Z 2 26.0 38.4 27.9 31.1
Food court counters ERESEM 42.6 22.4 15.4 17.4
Franchise restaurants RS E R 58.9 61.8 58.9 63.4
250.6 245.7 221.6 246.3
Industrial catering TEZE 16.1 10.5 10.5 11.6
Food wholesale Rmit# 12.0 10.4 10.3 9.3
Food and catering business BYREBHER 278.7 266.6 242.4 267.2
Food souvenir business BEmFEER 20.4 28.0 13.6 16.4
Property investment business ¥ & %1% - - - -
Total 5T 299.1 294.6 256.0 283.6
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued
Same Store Performance

Below is a table of comparison of the Group’s same store performance
(Note 3) of its restaurants, industrial catering business and food souvenir
business in terms of their aggregate turnover for the first, second, third
and fourth quarters of 2019 and 2018:

SAME STORE TURNOVER
First quarter

Second quarter

Third quarter

Fourth quarter

Whole year

EIEEEE
E—ZFFE
EEFE
E=FF
EusESy
2F

Details of the Group’s same store performance (Note 3) of its restaurants,
industrial catering business and food souvenir business in terms of
turnover for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2019 and 2018

are as follows:

SAME STORE TURNOVER - EEE -
First quarter E—FE
Restaurants: ZEE
Japanese restaurants B &8
Chinese restaurants B
Western and other restaurants ANERE K EMmERE
Food court counters ERESEM
Franchise restaurants R
Industrial catering THEWR
Restaurants and industrial BENTE
catering business BERER
Food souvenir business R F %%

Note 3: Same store performance is compared on the basis of those restaurants/shops/

outlets which were in place in the periods of 2019 and 2018 only.

70 FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED ZS5EER A d

B3O EE -

B -

[ElE 2

TRAELEEEE  ITREKE¥BLRRFRE
EBN_E-NFR-_ZT-N\FE— F=-
FoRENFERELEREN S 2 REXRE (K
FE3) Z LB

2019 Change 2018
—2-h%F 28 T N\F
HK$’million % HK$’ million

BEAERL Bt BEBTT

230.7 -4.6% 241.7
207.5 -3.7% 2156.5
238.3 +26.3% 188.7
234.9 -13.8% 272.5
997.9 +4.9% 951.3

AEEELE IT¥EHEBKRRRFEELER
T ENFH_ZE-NFE— FZ -F=K
FNEEHREEEM S 2RERR(MIEI)FIB
I

For the three months ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HL=EA
2019 Change 2018
—E-NEF # —E—)\F
HK$’million % HK$’ million
BEER Btk BEAT

-3.4% 78.2
-8.5% 47.7
-0.7% 14.0
+7.4% 17.4
-8.6% 56.7
-4.9% 214.0
+7.7% 11.6
-4.2% 225.6
-8.6% 16.1
-4.5% 241.7

M3 : AERAERN - Z-NFRE-_Z-N\FEHHEE
EIREER/ BB LR -



Management Discussion and Analysis B2 ER Kk S

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued

Same Store Performance — Continued

SAME STORE TURNOVER - BEERE—
Second quarter EoFE
Restaurants: BEE
Japanese restaurants BXEEE
Chinese restaurants P B
Western and other restaurants AXEEREMER
Food court counters ERESEAM
Franchise restaurants B sZm
Industrial catering TEZERK
Restaurants and industrial catering ~ &BE & T2
business BRRETS
Food souvenir business BEmFEEB
SAME STORE TURNOVER - EE&EEE—
Third quarter FE=EE
Restaurants: BEE -
Japanese restaurants A&k
Chinese restaurants P EEE
Western and other restaurants AXEEREMER
Food court counters ERESEAM
Franchise restaurants BB
Industrial catering TEZER
Restaurants and industrial BRENT
catering business BERET
Food souvenir business RMFEED

MO -&
EEE-#
EE 4

For the three months ended 30 June
BEAA=+THL=M@EA
2019 Change 2018
—ZE-NF 2% —ETN\F
HK$’million % HK$’ million
BEBT Bkl BEET

-0.1% 721
-10.3% 38.8
+17.6% 14.7

+5.8% 15.4
-10.0% 52.8

-3.0% 193.8
-10.8% 8.3

-3.3% 2021

-8.9% 13.4

-3.7% 2156.5

For the three months ended 30 September
BEAA=THLE=M@EA
2019 Change 2018
—E-hEF 23 —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’ million
BEERL Btk BEBT

+7.2% 67.0
-7.3% 37.1
+11.0% 16.3
-132.6% 141
+42.6% 356.2
+22.2% 169.7
-8.3% 8.4
+20.7% 178.1
+119.8% 10.6
+26.3% 188.7
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued

Same Store Performance — Continued

SAME STORE TURNOVER - [EE& 3 —
Fourth quarter FOEE
Restaurants: B
Japanese restaurants HAZEEE
Chinese restaurants R B EE
Western and other restaurants AXEERHEMER
Food court counters EREBEMN
Franchise restaurants T S £ B
Industrial catering THEWR
Restaurants and industrial catering &R T %
business BERERS
Food souvenir business R F %S
SAME STORE TURNOVER - B R R —
Whole year 25
Restaurants: BEE
Japanese restaurants BXEEE
Chinese restaurants P EEE
Western and other restaurants AXEEREMER
Food court counters ERESEAM
Franchise restaurants e Zm
Industrial catering TEZERK
Restaurants and industrial catering &8 & T 2
business BRRETS
Food souvenir business BRmFEED
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MO &
EEE-#
EE &

For the three months ended 31 December

BEt+=-A=+t—HL=EA

2019 Change 2018
—E-hF FE) —E-N\F
HK$’million % HK$’million

BEBT Antl BEBT
-10.1% 75.2
-14.5% 43.4
-33.2% 23.8

-9.6% 42.6
-23.0% 55.6
-16.1% 240.6
-12.1% 13.2
-15.9% 253.8
+14.4% 18.7
-13.8% 272.5

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+-A=+t—HLEE

2019 Change 2018
—E-hF #E) —ET-NF
HK$’million % HK$’million

BEBT [Easd BEBT
-5.1% 302.4
-6.5% 168.3
+9.0% 66.5

+72.8% 87.8
-9.3% 217.6
+2.8% 842.6
-5.2% 38.6
+2.4% 881.2
+36.2% 70.1
+4.9% 951.3




Management Discussion and Analysis B2 ER Kk S

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Turnover - Continued

Below is a table of comparison of the turnover by geographical locations
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

MO -w

EEE-#
TRABZ-_T-NER-_ZT—-N\E+_A8
SH—BIEERIIBME R D 2 SR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2019 Change 2018
—ZE-hF o) —ET-NF
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEBT ARt BEETT

TURNOVER - whole year EEE-2F
Macau SEPY 775.7 2.7% 797.5
Mainland China )i 101.3 -17.4% 122.6
Hong Kong &% 236.0 +10.8% 213.0
Taiwan = 29.3 +14,550.0% 0.2
Total st 1,142.3 +0.8% 1,133.3
Below is a table of comparison of the turnover of the Group by THXAAREB -"T—HhER-_ZE—N\FEE— -

geographical locations of the first, second, third and fourth quarters of

F- F-RFEOFERMWEUEI SO ZEE

2019 and 2018: AL
2019
—E-hEF
Fourth quarter Third quarter Second quarter First quarter
ENFEE E=FE E-FE E—ZFE
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BHEAR BHEAR BEAR HEAET
TURNOVER EER
Macau JEFY 188.8 206.0 180.6 200.3
Mainland China P B K 23.5 25.4 24.6 27.8
Hong Kong B 64.6 57.3 55.4 58.7
Taiwan = 6.1 7.1 7.3 8.8
Total “RET 283.0 295.8 267.9 295.6
2018
“E-NF
Fourth quarter Third quarter ~ Second quarter First quarter
M 3=3F e 2-F%
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HKS$’million
BEBT BEBT BEATL BEET
TURNOVER R
Macau P 204.7 208.5 181.3 203.0
Mainland China AR B KR 29.4 29.0 30.2 34.0
Hong Kong &) 64.8 571 44.5 46.6
Taiwan = 0.2 - - -
Total @zt 299.1 294.6 256.0 283.6
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Gross Margin (the Group’s Turnover less Food Costs)

The gross margin (being the Group’s turnover less food costs) of the
Group for the Year was about HK$797.0 million, representing a mild
increase of approximately 0.5% as compared to that of HK$793.2 million
for the year of 2018. The increase in gross margin was mainly attributable
to the turnover contribution from the Group’s property investment
business.

The gross margin ratio (being gross margin over turnover) of the Group
for the Year was about 69.8%, representing a mild decrease of 0.2%
as compared to that of last year of 70.0%. The slight decrease in gross
margin ratio was mainly attributable to an increase of some 1.5% in food
costs of the Group. The Group has over the last three years maintained
steady gross margin and gross margin ratio as follows:

GROSS MARGIN EF
First quarter F—FE
Second quarter BE-EFE
Third quarter E=FF
Fourth quarter FEUEE
Total st
Gross margin ratio * E R =

* Gross margin over turnover
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MO8 -&
ENR(AEEEXBERBYHAR)
RAFE  AEEBEF(AEEEETRR
IR AN ) #95797,000,00058 7T 8 - T — )\4F
793,200,000 7T )8 A 1E hn490.5% o FEFIIE N
DEZRARTEEMEREER  EEEE
Jgjﬁ °

RAFE » REBEFE(BNEFIBRAEER)
4/569.8% @ BEF70.0%EMRE0.2% ° E
FERBERIDEEREARAEBRYAA A LRL
15% - REBBEZF BHHEFBRENLE
FE - FHaT -

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLHFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hEF —E-NF —ET—tF
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’ million

BEETT BEET EYC

206.9 198.9 157.4

187.6 180.3 146.6

203.6 205.9 178.1

198.9 208.1 192.5

797.0 793.2 674.6

69.8% 70.0% 70.5%

ERMBRAE £



FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Gross Margin (the Group’s Turnover less Food Costs) -
Continued

Below is a table of comparison of the gross margin (being the Group’s
turnover less food costs) of the first, second, third and fourth quarters of
2019 and 2018:

GROSS MARGIN EF
First quarter E—FF
Second quarter EFE
Third quarter F=FF
Fourth quarter FUEE
Total @st

Gross Operating Profit (the Group’s Turnover less Food Costs
and Direct Operating Costs)

The gross operating profit (being the Group’s turnover less food
costs and direct operating costs) of the Group for the Year was about
HK$123.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 15.6% as
compared to that of last year of HK$146.8 million. The decrease in gross
operating profit was mainly attributable to the increase in direct operating
profit of the Group’s food and catering business, while the gross
operating profit ratio dropped by 2.2% due to increase of some 4.1% in
direct operating expenses. The Group’s gross operating profit and gross
operating profit ratio for the last three years are as follows:

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT K E R
First quarter E—FFE
Second quarter E_FE
Third quarter FE==FF
Fourth quarter FOEE
Total Bt

Gross operating profit ratio * KR T e

# Gross operating profit over turnover

O -
ENR(AEEEXRBRBWALR) -4

TRUEB-_Z-NFR_FT-N\FE—F
Z REREOFEZEN(NAKEREEXER
BRYIKA)

2019 Change 2018
—E-hEF #E) —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEERT Btk BEBTT
206.9 +4.0% 198.9
187.6 +4.0% 180.3
203.6 -1.1% 205.9
198.9 —4.4% 208.1
797.0 +0.5% 793.2

RBREERN(FEBLEXEERBYRAREE
KEHA)
AEERAFELETHN(NAEELEXTR
BN R B &K ) #)/123,900,000%
JT * B 146,800,000 TTH D £915.6% ° &
EEFRLODEERBEARAEBER NERE
Bz HEELERREM  MEEEFNEREE
KBRS A4 1% RBE2.2%  AEEBEE
=7 ERE TR RACEEFEH AT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLHFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —E-NF —E—+F
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’ million

BEBT BEBT BEETT

38.6 45.8 32.0

21.3 26.5 20.0

35.5 38.8 40.8

28.5 35.7 44.0

123.9 146.8 136.8

10.8% 13.0% 14.3%
# EERIR AL SRR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Gross Operating Profit (the Group’s Turnover less Food Costs
and Direct Operating Costs) - Continued

Below is a table of comparison of the gross operating profit (being the
Group’s turnover less food costs and direct operating costs) of the first,
second, third and fourth quarters of 2019 and 2018:

FA 5 OB -
REA) -/

BRI R ERGERA) :

REEFN(FEEEXEBRRYR AR EE

TREB-_Z-NFR_Z-N\FE— F
ZEoREOFEZELENAEEEE

2019 Change 2018
—E-hEF ZE) —ET-N\F
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEEBT ApLt BEET

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT KEEF
First quarter EF—FE 38.6 -15.7% 45.8
Second quarter E-FE 21.3 -20.0% 26.5
Third quarter EF=FE 35.5 -8.2% 38.8
Fourth quarter FENEE 28.5 -20.2% 35.7
Total “Et 123.9 -15.6% 146.8

EBITDA

The negative EBITDA of the Group after and before depreciation on right-
of-use assets for the Year were approximately HK$275.5 million and
HK$134.3 million respectively as compared to EBITDA of HK$17.9 million
for the year of 2018. The negative EBITDA was mainly attributable to (i)
the loss attributable to owners of the Group’s food souvenir business of
some HK$18.1 million; (i) a net fair value loss of some HK$20.2 million
derived from its Key Investment Property; (iii) the HQ Disposal Loss of
some HK$140.6 million derived from the disposal of its Hengain Land; (iv)
the loss from written off/impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
of some HK$62.1 million including the loss from the closure of the
Group’s food court-Foodium at West Kowloon Station and its restaurants
in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Hong Kong and Taiwan; and (v) impairment loss
on right-of-use assets of food and catering business of some HK$59.3
million.

The Group’s negative EBITDA/EBITDA and EBITDA against turnover ratio
over the last three years are as follows:

(Negative EBITDA)/EBITDA (BEBITDA) /EBITDA

EBITDA against turnover ratio EBITDAMEE] & ¥ 5L K
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EBITDA

RAFE  AEERERBEEENERNE
2 B EBITDA % 7l 4 A& 275,500,000 7 7T &
134,300,0005 7 » M=% —/\4 A17,900,000
BIL o BEBITDAF ZERERNR R FEED
2 ARNEBEA AL EE418,100,0008 7T
WEEXREMEEE 2 AARBEBERIFREY
20,200,000 7 (i ERESLELZES
& E51849140,600,00078 7T ¢ (V)% - BE &
RAEMSE R, R E 5B 462,100,000 7T
BREAEBERANEWZERES - ERIRY
MEREMN -HKE BAERAEZEBEEN
EiE RVBRYREREBERBEEERES
18 #959,300,000/ 7T °

REBEBE =97 BEBITDA/EBITDAKEBITDA
MY EEB 2 LLEHHMT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLHFE

2019 2018 2017
—ZE-hF —E-NF —E—+F
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’million

BEATT BEEIT EEY-v
(134.3) 17.9 83.4
(11.8)% 1.6% 8.7%




FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Net (Loss)/Profit

The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$376.8 million as compared to the loss attributable
to owners of the Company for last year of HK$60.1 million. The loss
attributable to owners of the Company was mainly attributable to the
various losses as set out above.

The (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company and (loss)/profit
attributable to owners of the Company against turnover ratio over the last
three years are as follows:

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of KA FEH AFE(L (E51E)
the Company gl

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of XA FIEA AJEML (B1E),/
the Company against turnover ratio & M A% &4 2 &AL &

MO8 -&

(B8), BH 38

RAEAEE  ARRBEABREEBEEN S
376,800,000/ 7T + L EFRI AR QT A A
&5 E51860,100,00078 7T ° KR RIER AL
BRDEBRAR EXHSEERE -

BEZFARTER ARMSE(BER),SEF &R
NRIGEAR ARMEER,(BB) BE &R E %
o

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+t—BLFE
2019 2018 2017
ZB-hEF —E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’ million HK$’million HKS$'million
BEET AEET BEAT

(376.8) (60.1) 11.0

(33.0)% (5.3)% 1.2%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - Continued FA 5 RS — 40
Net (Loss)/Profit - Continued (F58) BRBE-#
Below is a table of comparison of the results attributable to owners of TREBE-_ZT—HLFEH_ZT—-NFE— F
the Company of the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2019 and = - 5= RFENEE 7 AN EIHES AE(EELE -
2018:
2019 Change 2018
—ZE-hF e —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEER Bk AEBIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO Z A ®|#H AFE(L (E18),/
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY gl
First quarter E—FE (17.6) N/AT i 3 6.2
Second quarter E-_FE (52.1) +146.9% (21.1)
Third quarter F=FE (141.0) +1,019.0% (12.6)
Fourth quarter ENEE (166.1) +409.5% (32.6)
The Year NEE (376.8) +527.0% (60.1)

Details of the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company for the RAREE - KA THEB AFEL (EIB) 5 F 5

Year are as follows: B
2019 Change 2018
—E-hEF #E) —E-NF
HK$’million % HK$’ million
BEBT Antt BEATT
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO A& B#H AW (FE),
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY g
Food and catering business RYI RERE (174.9) +522.4% (28.1)
Food souvenir business RmFEEB (18.1) -3.2% (18.7)
Property investment business YR EER (169.4) N/A“ 3@ A 2.7
Other revenue, corporate payrolland  E iz - AFEH S &
unallocated expenses RABLFS (14.4) -10.0% (16.0)
Total 5T (376.8) +527.0% (60.1)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Net (Loss)/Profit - Continued

Details of the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

MIEEIE -

(BR), =R EE-F
ZE-NFH_ZT-NFE—FZ -F=R
BEOEFEARNREE ARG (BER),SF2#

BT
2019
—E-hE
Fourth quarter Third quarter Second quarter First quarter
ENEFE BE=ZFE EoFE E—FE
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BHEAR BHEAR BEAR BHEAR
(LOSS)/PROFIT RATEE AES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO (&518),&Al
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Food and catering business B N BEER (103.0)
Food souvenir business BRFEES (10.6)
Property investment business ) %% & £ (47.8)
Other revenue, corporate payroll Efbizs « R a1EFHE K&
and unallocated expenses AoEHAX 4.7)
Total HEt (166.1)
2018
—T-N\F
Fourth quarter Third quarter ~ Second quarter First quarter
BNEE E=FF FEFE F—FF
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’million HK$’million
BEETL BEET BEBT BEBT
(LOSS)/PROFIT EAREBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO Pk (EE), /A
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Food and catering business BRI N B ER 0.5 (3.7) (22.4) (2.5)
Food souvenir business BEMFEES 6.9) (2.8) (4.9) (4.1)
Property investment business 41 2#% & %7 (20.4) (2.9) 10.3 15.7
Other revenue, corporate payroll Eizs « RalFHE Kk
and unallocated expenses RO (5.8) (3.2) 4.1) 2.9
Total 4t (32.6) (12.6) 21.1) 6.2
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Net (Loss)/Profit - Continued

Details of a breakdown of the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company by geographical locations for the Year are as follows:

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 74 B#H AR (FE),

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY el
Macau P!
Mainland China Sieip N
Hong Kong B
Taiwan =
Total 5T

Below is a table of comparison of the results attributable to owners of the
Company by geographical locations of the first, second, third and fourth
quarters of 2019 and 2018:

Fourth quarter

FNEE
HK$’million
BHEBT
(LOSS)/PROFIT KAREBAE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15 (E548) 8 A
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Macau B P 3.8
Mainland China i (59.4)
Hong Kong i (75.9)
Taiwan = (34.6)
Total fBEr (166.1)
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Third quarter

MO8 -&

(B8, B FE-&

RAERE - RIBAB RS 2 AR AES AR
5 (B518),/#F 2 RSB T

2019 Change 2018
—B—hE 28 —E-N\F
HK$’million % HKS$’ million
BAEET Btk AEBTT
(16.0) N/ATiE A 30.1
(188.1) +144.3% (77.0)
(127.8) +1,304.4% 9.1)
(44.9) +995.1% 4.1)
(376.8) +527.0% (60.1)

TRUEBR-Z-NFR-_ZT-N\FE—-F
O FERFNFERRMBMES D CARA
ZZEPNAEE S

2019
—E-hE
Second quarter
E-ZE
HK$’million
HEAT

First quarter
E—FE
HK$’million
HE#ER

B=FF
HK$’million
BEET

5.6
(110.5)
(32.1)
(4.0)

(141.0)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued
Net (Loss)/Profit — Continued

R 35 1RA — o
(&518), SR FE - A

2018
—E-N\F
Fourth quarter Third quarter ~ Second quarter First quarter
EMERE E=Fg E-Eg 538
HK$' million HK$' million HK$’'million HK$’million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(LOSS)/PROFIT AARHEEAEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO (B518) % #
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Macau P 22.6 7.8 (1.6) 1.3
Mainland China Hp B K e 41.2) (16.9) (6.9) (12.0)
Hong Kong 55 (9.9 (3.5) (12.6) 16.9
Taiwan a4 (4.1 - - -
Total MBET (32.6) (12.6) 21.1) 6.2
(Loss)/Earnings per Share R (EBR)&F

The Net Ordinary Operating Loss for the Year was approximately
HK$360.0 million as compared to the Net Ordinary Operating Loss
for last year of HK$55.1 million. Such Net Ordinary Operating Loss
for the Year was mainly due to (i) the loss attributable to the Group’s
food souvenir business; (i) the loss from written off/impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment of some HK$62.1 million including the loss
from the closure of the Group’s food court-Foodium at West Kowloon
Station and its restaurants in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Hong Kong and
Taiwan; (i) impairment loss on right-of-use assets of food and catering
business of some HK$59.3 million; and (iv) the HQ Disposal Loss of
some HK$140.6 million.

RAFE - FiBEEE1EFEEL A£360,000,000
B MEAFRSBGTRLCEBEFE
55,100,000 7T - A FEHEHEB@ERLEEE
BEHEFEZANNAEBRAFEEBKEMLS
B ()\WE - BEREEMEER REESRE
4762,100,000/8 70 * BIEASERENEMZ
ERES-ZRIREREMN - HKE - BF
LBz EBEENEE (I RUYRERED
5 PR & &R (B 5 18 959,300,000 7 ¢ K (iv)
TEE H & 518 47140,600,000/8 7T °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

(Loss)/Earnings per Share - Continued

Set out below are the Net Ordinary Operating Loss with Net Ordinary
Operating Loss ratio (Net Ordinary Operating Loss against turnover) for
the last three years ended 31 December 2019:

BB EEIRFR

BBREEBRFERY
LEFEH R

Net Ordinary Operating Loss

Net Ordinary Operating Loss
against turnover ratio

The loss per Share of the Company for the Year was some HK54.28
cents as compared to loss per Share of HK8.66 cents for the year of
2018. The Group (loss)/earnings per Share over the last three years are as
follows:

FR(ER), B -—&EX

(Loss)/Earnings per Share — basic

The loss per Share of the Company based on the Net Ordinary Operating
Loss for the Year was some HK51.85 cents as compared to the loss per
Share of HK7.94 cents for the year of 2018. Below is the loss per Share
based on the Net Ordinary Operating Loss over the last three years:

BREREE
EREE A

Net Ordinary Operating
Loss per Share — basic

82 FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £ S2&£EBHER AT

MO -

BR(EE) B -&
TREINBE_FT-NFT_A=1+—"HILBE
E-EFEzERKEBRFRERERES
BRFELX(EREEERFEAHEXRR)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —E-NF —ZE—+F
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’million

BEBT BEBTT BEBTT
(360.0) (55.1) (16.2)
(31.5)% (4.9)% (1.7)%

ARABINAFE 2 BRERL R54.288 1l - M
i —F- N\FRAIRERERS66E - A&
ERE=FER(BR) BNHEINMNT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —ZE-N\EF —ZT—+F
HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL Al Bl
(54.28) (8.66) 1.59

RAEE  ARRIRBEREEHEFETE
2 BREEN A51.85811 - M—Z=—N\FllA
BREBEAE7.9458M - TREIBEZFIRE
TREEBIEFENE 2 EREE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —ZE-NEF —ZE—+F
HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL AL AL
(51.85) (7.94) (2.33)




Management Discussion and Analysis B2 ER Kk S

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Cash Flows

The cash inflow from operating activities of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$152.3 million, representing an
increase of 276.0% as compared to that of 2018 of HK$40.5 million. The
increase in cash inflow from operating activities was mainly attributable
to the classification of payment of rental from operating activities to
financing activities. The Group’s cash inflow from operating activities over
the last three years are as follows:

Cash inflow from operating activities & BB TSRS T

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has recognized on its balance sheet
a total right-of-use assets of HK$303.3 million, and a total lease liabilities
of HK$385.2 million, in which lease liabilities payable within one year
were HK$127.0 million that were recognized as current liabilities with
considerable adverse impact on the Group’s net current asset level as
shown below. The net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2019 were approximately HK$75.7 million, details of which are set out as
follows:

Total current assets MBNEEBE
Total current liabilities without lease 1B E B 1§ RS L F 1658
liabilities under HKFRS 16 RetHEREZ
mE BB
Net current assets without lease RIEEBMEHREERFE 165
liabilities under HKFRS 16 REtHEBEZ
mEBEFE

REBEE B EERE 1657
AAEZEERENHES
(=)

nE(aE) EEFE

Current portion of lease liabilities
under HKFRS 16 (Note)

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Note:  Please refer to note 34 to the Financial Statements on pages 219 to 222 of this

annual report.

B3O EE -

}Eﬁmug
AEEREBEE_Z—NF+A=1+T—HLHF
B2 & EEMEIR €M AL A152,300,000
BT B ZZF — J\4F 40,500,000 % JT 3 0
276.0% ° KEEBMSRESRAEBMDEES

AREEEEHMEHEN A GEEME T -
AEFBE=ZFRLEEHABRERALT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t—HLEE

2019 2018 2017
—E-hEF —N\F —tF
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEBTT AEET AEET
152.3 40.5 15.0
REN(AE) BEFE

RZFB-NFT_A=1+—8 AEEREE
7 B B R R 8 A #E & A& 4 %7303,300,00078
7T R 7H & B B4 %8385,200,0008 7T -+ HH -

AR —FN{EE ZHE B {E127,000,0008 7T

ERRERDEE  UAEBRBEEFEK
FZERTFZEFATX - RZZE—NF
+ZA=+—H  AKERHEEFELNAE
75,700,000/ 7 + FIEEZIOT
2019 Change 2018
o 28  —FT-N\F
HK$’million % HK$’million
BEATT ANt BEET
409.7 42 1% 707 .1
(358.4) -14.0% (416.6)
-82.3% 290.5
(127.0) N/AT @ A -
(75.7) N/AT 3 290.5

MisE : B2EAFHRFE21022228 7 K HREM 34 ©
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets - Continued

The net current liabilities of the Group was mainly attributable to a
change of accounting standard under HKFRS 16 “Right-of-use asset”
which has considerable impact on the Group’s balance sheet and on the
disclosure requirements for the Group under the Listing Rules. HKFRS
16 “Right-of-use assets”, which superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” and
related interpretations, has since 1 January 2019 introduced a single
lessee accounting model and required a lessee to recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognize
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS
17. The net current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 would
be proximately HK$51.3 million if the Group’s leases are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

Net Assets

The net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were approximately
HK$641.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately 34.6%
as compared to those of HK$981.5 million for the year of 2018. The
decrease in net assets was mainly attributable to the Group’s loss
attributable to owners of the Company of some HK$376.8 million for the
Year. The net assets and net assets per Share of the Group as at 31
December 2019, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Net assets

BEFH

Net assets per Share — basic FREEFE AR
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MO8 -&

RE(EE), EEFHE-#
AEEZABDEABFEIEREARE B ER
SREBIEICH[ERAEEE BTN 2 iRES
B BEYAEEEEABERELETMRABETAR
EEREERTEEAFE - BT NF—AB
—BR BEMBHREEFI6HIFEAEE
EIRRESe:HENE17RHE | REEZ
I ANBE—F&BAgEEERIIE AR
ABBHBBI2@AZIEHERREERA
& BRIFEHEEEARBELE - ABME -
BIED BV ISRE LR E 165 - ABABRE
REAREE(RRERAEFEREBHAEEE)
rHEsGB(RREEEEXHAERE) -
bt AAREREABEEENEREEAR
FE UTEHEABZREERNBALEH
DRFBED  EREREXRTEN - I
FAREENMEABYVISREBEREENE -
SR RIE S A ERIE AR ER E B g R A
BIE17SEnEpKeflEavflEarikfAg
SERBEETE c MAEEHEEREAELNE
B EAEI7THROBEALCERE  AIR=F
—NWFE+-A=Z+—8  AEBZRBEETF
F 15 49/551,300,000/8 7T °

EEFE

REBR -_ZT—NF+_A=+—HBZEE
FEE4) A641,700,000 7 B_ZE— N\F
981,500,000/ TTI8 L 4134.6% » & EFE R
DEBRBARAFEARARRER ARGAEE
E51849376,800,000/8 7T - AEER =T — A1
FF-\FRZF—tEFTZA=t—H
ZEAEFHEMBREEFHENT

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2019 2018 2017
—E-hF —E-N\F T+t
HK$’million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEET AEET AEET
641.7 981.5 1,071.1
HK$ HK$
BT BT
1.414 1.543
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
During the Year, the Group’s principal activities were in the sales of food
and catering, food souvenir and property investment.

Food and Catering Business
The operational financials of the Group’s food and catering business for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Turnover S

Cost of sales FHEM A
Gross margin EF

Direct operating expenses BEESERX
Gross operating profit $ LR

Gross operating profit margin (%) K BT 2 (%)

RRRHEB ANEHER

Loss attributable to owners
of the Company

During the Year, the Group’s food and catering business contributed
some HK$1,035.5 million turnover representing about 90.7% of turnover
of the Group. The increase in turnover for the Group’s food and catering
business was mainly attributable to the increases in sales from the
Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong. More details on this business are set
out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 14 of
this annual report.

EELOB
AEBERAEENIEZXEBESRMEERE
R BMFEAMRDERE -

BN RBREHR
BE_Z-NFR-_ZT-NF+-A=+—H
HFE - AEBRMEERER KLU BH
BT

2019 Change 2018
ZE-hEF BE) —E—N\&E
HK$’million % HK$'million
BEEET Bk BEET
1,035.5 -1.8% 1,054.9
(316.6) -0.9% (319.5)
718.9 —2.2% 735.4
(598.0) +3.6% (577.0)
120.9 -23.7% 158.4
11.7% -3.3% 15.0%
(174.9) +522.4% (28.1)

RAFE  AEERVREREGEMEES
#91,035,500,000% 7T + HHE R AL B & EFEL
90.7% - AEBRY N EREREHEE 21N
DEZARAEE BB EEHEREM -5
B ES 2 ELHBHNAFRECE14E[ =
R | —&n -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued

Food and Catering Business - Continued

Restaurant Chain

During the Year, the Group opened 3 new franchise restaurants, 12 food
court counters, but closed down 4 self-owned restaurants, 1 food court
and 2 franchise restaurants. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
54 restaurants (including 28 self-owned restaurants and 26 franchise
restaurants) and 23 food court counters.

Analysis of the number of restaurants for the last three years and as at
27 March 2020, being the date of this annual report (excluding the joint
venture’s restaurant) are listed as follows:

EEOE-w

BYURERREK &

EEERE

RAERE » AEERMRIEIISEEERE - 12
MERESEMN - HBEF4EBEREEEE - 1
MERBESMOMBFEEERE - RZE—NIEF
+ZA=+—8  AEE#HEE4HERE(BIE28
B REAEE N CHIFHHE L L) N33k
REGIEAL -

BEZFRR-_ZE-_ZTF=A - F++HH(KEFER
BH) 2 EBE8E (TEEAECEEE) 2O
FHBEHIIAT

As at 31 December

As at the date RT=A=t+-H
of this report 2018 2017
RERERH —E-N\F e
Number of restaurants ot
Japanese restaurants (note a) AR EE (Fiza) 9 11 1
Chinese restaurants (note b) FAZRE(fi5EDb) 7 9 9
Western and other restaurants (note c) P R E R (Hiskc) 6 9 14
Food court counters (note d) EREBER (HiEd) 23 12 4
Franchise restaurants (note €) BHELEE(Mie) 25 24 28
70 65 66
Industrial catering (note f) TEER(E) 3 4 4
73 69 70
Total areas of self-owned and franchise BEXEEEER 207,404 sq.ft. 233,256 sq.ft. 259,245 sq.ft. 282,031 sq.ft.
restaurants (sa.ft.) (note g) BB BEE FAR TAR AR FAR
(EFR) (HEg)

Turnover against total areas of restaurants & ¥R EEAETE Not applicable

(per sq.ft. per annum) (BEEBFHR) TERA | LGRS | HK$4,060% T HKS3,172 BT
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued
Food and Catering Business - Continued
Restaurant Chain — Continued

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

Note f:

Note g:

As at 31 December 2019, Japanese restaurants included 6 Edo Japanese
Restaurants, 2 Senkizen Japanese Restaurants and 2 Musashi Japanese
Restaurants.

As at 31 December 2019, Chinese restaurants included 1 Turtle Essence, 1 “456”
Modern Shanghai Cuisine Restaurant, 2 Shiki Hot Pot Restaurants, 1 Seasons Bright
Restaurant, 1 Good Fortune Cantonese Kitchen, 1 Fortune Inn Restaurant and
1 “Canton 12” Restaurant.

As at 31 December 2019, Western and other restaurants included 1 Madeira
Portuguese Restaurant, 5 Azores Restaurants and 1 sandwich bar.

As at 31 December 2019, food court counters included 2 Toei Delights Japanese
food courters, 2 Hundred Taste Kitchen Taiwanese food counters, 1 Le Sourire food
counter, 1 Hua Xia Chinese food counter, 1 Azores Express food counter, 1 Soupot
food counter, 3 “Foodland” food counters, 1 “Canton Roast” food court counter,
1 Bari-Uma & Sinsaeat Kitchen food court counter and 10 food counters-Food
Playground.

As at 31 December 2019, franchise restaurants included 4 Pacific Coffee shops,
6 Pepper Lunch, 10 Bari-Uma ramen, 2 Fu-Un-Maru, 3 Mad for Garlic Restaurants
and 1 Bistro Seoul Restaurant.

As at 31 December 2019, industrial catering included 3 student/staff canteens.

The total gross floor area as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 had been calculated
with exclusion of 6,158 sq.ft. gross floor area of a joint venture’s restaurant.

BEDBE-#
BYREBREK-&
R E

Mizta

Bt

Mt -

FitsEd

Fitste -

B S

MisEg

RZE-NAF+ZA=+—0 BRAEBERFEHT
FRARE 2T =58 U ko et 5 =0
#-

REZE-AF+-A=+—H FRAEELE1HE
B 1R RARIFNREX » 2[ME NG - 18
FESEXR  1HARDE IBERF B+ =
B|BE -

RIFE-NAF+-A=+—H BAAREGBEER
FIRNSEEERE SHEHFREERIB=CA
[

RZTE—NE+-A=+—0 EZRESEBEIEE2
BARRE T N\BEBREREMN  2@E®RBARAHIES
EBEREMN - 1EEN « A MEERIEN - 1@
ERXERIEN - 1ERDHRBRPIEERIEM 1
ESREEREN - SEERBIZERIEN - 1@ £
1B |Z= R EISHER - 1{@Bari-Uma&Sinsaeat Kitchen
ZRESHEN K 10fEFood PlaygroundE B HERL ©

RZZT—NFE+-A=Z1+—RH  HHCEEBRRE
AR T FMBEE - 6FAEE « 10MAS BISHL
M~ 2RSEEAL  3fIMad for GarlicZER 1K EE o
B/ MEERE -

RZB-NFF+ZA=1+—0  IXERBEHE
£BTRE o

RZTE-NFRZZT-N\F+_A=1+—HZH#Z
LEBEEMKR—REELEXEREEMETES,158F
TR -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued

Food and Catering Business - Continued

Restaurant Chain — Continued

Analysis of the number of restaurants and food court counter by
geographical locations for the last three years (excluding the joint
venture’s restaurant) are listed as follows:

BEOBE-#
BYREBREL &
EEEE

BEZFRWEBENLEI D ZERERERESGE
B (TBREEEREER) ZAMEINMT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—TN\F —T—tF
31 40
11 15
14 11
1 -
57 66

Number of restaurants Z2EHE
Macau SEPY
Mainland China Fh B A B
Hong Kong 'k
Taiwan =
Total et
Number of food court counters EXRESEMNEE
Macau SEPY
Mainland China SlEy N
Hong Kong aBE
Taiwan =y
Total et

Details of the Group’s restaurants are set out in the section headed “List
of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores” on pages 249 to 260 of this
annual report.

Industrial Catering

The Group’s industrial catering business derives from its provision of
canteen services for universities and school with a modest turnover of
some HK$40.7 million for the Year, representing a decrease of 16.4%, as
compared to that of HK$48.7 million for the year of 2018. The decrease
in turnover of industrial catering business was mainly attributable to the
closure of a Food Paradise canteen in University of Hengqin Island during
the Year. More details on this business are set out in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 14 of this annual report.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued

Food and Catering Business - Continued

Food Wholesale

The Group’s wholesale business of Japanese food and materials
was profitable for the Year with some turnover of HK$44.7 million,
representing an increase of some 6.4% as compared to that of HK$42.0
million for the year of 2018. The increase in turnover of food wholesale
business was mainly attributable to the increase of sales from existing
and new customers during the Year. More details on this business are
set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 14
of this annual report.

Food Souvenir Business
The operational financials of the Group’s food souvenir business for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Turnover LT

Cost of sales SHE A

Gross margin EF

Direct operating expenses BEEKERT

Gross operating loss KEEE

Gross operating loss margin (%) LEEBE (%)

Loss attributable to owners KAREE AEILERE

of the Company

EBEOBE-w

BYURERER &

Rp it &
AEBZBARYE RV BHESNAFTES
ERIGE S - B EEEH A44,700,0008 7 © B
= — A\ 42,000,000/ 018 11 496.4% - R¥HE
BEBEEBIENNDEEARAFTERER
FEPZIHEEMNAY - ELERZES
EEHNAFRFEOE14B THERE -5 -

BmFEREE
BE-T-NFR-F-\ET-A=+-8
LFE  AEEARFELH 2 EEI BB
T

2019 Change 2018

A e
HK$’million % HKS$'million

BEEET AL BEBTL

100.7 +28.4% 78.4
(27.9) +38.1% (20.2)

72.8 +25.1% 58.2
R)) +8.2% (69.4)

PXe)) ~79.5% (11.2)

2.1)% +12.2% (14.3)%

RERN ~3.2% (18.7)
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued

Food Souvenir Business - Continued

The Group’s food souvenir business has continued to improve with a
healthy increase in turnover (in terms of volume and geographical areas)
with slight reduction of its loss in the Year, since the food souvenir
business was still adversely affected by the high rental and staff costs.
The Group’s food souvenir business has in the Year recorded a total
turnover of some HK$100.7 million with a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of some HK$18.1 million (comprising of operation losses
of some HK$8.8 million and an impairment loss on right-of-use assets of
some HK$9.3 million), as against the turnover of some HK$78.4 million
with a loss attributable to owners of the Company of some HK$18.7
million for the year of 2018. The increase in turnover of the food souvenir
business was mainly due to the increases of turnover from the new Yeng
Kee bakery shop at Macau Airport Terminal and from its distribution sales
in Mainland China. Further details of the Group’s food souvenir business
are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
14 of this annual report.

During the Year, the Group closed down 3 Yeng Kee Bakery shops in
Macau. Analysis of the number of Yeng Kee Bakery shops/kiosks for the
last three years by geographical location is listed as follows:

Number of Yeng Kee bakery HKEBRIEH
shops/kiosks HEZHEH

Macau JEFT

Mainland China o B A e

Total 5T

Details of the Group’s food souvenir shops/kiosks are set out in the
section headed “List of Food Souvenir Shops/Kiosks” on pages 261 to
262 of this annual report.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - continued

Property Investment Business

As recently announced, with the renting out of its Key Investment
Property for a period of 8 years from commencement of the tenant’s
business or end of the rent free period (whichever is earlier), the tenant
has taken possession of the Key Investment Property, and should start
to pay rent from April 2020. During the Year, the Group’s property
investment business recorded a turnover of HK$6.1 million (2018: nil).
The Group’s net loss attributable to the Group’s property investment
business was some HK$169.4 million for the Year, as compared to
the profit of HK$2.7 million for the year of 2018. Such loss was mainly
attributable to the HQ Disposal Loss of some HK$140.6 million and net
fair value loss on the Key Investment Property of HK$20.2 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Key Investment Property (which comprises
of the whole of the ground floor to third floor and basement level 1 to 3
of the 6-storey commercial building at Centro Commercial E Turistico
“S. Paulo”, Largo), has been valued by an independent professional
valuer at some HK$560.0 million (31 December 2018: HK$505.0 million).
The Group has recorded the HQ Disposal Loss in the third and fourth
quarters of 2019 and a net fair value loss of some HK$20.2 million
(oeing a gross fair value loss of HK$23.0 million) in respect of the Key
Investment Property. More details on this business are set out in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 14 of this annual
report.

Details of the Group’s properties are set out in the section headed
“Group’s Properties” on pages 247 and 248 of this annual report.

Logistic Support and Human Resources

The Group’s central food and logistic processing centre in Macau has
become operational during the Year. The Group has also continued to
actively enhance its logistic support including food sourcing and food
processing facilities.

The management and staff teams have reduced during the Year with over
2,100 (2018: 2,200) people in Macau, Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan now. Remuneration packages including medical plan have been
and will be regularly reviewed with reference to market terms, individual
qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities. During the Year,
various training activities including operational safety and management
skills have been conducted to enhance operation efficiency.
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DIVIDENDS

As a Net Ordinary Operating Loss was incurred by the Group for the
Year and the considerable loss of revenue in the first quarter of 2020
from the temporary closure of many restaurants of the Group due to the
dire operating environment under Covid-19 infection, no dividend (2018:
special final dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share) has been recommended.
The total dividends for the year ended 31 December 2019 will amount to
nil (2018: HK2.0 cents per Share).

The Group’s operating cash flow increased considerably during the Year.
The dividend payout ratio based on the total dividends (all dividends
including interim, final and if any, special dividends) over the (loss)/profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the last three years are as
follows:

R B R (IR AN A A
BARERR,(BR)E)

Total dividend payout ratio (based
on the profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company)

The dividend payout ratio, based on the total dividends (all dividends
including interim, final and if any, special dividends) over the Net Ordinary
Operating (Loss)/Profit, for the last three years are as follows:

IR R (IR Rg =

(&B8),w M FEAE)

Total dividend payout ratio (based
on the Net Ordinary Operating
(Loss)/Profit)

MATERIAL LITIGATION
As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration (2018: nil).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its bankers.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$75.7 million (2018: net current assets of HK$290.5 million). As at 31
December 2019, the Group had bank deposits, bank overdraft, cash and
cash equivalents totaling HK$252.6 million (2018: HK$83.4 million), while
the Group’s restricted bank deposits amounted to HK$27.2 million (2018:
HK$24.2 million), all (2018: all) of which has been pledged to a bank for
guarantee given in lieu of paying rental deposit.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interest-bearing bank loans
of some HK$425.5 million (2018: HK$462.5 million). The Group’s
borrowings are made in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Patacas. Details
of the borrowings are set out in note 28 “Interest Bearing Borrowings” to
the financial statements on pages 210 to 212 of this annual report.

The Group’s gearing ratio represented by the Group’s net debts (total
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents) to the Group’s total equity as at
the year-end date over the last three years was as follows:

Gearing ratio

The increase in the Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 was
mainly due to the increase of net debts and the decrease of the Group’s
total equity.

The ratio of the total assets against total liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2019 was 1.59 (2018: 2.20).
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT UNDER
RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules,
the following loans and banking facilities (“Relevant Loan Agreements”),
which were in existence during the Year and granted by the Bank of
China Limited, Macau Branch and the Hang Seng Bank, Macau Branch
(“Lenders”) to certain wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company,
have the following specific performance covenant of the controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company:

(i) Under each of the Relevant Loan Agreements, a specific
performance covenant is imposed on Mr. Chan, being the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and his associates to
hold not less than 37% equity interest in the Company during the
term of each of the Relevant Loan Agreements.

(i) Failure to comply with the aforesaid covenant will constitute an
event of default under each of the Relevant Loan Agreements
and the Lenders shall have the right to cancel the relevant loan
and/or declare all or part of outstanding amounts thereunder,
together with accrued interest and all other sums payable, to be
immediately due and payable.

The Relevant Loan Agreements are as follows:

(i) A bank loan agreement which became effective on 23 November
2010, provides a mortgage loan in an initial aggregate amount
of approximately HK$236.81 million (equivalent to approximately
MOP243.91 million). This mortgage loan is repayable within 15
years from February 2011 on the terms and conditions therein
contained. As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding loan amount
was approximately HK$61.8 million (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$76.9 million).

(i) A bank loan agreement which became effective on 29 December
2015, provides an unsecured bank loan with a maximum facility of
HK$80.0 million. This bank loan is repayable within 5 years from
January 2016 on the terms and conditions therein contained.
As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding loan amount was
approximately HK$26.5 million (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$43.2 million).
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT UNDER
RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

A bank loan agreement which became effective on 21 April
2016, provides a mortgage loan in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$60.2 million (equivalent to MOP62.0 million).
This mortgage loan is repayable within 7 years from May 2016 on
the terms and conditions therein contained. As at 31 December
2019, the outstanding loan amount was approximately HK$30.0
million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$38.5 million).

A bank loan agreement which became effective on 18 December
2017, provides a mortgage loan in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$145.63 million (equivalent to MOP150.0
million). This mortgage loan is repayable within 7 years from 2018,
on the terms and conditions therein contained. During the Year,
the Group has fully repaid this bank loan (as at 31 December
2018: HK$41.6 million).

A bank facility letter which became effective on 21 April 2016,
provides a bank overdraft facility with a maximum facility of
approximately HK$38.83 million (equivalent to MOP40.0 million).
This bank overdraft has been updated and is repayable in April
2021 on the terms and conditions therein contained. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding bank overdraft was some
HK$36.0 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$25.5 million).

A banking facility letter which became effective on 15 August
2018, provides a mortgage loan, with 3 tranches in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$222.0 million, pursuant to which two
formal loan agreements with the same terms have been entered
into. This mortgage loan is repayable within 5-7 years after 3
months from the date of drawdown on the terms and conditions
contained therein. As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding loan
amount was approximately HK$153.6 million (as at 31 December
2018: HK$167.0 million).
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT UNDER

RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

(vij A bank loan agreement which became effective on 28 December
2018, provides a mortgage loan in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$97.08 million (equivalent to MOP100.0 million).
This mortgage loan is repayable within 5 years from December
2018, on the terms and conditions therein contained. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding loan amount was approximately
HK$97.1 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$48.6 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the total outstanding bank loans with the
abovementioned specific performance covenant were some HK$405.0
million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$441.3 million). If there is a breach
of the abovementioned specific performance covenant by Mr. Chan
and his associates, the Lenders will have the right to (i) declare all these
loans due to the Lenders thereunder and any other loan documents
containing a similar specific performance covenant on Mr. Chan and
his associates (together with any sum and accrued interest payable) to
become immediately due and payable; and (i) cancel all other remaining
bank facilities thereunder with the Lenders. As at 31 December 2019,
Mr. Chan and his associates held 41.31% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company. The Company shall continue to comply with its
disclosure requirement and reporting obligations under the Listing Rules
for so long as circumstances giving rise to such obligation continue to
exist.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s capital expenditures on the acquisitions of investment
properties and property, plant and equipment for the Year were nil (2018:
HK$61.8 million) and approximately HK$90.2 million (2018: HK$147.2
million) respectively.

The Group’s capital expenditures on the acquisitions of trademark,
franchise and royalties for the Year were nil (2018: HK$11.1 million),
approximately HK$0.9 million (2018: HK$0.3 million) and approximately
HK$0.1 million (2018: HK$1.3 million) respectively.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged its investment
properties in Macau to a bank in Macau to secure three mortgage loans
and a bank overdraft facility. The Group has also pledged two land and
buildings in Macau to another bank in Macau to secure two mortgage
loans. The Group has also as at that date pledged a bank deposit in
Hong Kong to a bank in Hong Kong to secure one bank loan. The Group
has also as at that date pledged bank deposits to banks in respect of its
bank guarantee given in lieu of paying rental deposit. Other than that, the
Group did not have any charges on assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged its investment
properties and land and building in Macau to a bank in Macau to secure
four mortgage loans and a bank overdraft facility. The Group has also
pledged two land and buildings in Macau to another bank in Macau to
secure two mortgage loans. The Group has also as at that date pledged
a bank deposit in Hong Kong to a bank in Hong Kong to secure one
bank loan. The Group has also as at that date pledged bank deposits
to banks in respect of its bank guarantee given in lieu of paying rental
deposit and another performance guarantee for the development of
investment properties under construction classified as held for sale.
Other than that, the Group did not have any charges on assets.

Details of the charges on assets are set out in note 23 “Restricted Bank
Deposits” to the financial statements on page 206 of this annual report
and note 28 “Interest Bearing Borrowings” to the financial statements on
pages 210 to 212 of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2018: nil).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any outstanding
hedging instrument. The Group would continue to monitor closely its
foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for hedging
facilities when necessary.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S COMPOSITION

The Group had no material changes in its composition during the Year.

FREFEEN
RZBE-NFF+ZA=+—8 A£ECEH
HUNRPIZIREYE T —RIRPIRTT ARG
CZHERBERR-BRITEXBE - AEET
EERUNRF ML RET T 5 —RHR
FIRTTARRISMIRIRBE R - AEETRF A
BEERURBEZRITEFRT —HEBBRITN
BiG—HRITEN - ARETERZARKE
SNEBEEER 2 RITERFARITEMRT
TRk o BRib 25N - RSB EAT ] B EEIAR -

RZE-N\FT_A=1+—8 AEEZER
HUNRMZREMEEIHMEEF T —RR
PISRTT ARG O IRIZ B E RN — R RITBE &
B AEETEERU R 2 FtE it g
FFH—ERPIRITUARGRIERBER - &
SETRRABEERURBTEZRITERT —
REBRITARE —HRITER - AEE D
RZARKREXNERRERS —HERS R
REFLHEZEZREMEIFL ZRITERRA
RITEMIBITER © BRUL 29 - NERBEA EAT
A& A o

BRBEERMZFHBEHNAFRFE206 8 2715
WRAM 23] ZRBIRITER I RAFHRFE210
E212B 2 MR A28 FTREE ] -

BARRAR
RZE-—NFT_A=1+—8 AEEILEF
MHABE(ZT—/\F &) -

L B

RZZE-NF+_A=+—H0 rEEILEE
MM REECEHRTA - AEBHEEZY
RESNERR LRBE - WL EEE LT
ko

FRERRLAFTEH

RAFE  AEEZREATERIAEAR
@JO

ANNUAL REPORT #% 2019 97



Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E#R LKk S5

EMPLOYEES

The Group employed, as at 31 December 2019, a total of 2,130 (2018:
2,283) full-time staff, in which 1,354 (2018: 1,411) full-time staff in
Macau, 373 (2018: 493) full-time staff in Mainland China, 324 (2018: 315)
full-time staff in Hong Kong and 79 (2018: 64) full-time staff in Taiwan.
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence, while the detailed remuneration packages for the employees
are determined by the management based on their performance.

An employee share option scheme of the Company was adopted on
8 June 2012 and effective for a period of 10 years since the date of
adoption. Details of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in notes 4(0) and 44 to the financial statements of this annual report.
The contributions to the retirement schemes charged to the consolidated
income statement during the Year was approximately HK$14.4 million
(2018: HK$11.8 million), after deducting forfeitures of approximately
HK$2.7 million (2018: HK$3.6 million). As at 31 December 2019, forfeited
contributions available to reduce future contributions amounted to
approximately HK$0.5 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$0.8 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 18 December 2019, the Group completed its disposal to an
independent third party for the whole of its Hengqgin Land at the
consideration of RMB300 million (equivalent to approximately HK$335.7
million) in cash. The net proceeds from the disposal were some
HK$327.1 million. Up to 31 December 2019, the Group has applied
HK$128.4 million of the net proceeds, details are as follows:
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—Z2-hEF
HK$’million
BEBT

39.6

88.8

Repayment of bank borrowings EERRITEER
Opening of new restaurants FRFTERE
Working capital LEED
Total st

128.4

The Group will further apply the remaining proceeds of HK$198.7 million
for the repayment of bank borrowings and opening of new restaurants, as
previously announced.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 20 May 2020 to Monday, 25 May 2020 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered,
for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2020 AGM. The record date for the 2020 AGM shall be 25 May
2020. In order to qualify as shareholders of the Company to attend, act
and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 19 May 2020.

In view of the recent developments relating to Covid-19 infection, the
Company strongly recommends the Shareholders intending to attend
the 2020 AGM to vote by filling in and submitting the proxy form, i.e.
to indicate their voting intention in the proxy form and designate the
chairman of the 2020 AGM as your proxy to vote on your behalf on site.
The form of proxy will be despatched to Shareholders and can also be
downloaded from the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk
and the Company’s website at www.fb.com.hk. To be valid, the form
of proxy must be deposited at the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, on Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the 2020 AGM or any adjourned meeting, as the
case may be.

The Company will also take the following precautions and control
measures at the 2020 AGM to protect the Shareholders from the risk of
infection:

a. Compulsory body temperature check will be taken for every
Shareholder or proxy at the entrance of the venue and anyone
with a body temperature of more than 37.3 degrees Celsius will
not be given access to the venue;

b. Every Shareholder or proxy is required to wear facial surgical
mask before entering into the venue and during their attendance
of the 2020 AGM; and

C. No refreshment will be served.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 246 of this
annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan See Kit, Johnny, aged 60, joined the Group in October
2004. He is the chairman of the Group and focuses on overall corporate
development and strategic direction of the Group. He is the holder of
a bachelor degree in business administration from the University of
Toronto, Canada. He has over 29 years of experience in the trading
business. He is a younger brother of the Company’s managing director,
Mr. Chan Chak Mo.

Mr. Chan Chak Mo, aged 68, joined the Group in March 2004. He
is the managing director of the Group and is responsible for all daily
management of the Group. He has over 33 years of experience in
investment and the management of various kinds of business including
hotels, restaurants and entertainment centers in Hong Kong and Macau.
He is both a member of the Legislative Assembly and Executive Council
of Macau Special Administrative Region. He holds a bachelor degree and
a master degree in business administration.

Ms. Leong In lan, aged 52, joined the Group in March 2004. She has
over 23 years of experience in the accounting and finance fields and has
obtained an associate diploma of business and accounting from TAFF
Technical College, Western Australia. She is in charge of the accounting
departments of the Group in Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan.

Mr. Lai King Hung, aged 62, joined the Group in May 2002. He is the
deputy chairman of the Group responsible for the daily operation and
strategic planning of the Group's food wholesale business. He holds a
bachelor degree in science from the University of Manitoba, Canada. He
has extensive experience in the family entertainment and amusement
park industries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 66, joined the Group as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2004. He graduated from the University
of London with a bachelor of arts degree and has over 40 years
of experience in real estate development, property investment and
corporate finance, holding key executive positions in various leading
property development companies in Hong Kong. He is the chairman and
an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (00199.HK) which is
a public company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln, aged 65, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004. He graduated
from the University of Western Ontario, Canada with a bachelor degree
in economics and had undergone training in dyestuffs technology at
Bayer AG and Hoechst AG in Germany. He is the Vice President of
the Hong Kong Dyestuffs Merchants Association Limited. He also
actively participates in many charitable organisations and is Vice Patron,
General Donations/Special Events Organising Committee Chairman and
campaign committee member of the Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso, aged 73, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2008. He holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy. He has over 39 years of experiences in the
financial and accounting industries. He is the sole owner of Chan Pak
Cheong (Auditor) Accountant Office, an accounting and auditing firm,
and has been a Certified Public Accountant for more than 39 years and
a vice-chairman of Macau Society of Accountants during the years from
1980 to 2018. He acted as a Commissioner of the Finance Department
of Macau — Commission of the Revision of Profit Tax for the years from
1984 to 1996, and from 2011 to 2014 and also the year of 2018, as well
as one of the Examination Commissioners of the Commission of Registry
of the Auditors and the Accountants for the years from 2006 to 2011.
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Mr. Cheung Kwok Wah, joined the Group in March 2009 as the Group’s
chief business development officer. He is responsible for the business
development and investor relations of the Group. He is a solicitor of Hong
Kong and has over 30 years of experience in finance and legal industries
during which he held several senior management posts with various
publicly listed companies. He is an independent non-executive director
of Asia Orient Holdings Limited (00214.HK), a public listed company in
Hong Kong.

Ms. Lam Wing Yan, Winifred, is the associate director in investor
relations and corporate finance of the Group and responsible for
corporate finance, business development and investor relations. She
joined the Group in April 2004 and holds a bachelor degree in commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. She has over 20 years of
experience in banking, finance and management with various publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung Hon Fai, is the financial controller and the company secretary
of the Group. He joined the Group in March 2004. He is a qualified
accountant and holds a honour diploma of accountancy from Lingnan
University. He is currently an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 24 years of extensive
experience in the accounting field.

Mr. Tam In Tong, joined the Group in October 1991. He is appointed
as a food quality control director in the year of 2013 who is responsible
for ensuring food quality and supervising food production. He was
previously the executive chief — Chinese cuisine. He has over 53 years
of Chinese cuisine experience in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macau. He is
a vice-chairman of the International Exchange Association of Renowned
Chinese Cuisine Chefs.

Mr. Tong Ka Wai, Donald, joined the Group in February 1993. He is
the information system manager of the Group. He is responsible for
the management and development of information system and network
security of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree of information studies
from Macau Polytechnic Institute and a master degree in business
administration from Murdoch University of Australia.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company continues to be investment holding.

And the principal activities and other particulars of the Group are set out
in note 36 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Group for the Year and the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 125 to 245.

The Directors do not recommend for the payment of dividend (2018:
HK1.0 cent per share), totalling of nil (2018: HK$6,943,000), in respect of
the Year. Further details of the dividends declared (if any) during the Year
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the Year attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30.0% of the Group’s total sales.
During the Year, the aggregate purchases of food and beverages
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
29.7% of the Group’s total purchases, while the purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately 10.7% of the Group’s
total purchases.

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Chan Chak Mo (Managing Director)
Chan See Kit, Johnny (Chairman)
Lai King Hung (Deputy Chairman)
Leong In lan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Cheung Hon Kit

Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln

Chan Pak Cheong Afonso

In accordance with Clause 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Leong In lan, Mr.
Lai King Hung and Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln will retire from office, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the remaining independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of one year commencing on date of appointment
and thereafter for further successive periods of one year until terminated
by not less than one month’s written notice served by either party on the
other.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 106 to 108, no contracts of
significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

EFEREORERKRGZEGRKE
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Percentage
of issued share

Number of ordinary capital of the

Name of director Capacity shares held Company
AR DTE BT
EEpnE g4 FREBEREE RAB DL
Mr. Chan Beneficial owner 249,438,422 35.92%
BRI BEmEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 37,396,200 5.39%
RprhEE RS (M)
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln Beneficial owner 280,200 0.04%

REPRIEAE BEmEAA
Note:  These shares represented approximately 5.39% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2019, of which 4.44% were held by Puregain Assets
Limited, a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Chan; and the balance of 0.95%
was held by Cash Smart Enterprises Limited, a company which is 50% beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2019.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has an employee share option scheme, particulars of
which are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

The Group did not enter into any share-based payment transactions
during the Year.

i R-E—AFT-A=T—8  RERHEFAT

BEEITRALSE.39% @ HF4.44%HREEZER
59 A 2 A A]Puregain Assets Limited#% & & H £
0.95% Al (1 BR 55 4 T %3 7 5 50% # 55 2 /2 A Cash
Smart Enterprises Limited$$7% °

BEXHBEEEN R_ZT-NAF+_-A
=t—H BEEFARFIBEALIRAR
A SCE DA AR B A B 2 (R AT A 2 AR B A D P
BA T ISR

Rk iE
AARETRBERES  BREFIBHN
TETRER M 5E44 ©

ARG BN AN F E A B R] SAEAIRD S AR R
5 o

ANNUAL REPORT #% 2019 105



Directors’ Report &+

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, the Company
or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors and below, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Number of ordinary

MAERNKRFZRH

ARA] - EMBEARSEEAERMB AR
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FERX
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"R
ANRFFIEEC. 1T BB

Percentage of issued
share capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
HAQ T E BT
REZE g4 FEEEREE RAB DL
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy Investment manager 97,272,000 14.01%
Vermogensbeheer N.V. WEKE
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS SHEMERXS
Lease Agreements HEH=R

Mr. Chan is a substantial shareholder and an executive Director,
and thus a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to a lease
agreement dated 29 August 2014 (“Lease Agreement”) and a series of
supplementary agreements dated 14 December 2015, 9 January 2017,
28 September 2017, 27 September 2018, 26 March 2019, 30 June 2019
and 26 September 2019 (together with the Lease Agreement, collectively
“Lease Agreements”) between Mr. Chan (as landlord) and Bright Elite
Gourmet Company Limited (“Bright Elite”), a subsidiary of the Company
(as tenant), Bright Elite leased the shop premise located at a Em Macau,
Patio Da Ameaca No. 1-A, Res-do-Chao A com Sobreloja, Macau with
a gross floor area of approximately 74 square meters for an initial term
of three years commencing from 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2017
and extending to 30 September 2020. The monthly rentals under the
Lease Agreements for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 and
the year ending 30 September 2020 are HK$300,000 and HK$240,000
respectively.

During the Year, the Group paid rental of HK$3,420,000 to Mr. Chan.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued
Lease Agreements - Continued
This connected transaction is exempted from the announcement
requirement under the Listing Rules.

Particulars of this connected transaction, which is also a related party
transaction, are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The rental of
HK$3,420,000 (2018: HK$3,600,000) paid for the above shop premise
for the Year is disclosed and included under note 37(b) to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Advertising Agreements

Pursuant to an advertising contract dated 23 August 2018 between Mr.
Chan (as media service provider) and FB Group Enterprises Management
Company Limited (“FBG”), a subsidiary of the Company (as advertiser),
FBG had been provided with advertising services in Macau for a term of
one year commencing from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 at an
annual consideration of MOP270,000.

Pursuant to an advertising contract dated 30 August 2019 between Mr.
Chan (as media service provider) and FBG, a subsidiary of the Company
(as advertiser), FBG is provided an advertising services in Macau for a
term of one year commencing from 1 September 2019 to 31 August
2020 at an annual consideration of MOP270,000.

During the Year, the Group paid advertising fee of MOP270,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$262,000) to Mr. Chan.

This connected transaction is exempted from the announcement
requirement under the Listing Rules.

Particulars of this connected transaction, which is also a related party
transaction, are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The advertisement
fee of MOP270,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$262,000) (2018:
MOP270,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$262,000)) paid for the
above advertising services for the Year is disclosed and included under
note 37(c) to the financial statements of this annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued
Advertising Agreements - Continued

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the above
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the significant related party transactions which were
conducted in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 37 to
the financial statements.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 37(b) and 37(c) to
the financial statements were continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreements and the advertising contracts
mentioned in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” section.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 37(a), 37(d) and 37(e) to
the financial statements were not continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, and details of the scheme are set out in
note 44 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, that would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

BUSINESS MODEL

The business of the Group remains to focus its resources and efforts
mainly in the different sectors of Macau markets, while, under the current
outbreak of Covid-19 infection, its current business strategy is not to
open any restaurants in the Greater China area except for those of
which the Group has already committed. The business strategy for the
Group’s food souvenir business is to enhance operating cost efficiency
and to open up more sales channels locally and overseas to generate
more revenue. The Group is also in a constant and continuous process
of reviewing its business strategy and model in light of the changing
business environment.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$83,000 (2018: HK$50,000).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
Year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln and
Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso. The audit committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting policies as well as critical accounting
estimates and assumptions with management. The audit committee has
also discussed with the external auditor on their audit plan and key audit
areas. The audited consolidated financial statements and the annual
results announcement of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by
the audit committee before submission to the Board for adoption.

RISK COMMITTEE

The risk committee of the Board consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Pak Cheong Afonso (Chairman),
Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln and an executive Director, namely, Mr. Chan
See Kit, Johnny. The risk committee’s role is to make recommendation
to the Board on the risk management framework and internal control
policies. The principal duties of the risk committee include reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s risks. The risk committee also reviews
the effectiveness of the enterprise risk management function, including
staffing level and qualification as well as risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the CG Code for the Year as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. Due
to personal commitments, Mr. Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln, an independent
non-executive Director, did not attend the 2019 AGM.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry with
them, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - continued

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

After the outbreak of Covid-19 infection in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across many countries/regions. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of Covid-19 infection and evaluate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group.
Pending development of such subsequent non-adjusting event, the
Group’s financial and operating performance may be affected, the extent
to which cannot be estimated as at the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant subsequent events after
the year end date of 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the 2020 AGM of the Company to re-
appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Directors/By order of the Directors

Chan Chak Mo
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Future Bright
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 119 to 245, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

VALUATIONS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be approximately HK$560.0 million as at 31 December
2019, with a net fair value loss of approximately HK$23.0 million
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. To
support management’s estimation of the fair value, the Group engaged
an independent external valuer as the management’s expert to perform
valuations on the investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.

Valuations of the Group’s investment properties are dependent on certain
key assumptions and estimations that require significant management
judgement.

The valuation was inherently subjective due to the significant estimates
used and significant changes in these estimates could result in material
changes to the valuation of the properties.

The accounting policies and disclosure for the estimation of fair
value measurement are included in notes 4(f), 5(b)(iii) and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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VALUATIONS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

° Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used;

° Checking the appropriateness of the key input data used and
determination of fair value;

o Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of the methodologies and the reasonableness
of the assumptions and estimations adopted in the valuation for
estimating the fair value of the investment properties; and

° Evaluation of the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The Group had significant tangible and intangible assets on its
consolidated statement of financial position, including property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$315.2 million, right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$303.3 million, goodwill of approximately HK$81.8
million and other intangible assets of approximately HK$19.9 million as at
31 December 2019.

Management is required to perform impairment assessment on goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least annually; and
where indicators of impairment are identified, on the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets with definite
useful lives. For the purpose of assessing impairment, these assets
were allocated to cash generating units (“CGUs”), and management
has assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the
impairment assessments, significant management judgement was used
to appropriately identify CGUs and to determine the key assumptions
and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for the
year ended 31 December 2019, management concluded that total
impairment loss of approximately HK$110.9 million was made in respect
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
and there was no impairment in respect of the Group’s goodwill and
other intangible assets.

The accounting policies and disclosure for the estimation of impairment
of goodwill and other assets are included in notes 4(d), 4(e), 4(g), 4(h),
5(b)(i), 5(b)(ii), 18, 20, 21 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS - continued

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the management’s identification
of CGUs based on our understanding of the Group’s business;

° Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations
used;
° Reconciling the key input data to supporting evidence such as

historical financial information, approved budgets and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets;

o Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of the methodologies and the reasonableness
of the assumptions and estimations adopted in the valuation for
estimating the fair value of the non-financial assets; and

° Evaluation of the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report By #Z2i5hk s

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report By #Z2iEhk &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Continued

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number PO1220

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEElER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZEZE=—ZT—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHIT
Turnover T 7 1,142,308 1,133,308
Cost of sales SHERAR (345,295) (340,136)
Gross margin EF 797,013 793,172
Direct operating expenses BEEEERX (673,059) (646,354)
Gross operating profit LEER 123,954 146,818
Other revenue H b e 8 14,028 15,258
Other gains and losses Hith iz K E548 9 (291,097) (23,836)
Administrative expenses THAX (195,624) (190,312)
Share of loss of a joint venture SME—EEEREEBE 22 (519) 871)
Finance costs B TS RR ZAN 14 (37,533) (11,817)
Loss before income tax FRET1STIRIES 1R 10 (386,791) (64,760)
Income tax credit FEHiE R 15 11,624 9,227
Loss for the year FRNEIE (375,167) (55,533)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Hipbem(ER) WA
net of tax HIBRFRIE
ltems that may be reclassified HigskemsHnlEs
subsequently to profit or loss: EmIEE
Exchange differences on TFINETS IR B TE N 258
translating foreign operations (6,962) (20,204)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign FREEGINERZ
operation disposed of during the year EHHERAR 42,107 -
ltem that will not be reclassified to BreEMHEEERY
profit or loss: HE ¢
Revaluation surplus upon transfer from BEME - EE MG
property, plant and equipment to REMHE L EHR
investment properties, net of tax HBRTRIE 43 7,191 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FETHEEBIBRE (332,831) (75,737)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: AT ALES(BER),#F) ¢
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIE 2SN (376,838) (60,125)
Non-controlling interests TR B 1,671 4,592
(375,167) (55,533)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AT AT
attributable to: 2E(EE) AL
Owners of the Company ViNNEIEZZ =N (334,502) (80,329)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 1,671 4,592
(332,831) (75,737)
Loss per share FHEE
— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) —EARREE(FRE) 17 (54.28) (8.606)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIR R

As at 31 December 2019 R=T—hF+=-A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hE —F-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B5E FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NMRE 18 315,150 429,675
Right-of-use assets FREEE 34 303,260 =
Investment properties KEYE 19 560,000 505,000
Goodwill S 20 81,781 81,781
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 21 19,886 20,286
Prepayments and deposits TN RIERIZS 25 41,827 50,193
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEPEER 22 5,818 6,337
Total non-current assets ERBEEETE 1,327,722 1,093,272
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 24 46,818 52,006
Trade and other receivables B 5 NhEthpE IR 25 74,266 74,300
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAEBRZ
profit or loss SREE 26 58 108
Restricted bank deposits SR BRI TF R 23 27,155 24,181
Cash and cash equivalents Re kERRESIEE 261,376 84,804
409,673 235,399
Assets of a disposal group classified DEARBIELEZ
as held for sale HEARREE 31 - 471,716
Total current assets M EERRE 409,673 707,115
Total assets EEHARE 1,737,395 1,800,387
Current liabilities nEBEE
Amount due to a joint venture FEN—EEEHEIE 22 5,766 2,853
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR 27 192,501 210,816
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 126,980 =
Current tax liabilities REBIEAE 44,353 57,222
Interest bearing borrowings ATEEE 28 114,381 61,277
Non-interest bearing borrowings EmEEE 30 1,388 1,388
485,369 333,556
Liabilities of a disposal group classified DEAFBIEREZ
as held for sale HEARAE 31 - 83,045
Total current liabilities e B (SR 485,369 416,601
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE(BE) EEFHE (75,696) 290,514
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 1,252,026 1,383,786
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &&Bi&ikn &
As at 31 December 2019 A=—Z—hFE+=-HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Lease liabilities HEaFE 34 258,219 =
Interest bearing borrowings TEEE 28 311,110 359,536
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIEEE 29 35,541 37,320
Non-interest bearing borrowings mEEy 30 5,429 5,429
Total non-current liabilities IFRBB EAEHA 610,299 402,285
Total liabilities BEE5E 1,095,668 818,886
NET ASSETS EEFHE 641,727 981,501
Capital and reserves attributable to RATEE AENL
owners of the Company EXR#E
Share capital R& 7 32 69,430 69,430
Reserves G 588,777 930,222
Equity attributable to owners of BAREE AELER
the Company 658,207 999,652
Non-controlling interests TR = (16,480) (18,151)
TOTAL EQUITY R 641,727 981,501

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 245 were HNEI119E245H ViR E M BHRKEN T
approved and authorised for issue by the directors of the Company on ZHF=A -+ +HEAXRRGIESHELKET

27 March 2020 and are signed on their behalf by: B UWHATALIRRES
Chan See Kit, Johnny Chan Chak Mo
Chairman Managing Director
TrE EEpE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e REZERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE T —NF+_A=1+—HILFE

Equity
Property Foreign attributable Non-
Share Share Special Capital  revaluation ~exchange Retained  to ownersof  controlling
capital premium reserve* reserve reserve reserve profits  the Company interests Total
NG 2PN
e REE  HREE BRGE NEEHERE NERME REEH EibEE  FERER @it
(Note 32) (Note 3) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Wizs2) (M%) (Wass)  (Wass)  (Wass) (&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i T TEn Tin Fh T TEn T Fh TEn
At1 January 2018 R=Z-\§—A-H 69,430 376,715 34,800 2 - (11,687) 624577 1,093,867 (22743 1,071,124
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (60,125) (60,125) 4,592 (55,533)
Other comprehensive loss: AR EER -
Exchange differences on translating NERRE
foreign operations ErizE - - - - - (20,204) - (20,204) - (20,204)
Total comprehensive loss for the year £ 2 EFIRASE = - - - - (20,204) (60,125) (80,329) 4,592 (75,787)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company FEFARRNEBAZRE
(Note 16) (B316) - - - - - - (13,886) (13,886) = (13,886)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\F+-A=1-Ak
1 January 2019 “2-N\%#-A-A 69,430 376,715 34,800 32 - (31,891) 550,566 999,652 (18,151) 981,501
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (37683) (376,839 1671 (375,167)
Other comprehensive income/{oss): H2EMA/ (BB)
Exchange differences on translating ~~ ESNEBIRE
foreign operations EiEE - - - - - (6962) - (6,962) - (6,962)
Reclassfication acjustments for ERHERNERL
a foreign operation disposed of ESipEty
during the year (Note 31) (FH3¥31(a)) = = - - - 42,107 - 42,107 = 42,107
Revaluation surplus upon transfer A% - BERGEERE
from property, plant and equipment RENEL
to investment properties (Note 43) R (HE4) - - - - 7,191 - - 7,191 - 7,191
Total comprehensive income/{loss) FERAKA/ (BR)EE
for the year - - - - 7,191 35,145 (376,838) (334,502) 1,671 (332,831)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company EEFAAFEARAZRE
(Note 16) (Biz16) = = - - - - (6.943) (6949 - (6,943
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AFt-A=T-H 69,430 376,715 34,800 32 7,191 3,254 166,785 668,207 (16,480) 041,727

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of the
share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 2002.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,-EAIEQ/JILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —

NE+ZA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET F&TT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBRSRE
Loss before income tax expense M FTiS BB ST A S 18 (386,791) (64,760)
Adjustments for: FATIER EH A% -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE  BEK
equipment 2 W 9 - (19,025)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 EE 9 140,631 -
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BER
equipment HETE 10 72,388 69,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEITE 10 141,238
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfh 8 10 1,360 1,406
Fair value loss of investment properties REMEZ AR BEEE 9 23,000 =
Gain on remeasurement of an —BENNEADER
investment property under construction HERE Z HE4ER
reclassified as assets of a disposal BEZERETREYHE
group classified as held for sale BTt EER 9 - (16,367)
Fair value (gain)/loss on an investment —BENNBEAEDEA
property under construction reclassified BIERE 2 HEAR
as assets of a disposal group classified BEZEREDREYHEZ
as held for sale AR EEKRES) B8 9 (4,577) 23,008
Interest expense FIERY 14 37,533 11,817
Interest income 2 U A 8 (781) (788)
Share of losses of a joint venture AME—HEEREEE 22 519 871
Fair value loss of financial assets at BEARBEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEARBEREE 9 50 327
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WEX
equipment RIEREEE 9 42,304 8,224
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEREEE 9 68,571 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5B IEREEE 9 57 -
Loss on written off of property, plant and WHEYE - HE K&
equipment Rz EE 9 19,784 30,546
Gain on lease modification ez s 9 (845)
Operating profit before RtEEESBBHAT 2
working capital changes R T 154,441 44,657
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 5,188 (4,227)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 & HAth fE Y GRIE
and other receivables (3m), D (7,126) 6,830
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 R EMENFRIE
other payables #n,Crd) 1,819 (4,550)
Cash generated from operations RETHMEERE 154,322 42,710
Income taxes paid BFTEH (1,997) (2,236)
Net cash generated RESEE TS
from operating activities RERE 152,325 40,474
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R &nRE%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—ZT—hF+-_A=+—HIFE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE FET FHIT
Investing activities REER
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank ZREIRITER
deposits (1) wb (2,974) 21,858
Interest received BUF & 781 788
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE ¥ - W= & EE (76,070) (105,328)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment FAEFT1S IR - 51,454
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WHEME - BE K
plant and equipment HETEN A (5,456) (4,593)
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & MEB A RIFT1ERIE F58 321,469 -
Purchases of investment property under WBEEEP
construction EYE (5,266) (60,947)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEAMELEE (982) (8,241)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEHRE(FrA)
investing activities HEFE 231,502 (105,009)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from interest bearing borrowings 5t &.{& & P15 518 39(b) 59,844 167,000
Repayment of interest bearing borrowings ~ E&it B fEE 39(b) (96,815) (147,732)
Advance from a joint venture —EEEEERR 2,913 2,382
Dividends paid to owners of the Company  JEETARQRIES AZIKE (6,943) (13,886)
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEAE
lease liabilities e EBD 39(b) (127,102) =
Interest paid SXREAIESS 39(b) (37,533) (12,673)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETBMTARESFHE (205,636) (4,909)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRERBELER
cash equivalents ®imn, GRd)FE 178,191 (69,444)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REANZRER
of year ZEIREEH 84,804 176,011
Cash and cash equivalents reclassified ENPEADEARBEHEZ
as assets of a disposal group classified HEARNEEZRER
as held for sale ZRRLER 31(a) - (17,510)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EREEHEREER
and cash equivalents ZRRELEEZHE (1,619) (4,253)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZBEEREFRELER 39(a) 261,376 84,804
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R IR M RE

31 December 2019 —ZE—HF+-A=+—H

1. GENERAL

Future Bright Holdings Limited is a public limited company
incorporated in Bermuda. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. Its head office and principal place of
business are at Room 1409, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The Group, comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries, is engaged in the sales of food and
catering, food souvenir and property investment.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 3,  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 2015-2017 Cycle
and HKAS 23

—REH
EEEEERAA AR A FEFMAK
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Notes to the Financial Statements BtF§ERKRMIEE
— W& +=-A=+—8

31 December 2019 ==&

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A.

126 FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED #£

HKFRS 16 — Leases

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
have been summarised in below. The other new or
amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1 January
2019 did not have any significant impact on the
group’s accounting policies.

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the
statement of financial position as a right-of-
use assets and a lease liabilities, with the
narrow exception to this principle for leases
which the underlying assets are of low-value
or are determined as short-term leases.
From a lessor’s perspective, the accounting
treatment is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding
its new definition of a lease, its impact on
the Group’s accounting policies and the
transition method adopted by the Group as
allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer to
section (i) to (v) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bfi&sRaRMzE
31 December 2019 —Z—HF+-_A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i)

2. BMTREMEBHEEN(TEM
BREEN ) -#

(@) BRMHE]RETEBUBR

HEU-H-F-NEF-A—
AL &

A. BB HIREERFE 16
S—HE—&
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 () RNE AW BRE
— Continued EHIE165 2 &
2 &
The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the REBRALER]
modified retrospective method of adoption BRI ERNE
with the date of initial application of 1 B TS E LR S
January 2019. Under this method, the 1658 R =ZF
standard is applied retrospectively with the —NWE—H—H&
cumulative effect of initially applying the RIER - IRIEZ A
standard recognised at the date of initial % AEBEE BN
application. FERZER - mE
RIERZERIR R
TR ERERER
HHIRER
The effect of adoption HKFRS 16 as at 1 RZE—NF—A
January 2019 increase is as follows: —BEMNEENTE
HEERE16%5 2
FEWMT
HK$000
FH&T
Asset BE
Right-of-use assets CREAE 408,703
Liabilities afE
Lease liabilities (current) HESBECRY) 129,743
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBBEGERD) 278,960
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Notes to the Financial Statements iR HMizE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BWNEEBMBEEEN(FEM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued M EER ) -w
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (@) BEHFETRBITEBMER
January 2019 - Continued HFEA-B-Z-NFE—A—
HE4Eh—&
A HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued A. EENBHEERE16
S—HE—&
() Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 0] MBS wE
— Continued EHIE165% 2 &
g2
The following reconciliation explains AT S ERE MM =
how the operating lease commitments Z-NF+=A
disclosed applying HKAS 17 at the end of =T+—HEREH
31 December 2018 could be reconciled SEERIFE17 SRR
to the lease liabilities at the date of initial BB EAE
application recognised in the statement of HER =T —NF—
financial position as at 1 January 2019: A—Bz2#Bikn
RERZNEIXIE
REHNHEESE
ZHERIER
Reconciliation of operating lease reEHEREHRA
commitment to lease liabilities E8EZHE
HK$000
FAT
Operating lease commitment as of BT \F+=-H
31 December 2018 =T+ — B2 REHEE A 461,314
Less: future interest expenses B BIERBERX (62,611)
Total lease liabilities as of BE-_ZT—NLF—H—H
1 January 2019 ZHEBERES 408,708
The weighted average lessee’s incremental RZE—NF—AH
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities — B BN R
recognised in the statement of financial RZHEEREME
position as at 1 January 2019 is 5.89%. R 2 G A hn#E
HESEEREA
5.89% -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer,
throughout the period of use, has both: (a)
the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and (b) the right to direct the use of
the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, unless
the lessee apply the practical expedient
which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

2. RMERMEREEN(TEM
BHREEA ) -=w
(@) BRMHE]RETEBUBR
HEU-H-F-NEF-A—
BB -&
A BEBEUBBREERE6
H-HE—E

(it

HEZHER
REBEEVERE
ERIE165 - HE
ZEERBARER
"EEAREE)
R—BRBERZE
Rz —HAKK
BHZ—®H - &
B E{E A
BRI : (A ERE
e M E @A B E
IR Z KA
M 2 N (b) B R
RE#BEEZR
wE - BIA KK
R AT — BRBS
NEFI 2 BRI EE
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RESHEEILD MU
N — T8 % BEBIN
HENFRED S
ZEXHME - &M
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HERD 2 BB
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A.

130

HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify
a lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of a
lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
If a lease is determined as an operating
lease, the lessee would recognise the lease
payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset
under the lease would not be recognised
in the statement of financial position of the
lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective
of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS
16 provides accounting policy choices
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/
or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

EEERRAT

2. BWNEEBMBEEEN(FEM
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(@) BWHR RIETEBHBER
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A.

HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i)

Accounting as a lessee — Continued

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at the commencement
date of a lease.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
The Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises it judgement
and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost. For land and buildings that
were held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose would continue to be accounted for
under HKAS 40 and would be carried at fair
value.
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2.

132

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i)

Accounting as a lessee — Continued

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(i)

(iv)

Accounting as a lessee — Continued

Lease liability — Continued

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in
an index or rate, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Lessor accounting

HKFRS 16 does not change substantially
how a lessor accounts for leases. Under
HKFRS 16, a lessor continues to classify
leases as either finance leases or operating
leases and account for those two types of
leases differently. However, HKFRS 16 has
changed and expanded the disclosures
required, in particular with regard to how
a lessor manages the risks arising from its
residual interest in leased assets. Under
HKFRS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two
separate contracts. The intermediate lessor
is required to classify the sub-lease as a
finance or operating lease by reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease.
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2.

134

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

v)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group adopted
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying the standard recognised
at the date of initial application. The
comparative information presented in 2018
has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
at the date of 1 January 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating leases
applying HKAS 17 and measured those
lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. Ik iﬁﬁ’]’? HHR([FEBM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued B EER ) -&
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (@) BRI KRBT EBMER
January 2019 - Continued HFEA-B=F-NFE—A—
HREM-—&
A. HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued A. EBY BT ERFE 16
S —HE—&
(v)  Transition — Continued (v) wE—E
The Group has elected to recognise all REEEEENC
the right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019 Z—NEFE—-—H—H
for leases previously classified operating MERREE S
leases under HKAS 17 base on the amount SHERIEA7SRD SR
equal to lease liabilities, adjusted for any AREHEZHE
related prepaid and accrued lease payments BRI EFEAEE
previously recognised. E-EAEEER
HEARBZERE
RERERR - MRk oAl
TR 2 (i8R TE
1 R AT & A 3K
HEITHHEE o
To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the RIEFEEERE
Group applied the following recognition B 2RI %616
exemption and practical expedients at the 9 AEEREIR
date of initial application of HKFRS 16: JEREBE BN WS
#RIE 165 B HifE
AT R E K
AI{TREE A ¢
(i) when measuring the lease liabilities (i) ERERE
at the date of initial application of BE B
HKFRS 16, the Group applied a RS AR
single discount rate to a portfolio 16 5% & H
of leases with reasonably similar TEHER
characteristics (such as leases with SIS
a similar remaining lease term for a EHAEFE
similar class of underlying asset in a I A8 U R
similar economic environment); Z HEMH
& (2 R
LA IR
ErR B
HEREESE
Bl B g4 0
HEE 2
E)ERE
—RAIRE
(ii) when measuring the right-of-use (ii) EREIXE
assets at the date of initial application BE B
of HKFRS 16, the Group relied WG RS
on the previous assessment for 16588 HEt
onerous contract provisions as at 31 EFEHAESE
December 2018 as an alternative to ER - A&
performing an impairment review; and =] fa5 %8 5E Al
RZZE—N
F+ = H
=+—8%
BB E 1%
XAEH 2 7T
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EITRESE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

A.

HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

(v) Transition — Continued

(iii) when measuring the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the exemption of not
to recognise those for lease term that
will end within 12 months of the date
initial adoption (1 January 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS
16 is applied to all of the Group’s lease
contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and (ii) not to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

B.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2.

138

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 - Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income if specified conditions
are met — instead of at fair value through profit or
loss.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions
to determine its current service cost and net interest
for the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or
loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

E.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies
to long-term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment
in the associates or joint ventures and stipulates
that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation, this is
a business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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140

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2019 - Continued

G.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation, this is
a business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits,
either in profit or loss, other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23
which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to
obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale would become part of the
funds an entity borrows generally and therefore
included in the general pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of Material’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Except as disclosed below, the management anticipate
that application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact to the Group’s financial
performance and consolidated financial positions and/or on
the disclosures in future consolidated financial statements.
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2.

142

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective - Continued
Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is
meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a “business” to focus on returns from selling goods and
services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into the
definition.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) - continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective - Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new or revised HKFRSs is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the directors of the Company do not expect the adoption
of new HKFRSs will have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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144

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial assets, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out in
note 4 below. During the year, the Group has incurred
a loss of HK$375,167,000 and at the end of reporting
period, its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$75,696,000. The current liabilities mainly consisted of
trade and other payables of HK$192,501,000, interest-
bearing borrowings of HK$114,381,000 and the lease
liabilities of HK$126,980,000 due to the Group’s adoption
of the new accounting standard HKFRS 16. Based on
the Group’s history of its operating performance and its
expected future working capital, the directors believe
that there are sufficient financial resources available to
the Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Macau Patacas
(“MOP”), while the financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Each entity in the Group
maintains its books and records in its own functional
currency. As the Company is listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, the directors consider that it will be
more appropriate to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(@)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
- Continued

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Joint Venture

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under
the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

° Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(c)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Joint Venture - Continued
In assessing the classification of interests in joint venture,
the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The group assesses and classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as Joint venture.

Joint venture are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition change in the joint venture’s net
assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(d)

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(p)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwiill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

20-25 years
Over the shorter of remaining
life of the leases or 5 years

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Office fixtures and 2-5 years
equipment

Kitchen utensils and 5 years
supplies
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment - Continued

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalized during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured
at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value
with any change therein recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(g9 Leasing

A.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised
in the statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date gave a leases term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of a land
and buildings held for own use, they are carried at
depreciated cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Leasing - Continued

A.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019) — Continued

Right-of-use asset — Continued

The Group accounts for land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The
Group accounts for land and buildings which is
held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at amortised cost. Other than the above right-of-
use assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises it judgement and determines that it
is a separate class of asset apart from the land and
buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated
cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (i)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Leasing - Continued

A.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019) — Continued

Lease liability — Continued

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in-
substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a tenant. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Leasing - Continued

B.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as
two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified
as a finance or operating lease by reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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156

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Leasing - Continued

B.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018) — Continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding lease commitment is shown as
a liability. Lease payments are analysed between
capital and interest. The interest element is charged
to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(h) Intangible assets other than goodwill

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is its fair value
at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included
in administrative expenses.

Trademarks Indefinite
Franchise 3-10 years
Royalties 2-3 years
Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(p)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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4.

158

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

Financial assets — Continued

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its
debt instruments in below measurement category:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

(i)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Financial assets — Continued

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets — Continued
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Impairment loss on financial assets — Continued
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

For internal credit risk management the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pays its creditors.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets — Continued
Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the company. The company categorises a loan
or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to
make contractual payments more than 365 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have been
written off, the company continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, amount due to a joint venture,
borrowings and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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164

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Financial Instruments - Continued

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

0

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale when:

o they are available for immediate sale;
o management is committed to a plan to sell;
o it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will

be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

o an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;
o the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a

reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

° a sale is expected to complete within 12 months

from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of:

° their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy; and

o fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

0

(k)

V)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
- Continued
Following their classification as held for sale, non-current
assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost of inventories
for restaurants is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sales of food and catering is recognised
at a point in time when the food and catering have been
served, and customer payments are generally due at the
time of sale.

EEERRAT

4,

FEERE -
() HFEHEZFERBEERUE
VIR g

(k)

()

ROBAEBIELEER  ERBE
E(BEBREARNNE) T T
RITE o

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁi FAHEZHE
CE SR PN E

#E
FEAIREAER - BBIRK
REAFRFEMEP CREE
MR o BARBIE — BB
B A NS EERER G ME
REZRBMRAME 2 E MK
K o B2 AR AR NETS
EETE - RN FEEATER
BIRHR Z EET SBR[ ET
BN REAT N E PR 2 (A ET AR ©

Uy 55 7
BEFAHNKRERATFEER ED
R 2 AE B BB ER

ZE R Kglﬁﬂﬁh{

ZEEmIMBERESHN
B HEFERRE=77WRze

B o UKz B FE A (B i ok E 0 £
ER o WEHBREME SIE -

KEHERY MEKRS 2 W ®
RAFEFRERY RERZEH
MR BEPAR—RREER
AT e



Notes to the Financial Statements Bfi&sRaRMzE
31 December 2019 —Z—HF+-_A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

o

(m)

Revenue recognition - Continued

Revenue from sale of food souvenir is recognised at a point
in time when control of the goods has transferred, being
the point the customer takes possession of the goods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Management fee income when management services have
been provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(m)

Income taxes - Continued

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(n)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by Group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(n)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

Foreign currency - Continued

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributable to non-controlling interest as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or
loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group’s net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal
are transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Employee benefits

(o)

(p)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

right-of-use assets;

intangible asset;

non-current prepayments and deposits; and

interests in subsidiaries and a joint venture
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(9)]

(q)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
- Continued

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the cash generating unit (see
notes 4(d), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that can
be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on
similar terms as those available to other external parties.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(t) Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(t) Related parties - Continued
(b) — Continued

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iif) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY -

Continued

(@)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Transactions
and calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
the Group’s investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties located in both Macau
and the People’s Republic of China (the “Mainland China”)
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. Deferred taxation liabilities
are therefore recognised based on the applicable tax rates
applicable to when it is a disposal of investment properties.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY -

Continued

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have significant risks of resulting a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Impairment of gooadwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
gooawill)

The Group tests annually whether the non-
financial assets (other than goodwill) have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. The assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is
determined based on value in use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY -

Continued

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty - Continued

(i)

Fair value measurement

A number of assets included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on
how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures investment properties (note
19) and financial assets at FVTPL (note 26) at fair
value. For more detailed information in relation to
the fair value measurement of these items, please
refer to the respective notes.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are
used to make strategic decisions.

S EBERE

AEERBEEETBLERRERN 2R

5 (P A 1] 7 BB MR 3R

=

VREELED

The Group has three reportable segments. These segments are AREBHEES @RS EEEAtIE
managed separately as each business offers different products EBIR MR E @ MRS E (A
and services and requires different business strategies. The REREE  WEED I ZEEE RE
following summary describes the operations in each of the BEERHRED 2 EEERBEMAT
Group’s reportable segments:
o Food and catering — sales of food and catering in Macau, o RYNER—EBF - AEK
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan; B HERAEHERYRER
o Food souvenir — sales of food souvenir, including festival o EmTFE—#HERRTE 21
food products; and fERM: &
. Property investment — leasing of property . YR E —HEYHE
2019 2018
—E-NEF — N\
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Revenue from contracts with REEBUEHREEAE155H 2
customers under HKFRS 15 EFEEHRE
Food and catering — sales of food and catering BN &8k — £8P « AEIA
in Macau, Mainland China, Hong Kong and B BERBEHERMEE
Taiwan = 1,035,480 1,054,862
Food souvenir — sales of food souvenir, BEmFE—HER
including festival food products BEHER M 100,732 78,446
1,136,212 1,133,308
Revenue from other source H 3R 2 W&
Property investment — leasing of property Y& —HEYE 6,096 -
1,142,308 1,133,308

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that is used
by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

DEERHZEBRII2ERBURTER
9\\*5}\1451HXZFT BE - -@mRNTIEW

SR A ARGFATEZEERKENG
"*B%fﬁﬁﬂiﬁz"* wEANFTER 8
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6.

180

SEGMENT REPORTING - continued 6. DR - &
(@) Business segments (@ XEXBoH
2019 —E-NF
Inter-
Food and Food Property segment
catering souvenir  investment  elimination  Consolidated
RIREH LIESH NERE SHEHE #E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TEx TEx TER TER TERT
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers  RENERE 2 Wz 1,035,480 100,732 6,096 - 1,142,308
Revenue from inter-segment RE 2 2 Wz - - 1,987 (1,987) -
Other revenue H s 13,232 242 554 - 14,028
Reportable segment revenue BEEGE e 1,048,712 100,974 8,637 (1,987) 1,156,336
Results %%
Reportable segment results RGN DESE (178,823) (25,504) (168,001) - (372,328)
As at 31 December 2019 R-F-NF+ZHA=1+—H
Food and Food Property
catering souvenir investment  Consolidated
RURER RBFfR WERE ®Re
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THET TET TET TR
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets* AREHHEE 1,049,759 105,684 578,364 1,733,807
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities RENDEE 740,152 59,584 293,475 1,093,211
Reportable segment net assets RENNEEFHE 309,607 46,100 284,889 640,596
@ As at 31 December 2019, food and catering and food souvenir R=F—hF+=-A=+—8"

segment assets included cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$252,802,000 (2018: HK$73,863,000) and
HK$5,924,000 (2018: HK$9,228,000) respectively, while property
investment segment assets included cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$414,000 (2018: HK$17,915,000), and
investment properties of approximately HK$560,000,000 (2018:
HK$505,000,000).

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A
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(a)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING - continued 6. DEBERE -
Business segments - Continued (@) E¥orIH-&
Other information Bt ZH
2019 —E— N E
Food and Property
catering Food souvenir  investment Un-allocated  Consolidated
BUNRER RRFE NERE RAE &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn TR TR
Interest income FIEWA 226 2 553 - 781
Interest expense MERX 26,859 2,211 8,417 46 37,533
Capital expenditure BARRX 86,647 2,168 2,412 - 91,207
Addition of right-of-use assets REFRRAE 119,360 10,146 - - 129,506
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RENE 65,209 6,502 606 7 72,388
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BRREEERE 123,729 16,481 - 1,028 141,238
Amortisation of other intangible assets  EAh T AR i 870 490 - - 1,360
Gain on lease modification HEBINE 845 - - - 845
Impairment loss on property, NE BER
plant and equipment REREEE 42,243 61 - - 42,304
Impairment loss on trade receivable Z S ERTUBRIERR 57 - - - 57
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets  # BEEERERE 59,295 9,276 - - 68,571
Loss on written off of property, HsEnE  BER
plant and equipment REZER 19,775 9 - - 19,784
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARER - - 140,631 - 140,631
Falr value loss on investment property &AWL AL BEEE - - 23,000 - 23,000
Fair value gain on investment property  E¥HHAEEHEZ
under construction reclassified as HERRIEEZ ERPIRE
assets of a disposal group Wz AnEEkRE
classified as held for sale - - 4,577 - 4,577
Fair value loss of financial assets at AL EEABEZ
FVTPL SREEZNAEEESE - - - 50 50
Share of loss of a joint venture AME—HBEELEER 519 - - - 519
Income tax credit/(expense), net FERAR/ (BY)3E 13,008 - (1,384) - 11,624
Interest in a joint venture il iAo VA T 5,818 - - - 5,818
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6.

182

SEGMENT REPORTING - Continued 6. REEE -
Business segments - Continued (@) EKorIH-&
2018 —E-NEF
Inter-
Food and Food Property segment
catering souvenir investment glimination  Consolidated
RIREH Rm¥FfE NERE  HEEHH e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT Thx TAT TEL TEL
Revenue W&
Revenue from external customers REMREF 2 Wiz 1,054,862 78,446 - - 1,133,308
Revenue from inter-segment RED 2 s - - 2,754 (2,754) -
Other revenue Bt 14,476 235 547 - 15,258
Reportable segment revenue BE G e 1,069,338 78,681 3,301 (2,754) 1,148,566
Results 5
Reportable segment results BEGhREd (22,349) (27,350) 1,106 - (48,593)
As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—N\FF+ZH=+—H
Food and Food Property
catering souvenir investment  Consolidated
RMREHR RmFfE NERE e}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
AT THT THx TRx
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AREHHEE 640,194 89,534 1,057,249 1,786,977
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities AREDHEE 453,464 28,112 333,794 815,370
Reportable segment net assets AHREDHEETFE 186,730 61,422 723,455 971,607
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING - continued DEBERE &
Business segments - Continued (@) E¥orIH-&
Other information Bt ZH
2018 —E-NF
Food and Food Property
catering souvenir investment ~ Un-allocated ~ Consolidated
RURER RmFfE NERE RAR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT T T TET
Interest income FIBUA 237 5 546 - 788
Interest expense FIBHEY 4,117 - 7,100 - 11,817
Capital expenditure ERRX 119,998 39,689 61,808 186 221,676
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RENE 60,328 7,792 1,192 86 69,398
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ EtEF AE B 1,015 391 - - 1,406
Gain on disposal of property, HENE MR N&E Ma
plant and equipment - - 19,025 - 19,025
Impairment loss on property, nE - BER
plant and equipment SERESE 5,870 2,354 = = 8,224
Loss on written off of property, % BER
plant and equipment RV ER 30,367 179 - - 30,546
Gain on remeasurement of an investment B EEHAEANEA
property under construction reclassified £ {EHE 2 HE4R
as assets of a disposal group classified as B2 ERTRENE Y
held for sale Wiz - - 16,367 - 16,367
Fair value loss on an investment property B35 A7 EARK{E
under construction reclassified as assets  HEZ HEEFIEEZ
of a disposal group classified as held for ~ EZHRENE L
sale MM EEEE = = 23,008 - 23,008
Fair value loss of financial assets BOREBEFANERL
at FVTPL SRAEZ AL BEHSE - - - 327 327
Share of loss of a joint venture NME—HAEMEER 871 - - _ 871
Income tax credit, net s RE 7,567 - 1,660 - 9,227
Interest in a joint venture R—AENE S 6,337 - - - 6,337
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6.

184

SEGMENT REPORTING - Continued

profit and loss, assets and liabilities

6. SHBHRE-#

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, (b)

AHRETHKE WERE
B EERARBEZHK

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue Al #h o Foilk 1,156,336 1,148,566
Less: Other revenue B U as (14,028) (15,258)
Consolidated revenue irA e 1,142,308 1,133,308
Loss before income tax BRET S A& 18
Reportable segment loss ¥ o EbEs1a (372,328) (48,593)
Other revenue and other gains and losses  H fth U 25 LA K2 H Ab U 25 &2 518 264 67)
Corporate payroll expenses YNSIE o alib3 (8,479) (9,292)
Unallocated expenses RAOMEHEZ (6,248) (6,808)
Consolidated loss before B PT1S LAY
income tax e (386,791) (64,760)
Assets 5=
Reportable segment assets A RE D ILEE 1,733,807 1,786,977
Financial assets BARBESABRZ
at FVTPL TREE 58 108
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMIPEEE 3,530 13,302
Consolidated total assets IRAEBEBRE 1,737,395 1,800,387
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AmESEAE 1,093,211 815,370
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOEEEAEE 2,457 3,516
Consolidated total liabilities A BERE 1,095,668 818,886

ANEMX T EBRBRAEEER

Unallocated expenses comprised mainly of the expenses
of the Group’s headquarter which were not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment.

Unallocated corporate assets comprised mainly of cash
and cash equivalents which are held as general working
capital of the Group as a whole and other corporate
assets of the Group’s headquarter which were not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment. Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised
of the liabilities of the Group’s headquarter which were
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.
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6.

(c)

SEGMENT REPORTING - continued 6. HSEEE-#
Geographical information (c) HEEH
The Group’s operations are located in Macau, Mainland AEBEEBMNEREPN - FREKX
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while Macau is the place of Be - BEAKEE  MRFAAERD
domicile of the Company. The following table provides an B ZFTEH » TR 25 AREEK
analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers BINRBEFE 2 WS RIEREEE
and non-current assets (other than financial assets). (ERBERIN 20HT -
Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (other than financial assets)
REMREFZ FRBEE
W (EREERM)
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE —BN\F —B-NE —EN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Hong Kong a5 235,972 212,984 126,761 68,277
Mainland China REIARE 101,318 122,580 70,161 35,496
Macau R 775,697 797,570 1,088,144 928,694
Taiwan =y 29,321 174 829 10,612
1,142,308 1,133,308 1,285,895 1,043,079
The geographical location of customers is based on the P ztEAETIEE m &R
location at which the goods and services are delivered. RIS ZHEIME - B REM
For goodwill and other intangible assets, the geographical EREEMS @ WEMETIIER
location is based on the areas of operation of CGUs. The SEABMKREHEME ° £
geographical location of other non-current assets is based ERBEECHENEIIREE
on the physical location of the assets. BERMEIME °
Information about major customers d) EBEEEFZEH

(d)

There was no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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7. TURNOVER 7. - 3]
Turnover represented sales of food and catering, food souvenir BEBEIERYNEBIFUARBERFE2HE
and gross rental income from investment properties. The amounts EHEUNKEREMEZ BB SIWA -
of each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover RBEPRNELXBIRER S EANE
during the reporting period were disaggregated as follows: Rl RN -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Revenue from contracts with REEBUBREEAFE155
customers under HKFRS 15 ZEFEHNWE
Sales of food and catering RYNRERZHER 1,035,480 1,054,862
Sales of food souvenir RmFE2HER 100,732 78,446
1,136,212 1,133,308
Revenue from other source Ht3RRE =z W=
Rental income from investment properties EMEZHEIWA 6,096 =
1,142,308 1,133,308
By timing of revenue recognition under RIEE B BHREERIFE 155
HKFRS 15 REERW S 2 B
At a point in time R —rFE 2L 1,136,212 1,133,308
The Group did not have any contract asset and contract liability as REEBR-_ZE—HNEFEXR_ZT—N\F+=
at 31 December 2019 and 2018. A=+ B EARNEONEEREGHNE
f& °
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. Httilk &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA&TT
Interest income F B U A 781 788
Management fee income EEBIWA 5,706 5,540
Rental income from staff quarter and others REELIBEEREMZES KA 3,165 3,016
Others Hih 4,376 5,914
14,028 15,258
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. HfukRRER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Exchange gain, net b 5 Wi s 558 2,895 1,515
Fair value loss of investment properties REYEZ AR BERE
(Note 19) (PfF5E19) (23,000) -
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB &R EEE
plant and equipment (Note 18) (FffzE18) (42,304) (8,224)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE M WS
plant and equipment (Note 31(b)) (Fft7E31(b)) - 19,025
Gain on remeasurement of an investment ENTEETHIBEANER
property under construction reclassified FHEHBE 2 HEHERNEE 2
as assets of a disposal group classified as EERKEYEZ N
held for sale (Note 31(a)) (Pft3£31(a)) - 16,367
Fair value gain/(loss) on an investment property &5 8 ADE A IEHE Z
under construction reclassified as assets of HERFEEZEEFIRE
a disposal group classified as held for sale MEZ DR EERE(EE)
(Note 31(a)) (fF3E31(a)) 4,577 (23,008)
Loss on written off of property, WD BERREZ
plant and equipment (Note 18) E B (F13E18) (19,784) (30,546)
Gain on lease modification (Note 34) MEEY e (H15E34) 845 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 31(a))  HEWE AT~ &8 (FiE31() (140,631) -
Impairment loss on trade receivable 2 5 RIFIE 2 REEE (57) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEERERR
(Note 34) (Fff5E34) (68,571) -
Fair value loss of financial assets BEAnBEFABRZ
at FVTPL SRMEEZ AR EERE (50) (327)
Others Hitb (5,017) 1,362
(291,097) (23,836)
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFrSHRAIESIE
Loss before income tax was arrived at after charging: KPS R AT EIEE kR T 515538
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses WEERAERI ZFEKA 344,509 339,632
Direct operating expenses arising from FRIEEYE
investment properties during the year HEEERAY 786 504
Cost of sales SHEE PR 345,295 340,136
Employee costs (Note 11) B ITAA(PFE11) 414,455 403,351
Depreciation of property, Y - BEMEETE
plant and equipment (Note 18) (Kfsx18) 72,388 69,398
Amortisation of other intangible assets H & R
(Note 21) (ff3E21) 1,360 1,406
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ R & BN 2,250 2,100
Operating lease charges on properties MEIKEHEER
- Contingent rentals* — s A& 18,052 9,317
- Minimum lease payments —EES R - 155,495
— Short term lease expenses —RHAERY 13,714 =
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (Note 34) EAREEERE(ME34) 141,238 -
Contingent rentals are calculated, based on a percentage of the relevant KAREDHIREAERERZIRER/ 5
sales of the restaurants/shops pursuant to the relevant rental agreements. RSB E -
11. EMPLOYEE COSTS 11. BIR®F
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z=—N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Employee costs (including directors) comprise: & LKA (BIEES)EHE
Wages and salaries IE&ENE® 400,011 391,557
Contributions on defined contribution FERHEIGERE
retirement plans FTEIH R 14,444 11,749
414,455 403,351
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM&
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: EEMERENOT
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits- scheme
fees in-kind  contributions Total
e 2 B#s
-tk RENEF TN @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
2019 “E-RE TR TR TR TR
Executive directors: PTES:
Chan Chak Mo (“Mr. Chan”) BOER ([REE]) 13,020 864 - 13,884
Chan Seg Kit, Johnny BREN - 729 3 732
Leong In lan 2R - 1,009 13 1,022
Lai King Hung gt - 715 14 729

Independent non-executive directors:  BIFHTEE

Cheung Hon Kit RER 300 - - 300
Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln RIBR 300 - - 300
Chan Pak Cheong Afonso BREH 300 - - 300

13,920 3,317 30 17,267
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued 12. EEME-w
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits- scheme
fees in-kind  contributions Total
He 28 Y/ N6
EE08 REWEF ATEIfR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
2018 —B-0\E TAT TAT TAL TR
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chan PR E 13,485 1,558 - 15,043
Chan See Kit, Johnny BREA - 876 18 894
Leong In lan 2HTA - 999 12 1,011
Lai King Hung Bzt - 161 9 170
Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES:
Cheung Hon Kit FEM 300 - - 300
Yu Kam Yuen, Lincoln RIBR 300 - - 300
Chan Pak Cheong Afonso BRaE 300 - - 300
14,385 3,694 39 18,018

190

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 13.
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2018: two) was director of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 12 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2018: three) individuals were as

AERSFHAL
RAEBRAZSHALTES  —&R (=
T—)N\F  WMB)RARFRES  FFZ
e BN EXHEE12558 - Hepma (=
T—N\F: ZR)ATZMEWT :

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Salaries and other benefits e hEMEF 6,108 5,182
Contributions to retirement pension schemes — E{R&ET 2|5 54 41
6,162 5,223

BEZMENFIATERE -

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEA™ EEAR

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Z%1,000,000/ 7T - -
1,000,001 7% 1,500,0007# 7T 3 2
1,500,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T - -
2,000,00178 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T - -
2,500,001/ 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T - -
3,000,001;8 7T 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1

EERSRERBECHENFUTEHE :

The emoluments of directors and senior management were within
the following bands:

2019 2018

—E-NF —ET—)N\F

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEA™ EE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 9 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7L 21,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 14,000,001 75 214,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000

15,000,001 7T 215,500,000/ 7T

ANNUAL REPORT #% 2019 191



Notes to the Financial Statements iR HMizE
31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+-_A=+—H

14.

15.

192

FINANCE COSTS 14. MERF
2019 2018
—®-hE  —E2-)F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&IT
Interest on interest bearing borrowings: STEEERE
— Repayable within five years — AR AFANEE 7,616 8,784
- Repayable over five years —ERAFREE 8,298 3,889
15,914 12,673
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREERENMEe R
a specific loan - (856)
15,914 11,817
Imputed interest expenses on lease liabilites TAEBEZ(EEN S
(Note 34) (PfF5E34) 21,619 -
37,533 11,817
INCOME TAX CREDIT 15. S RESR

The amount of income tax credit in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represented:

FAREKSERAMSHEL SR

2019 2018
ZEB-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current tax — Macau Complementary NEAFRIE —BPIFA B

Income Tax I
— Current year —AEE 10,630 11,308
— Over-provision in respect of prior years —RBEFEZBERE (20,638) (18,879)
(10,008) (7,567)

Deferred tax AR IE
— Credit for the year —FNIEE (1,616) (1,660)
Income tax credit R %ii%) (11,624) (9,227)

Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at the
progressive rate on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
The maximum tax rate is 12% for the year ended 31 December

2019 (2018: 12%).
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15.

INCOME TAX CREDIT - continued
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

FBRIES -
FARMGEREREES 2EBRKXTR
18 SR -

follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Loss before income tax BRETIS BRI ES 18 (386,791) (64,760)
Tax calculated at the applicable Macau RERARMATERE12%(ZF
corporate tax rates of 12% (2018: 12%) — N\ 12%)5TE 2 FHE (46,415) (7,771)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HEm AR EE 2B AR
operating in other jurisdictions MERNRzTE (10,720) (7,003)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for NAMHEI A 2
tax purposes Mg & 33,834 4,165
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for ARG
tax purposes MG E (2,470) (1,314)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERATRTEERB Y RS2 34,785 21,571
Over-provision in respect of prior years B FE 2 BREEE (20,638) (18,875)
Income tax credit FTiSHiE e (11,624) (9,227)

Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated at
rate of 25% (2018: 25%). No provision for EIT has been made
as Mainland China subsidiaries had no assessable profits for EIT
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$208,557,000 (2018: HK$186,441,000) in Mainland
China available for offset against future profits which will expire
in five years. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax loss of HK$59,911,000 (2018: HK$31,570,000) in
Hong Kong are available for offset against future profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$53,388,000 (2018:
HK$69,442,000) in Macau available for offset against future
taxable profits which will expire in three years. No deferred tax
asset in respect of the tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams.

RBIREDEMSEH (REMEH])E
25% (=T — N\4F : 25% ) ZFi Rt &
HRABEKERNBARREBEE=ZS—N
FRZZF-NFF+ZA=1+—HILEFE
WEERCEMSTET - W EED
PEMEHEE BHRASEREE=
E-NER_FE-NF+_A=+—H
IEFEEHERREEFNEGE &R - I
EERBBFSTHELE -

R|EHRK  AEERFBEKRESR K
Bh A 7% 78 5548 208,557,000 T ( =
— )\ : 186,441,000/ 7T ) - Al A1k
EIHARAOEF - WERAFEARER - R
WMEMBK  XEBERBEBERDAM
JE §54859,911,000/8 7T ( =& — )\ F :
31,570,000/ 7T) * A] AEREELSE
ZRBRKOEF] o REELK - AEE
7R P A SR B F 7 18 E518.53,388,0007%
TT(ZZF— )\ : 69,442,000 7T) * A
FREHR R RERBRH - WK =F
AIEH o BT BE TR K 2R F1) 2R
WABRHIEBEERRECHIBEE -
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16.

194

DIVIDENDS 16. B2
i) Proposed dividends to owners of the Company attributable i) FARRNAER AEG 2 8K
to the year: B
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Special final, proposed — HK1.0 cent FERIARER - K —1.0784 - 6,943

At the board meeting held on 27 March 2020, the directors
have decided not to declare or pay any final dividend.

ii) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous and current financial years, approved and ii)
paid during the year:

RZE_EF=A -+t RHE1T
ZEEggR L BERAETE
KSR AREARL B ©

REAERTHEARRIEE A
JEMEBE RN BREE 2 B
BT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Special interim dividend in respect of RERBLER T AR BEE
the current financial year, approved and 2455 HAf% 2
paid during the year of HK1.0 cent BREER.0%B(L
per ordinary share - 6,943
Special final dividend in respect of RZT—NFHERI RSB
the previous financial year, approved BB S 2 BRI R EARR B
and paid in 2019 of HK1.0 cent TR E @A .07l
(2018: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share ZZ—)\F  1.0510L) 6,943 6,943
6,943 13,886
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17.

LOSS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BREBR
AR TEA AR (S SR AR BT
AT B -

a. Basic loss per share a. BREREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to AT HER A
owners of the Company FAEE (376,838) (60,125)
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EHE iqhar-4=
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREAREEZ
shares for the purposes of basic L AR N
loss per share RS S 694,302,420 694,302,420
Basic loss per share (HK cents) R EAEHE (Bl (54.28) (8.66)
b.  Diluted loss per share b. #SREEESE

The amounts of diluted loss and earning per share for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were the
same as basic loss per share respectively as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

HREBEE_ZE—ILEFE_ZF—N
F+-_A=1+—RHIFEIESF
EEABEHESEBRR  WEZE
—E-NEFER=ZT-NF+ZA
=+ —HIEFENSREESE
MBS REGRENESEER -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

196

18. V¥ - BERRH

Office Kitchen
Land and Leasehold fixtures and utensils and
buildings  improvements equipment supplies Total
BOERE FRERE
THREF HERE Rl RitER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THR THR TER
Cost RE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-H 230,004 367,923 59,318 84,590 741,835
Additions AE 6,769 65,019 4530 13,927 90,245
Witen of s - (#3512) (1,965) (7,391) (52,868)
Reclassiied o investment properties ENPREREANE (71,000 - - - (71,000
Exchange adjustment R HE - (1,150) (60) 6 (1,204)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=T1-H 165,773 388,280 61,823 91,132 707,008
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAER
impairment HE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A 6,202 219,698 40,204 46,056 312,160
Depreciation Vil 6,468 48,337 5477 12,106 72,388
Impairment loss™ EEE" - 36,432 1,571 4,301 42,304
Written off it - (28,609) (108) (4,367) (33,084)
Reclassffied to investment properties EFippES (1,172) - - - (1172
Exchange adjustment 5 - (577) (166) 5 (738)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 11,498 275,281 46,978 58,101 391,858
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Continued 18. 1% - BER &R - &

Office Kitchen
Land and Leasehold fixtures and utensisand  Construction
buildings ~ improvements equipment supplies in progress Total
RAERE ERRA
THRET HEXRE & RitEm  EERIR st

HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000
ThR ThR ThR ThR ThR ThR

Cost A
At 1 January 2018 RZB-\F-A—-H 81,590 326,166 56,830 63,062 135,014 662,662
Additions ME = 98,732 6,840 28,212 13,400 147,184
Disposalwritien off HiE /HisH - (52,121) (2,964) (6,684) - (61,769)
Transfer in/{out) 2R /(1) 148,414 - - - (148.414) -
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group ~ EFAEANBARELEY

classified as held for sale (Note 31(a) HERFIEE (1) - - (313) - - (313)
Exchange adjustment 5% - (4,854) (1,075) - - (5,929)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1-H 230,004 367,928 59,318 84,590 - 741,835
Accumulated depreciation and ZHHER

impairment HE
At 1 January 2018 RZF-/\E-A—-A 1,320 194,371 34,263 39,605 - 269,559
Depreciation HE 4882 47,011 7,306 10,199 - 69,398
Impairment loss" HEEE - 6,939 543 742 - 8,204
Written back on disposal/written off PR FictoeH el - (25,642) (1,091) (4,490) - (31,229)
Reclassified as assets of adisposal group ~ EFAEANEEREHEY

classfied as held for sale (Note 31(a)) HEARAE(HE31() = = (141) = = (141)
Exchange adjustment ERHAE - (2.981) (676) - - (3,657)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1-H 6,202 219,698 40,204 46,056 - 312,160
Net book value BEFE
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-n%+-A=t-8 154,275 112,999 14,845 33,031 - 315,150
As at 31 December 2018 RZF-N\ETZA=1-H 223,802 148,025 19,114 38,534 - 429,675
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18.

198

—NFEt+=A=t+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued
The land and buildings located in Macau are held under private
properties on a permanent basis without tenure. As at 31 July
2019, an owner-occupied portion of the properties has been
transferred to investment properties with a revaluation value of
HK$78,000,000 (note 19)

As 31 December 2018, the Group’s office fixtures and equipment
of approximately HK$172,000 was reclassified as assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale (note 31(a)).

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s land and building of
approximately HK$69,950,000 was pledged to a bank to secure
three mortgage loans, a secured loan and a bank overdraft facility
granted to the Group with the aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$231,165,000 as at 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s land and building at net book
value of approximately HK$4,562,000 (2018: HK$4,619,000) was
pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan (2018: one) granted
to the Group with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$13,500,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$14,100,000)
(note 28).

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s land and building at net book
value of approximately HK$149,713,000 (2018: HK$149,233,000)
was pledged to a bank to secure a bank loan (2018: one)
granted to the Group with the aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$153,640,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$167,000,000) (note 28).

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, management of the Group
has provided impairment loss on leasehold improvements and equipment
of several restaurants and food souvenir shops in Macau and Hong Kong
which were loss-making for quite some time. Due to the lack of an active
market for these leasehold improvements and equipments, management
has considered that the leasehold improvements and equipment of these
restaurants may not be easily sold and may have insignificant re-sale value.
Accordingly, full impairment on such remaining leasehold improvements and
equipment of approximately HK$42,304,000 had been made in 2019 (2018:
HK$8,224,000).

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A

18.

MX  BEREE-w

MLFVRPY 2 i R F 2R M 2ok
ATADEREE - R_ZT—hLELA
=+—H ' —EEIEABPLIVEDE
BEREYS - HEH{EEA78,000,000
ST (MEE19)

#:;*A$+*H:+*E REE
WNANEEE RREA172,0008 TTEH

BAED %Ez%%ﬂfm%zuﬂ%ﬁwé?%
£¥31(a)) °

R-ZZE—N\F+-A=+—8 &&£E
IR E 4258 4)231,165,00078 T2 b K
12 F A 969,950,000 T #H T R 17
EAREBR _ZE—N\F+_A=1+—
HER=-IREBEN  —HEERER
M—IERITEITRME 2 ER -

RZE—NF+=-ZA=+—H ~&EE
SR B 42%E4713,500,000/8 (= — )\
£ : 14,100,000/ 7T ) Z T Hb R IEF DABR
HF(EA14,562,0008 L (=T — )\ F :
4,619,000/8 70 ) IR FIRTT - ERASE
BN - NF+t-A=+—HEE—
HRBERZER(ZE—N\F : —18)
(Hf5E28) °

—NF+-_A=+—8 " ~&H
AR H {E 42 %8 #9 153,640,000 58 7T ( = &
— \£E : 167,000,000/8 7T ) 2 L3 2 12
A BR 1 E #9149,713,00078 7T (=
T — J\ 4 : 149,233,000 7T ) K # T
$R1T - f’E?%KEIE’\:ﬁ—J‘Ii‘f’_H
—t+—HER—BRITERZER(Z
—\F —IE)(M#.E%)

BE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HILtFE "
AEBMERERURNRMIRESRAUR
SERBBEZETEBRRRRFREEZ
ﬁ&ﬁﬁ& SEELREBEES - B
SHELERIBRZEREDS  BEE
RAZEEBEZAEREREER YLLK
SHE BAfEYTASAEEEE &
ERZZ-NFRZERTHEEERS
e H 2 EIRE 442,304,000 L (=&
—\4F : 8,224,000/ 7T) °
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19.

—NFEt+t=-—A=t+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. _BEME
Investment
property
Investment under
properties construction Total
BENE HEBRPRENE @st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET FAET FAT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(FEE(a)) (Pt 7E(0)
Fair value AfEE
At 1 January 2018 R—E—N\F—A—H 505,000 408,900 913,900
Additions NE - 43,837 43,837
Fair value gain AR EENS - 16,367 16,367
Exchange adjustment PE 5 - 8,715 8,715
Reclassified as assets of a disposal ENNEAIBABELEZ
group classified as held for sale HEMREE - (477,819) (477,819
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—-N\F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2019 k=Z—NF—HF—H 505,000 - 505,000
Transferred from property, BY%E  BERXEER
plant and equipment (Note 18) (PtzE18) 78,000 - 78,000
Fair value loss DREEER (23,000) - (23,000)
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NF+=A=+-H 560,000 - 560,000
Note: Bt sE
(@) The investment properties were located in Macau and held under private (a) B O EA PRI E A AR R A 2ok A
properties (Propriedade Privada) on a permanent basis without tenure. TLAMERFE °
Investment properties with carrying amount of approximately B M {8 4V /& 560,000,000 % 7T (=& — N\
HK$560,000,000 (2018:HK$505,000,000) have been pledged to a bank £ : 505,000,000 7T ) 2 R EMEE KA
to secure three mortgage loans and a bank overdraft facility (2018: four FRIT ERAKER_T—NF+=A
mortgage loans and a bank overdraft facility) granted to the Group with EF= EI Z%&HEETE 48 %8 /224,851,000
aggregate carrying amount of HK$224,851,000 as at 31 December 2019 B (=ZF—/\F : 231,165,000 &IT)HY
(2018: HK$231,165,000) (note 28). = Iﬁhz%%% AR —THRTEIRE(ZT
—)\F : IFRIBER R —ERITE SR
&) 2 FER(HEE28) -
(b) As at 31 December 2018, the investment property under construction (b) RZZE—N\F+=—A=+—8 HEEZFPE
included a land use right in the Mainland China on a medium term lease. BEMEPTERTFBARER PRS2 LHb(E
The Group has obtained the property ownership certificate pertaining to R - AEEBERZ T2 EHERE
this land. In year of 2018, the investment property under construction was B-RNZT—N\F EEFREVMEER
transferred to assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale (note ENEARBELE ZHEARNEE (KM
31(a)). 31(a) °
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 REBR-_Z-NFR_Z-N\F+=

December 2019 and 2018 have been arrived at on market value
carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, an independent valuer
who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

A=+—H Z&ﬁ%%@ﬁﬂ@m&l%

15@%1432

FTERARIATEE
o ZIEEMPBARA MEBEXE

%5:.‘  WHREEREWE 2L E FES
BEOHES -
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19.

200

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 19. BREYMXE-»
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair EMEZARBEINE=ZRAIEEN
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing HBESE FVRERALBEEES
fair value balance is provided below. HERAT o
Investment
property
Investment under
properties construction Total
RENE HEEPRENE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FAT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 505,000 408,900 913,900
Additions NE — 43,837 43,837
Gains: included in other gains and Was : FTAH g R E1E
losses (note 9) (PFt7E9)
— Gain on revaluation of investment —REEEH W
properties - 16,367 16,367
Exchange adjustment R - 8,715 8,715
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group ~ EFHBANEARIEHEY
classified as held for sale HERRIEE - (477,819) (477,819)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019  R-ZF—\FE+-A=1+—-HK
—Z-NF—A—H 505,000 - 505,000
Transferred form property, b ERN N E
plant and equipment 78,000 78,000
Loss: included in other gains and losses B8 s ARG N ERE
(note 9) (Pt7E9) -
— Fair value loss - AnEEESE (23,000) - (23,000)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-hAE+=-HB=1+—H 560,000 - 560,000
Change in unrealised gains for the year FR-_E-NE+-A=+—H
included in profit or loss for assets held P EEMABRIFA
at 31 December 2018 BRWRE - 16,367 16,367
Change in unrealised losses for the year RR=ZE—AFE+=-A=+—H
included in profit or loss for assets held ~ fiE&EEF ABRZER
at 31 December 2019 ABEEE2E (23,000) - (23,000)

The fair value of investment properties located in Macau is
determined by applying the income approach based on the
capitalisation of the fully leased current rental income and potential
reversionary income of the property with reference to estimated
market rent at appropriate investment yield to arrive at the market

value.
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19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 19.
The fair value of investment property under construction located

at the Hengqgin New District, Zhuihai City, Mainland China (“Zhuhai
Hengqin”) is determined by applying the market approach

by comparable land sales transactions of land as available in

the relevant market and also taking into account the accrued
construction cost and professional fees relevant to the stage of
construction.

Fair Value Unobservable

REMR-=
NRPBEAEREN RS ME([KER
EDZERTREVMELABEERD
BRURSER RN SEREZAE
HRIHMEERSERE - EF Tt A
Pl TPEREL 2 BTERRAREE
M -

Range of  Relationship of
unobservable  unobservable inputs

Properties Location Valuation Technique hierarchy inputs inputs  to fair value
FIEE FUEE  TUBEEABER
IS g hERE RMEBEER BARE BAHBHE OAEEZEA
2019
“I-NE
Investment properties ~ Macau Investment Method of Level 3 Estimated market HK$1.5milion  The higher the rental value,
RENE it valuation - Capitalisation  £=£3 monthly rent monthly basis ~ the higher the fair value
of net income fEEms AR (018 AMHR AnEEER
RERERE HK$1.7 milion)
-WHRFEARL BR15BEAT
(Z2-N%:
17TEE#ET)
Reversionary yield 3.3% (2018:4%)  The higher the reversionary yield,
e 33%  the lower the fair value
(ZE-N\E:4%) BEYGER ALEEUE
2018
“BN\E
Investment property ~ Zhuhai Hengain ~ Comparison method Level 3 Discount on size, usage, 4.3%  The higher the discount,
under construction  HERE iV F=HF location of the land 43%  thelower the fair value.
ERRRENE BHORE A fiEls  AABENE -
U EHR

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

MRBEAERER LAMEZES R
SERE  BHERRRYE K -

FA/ET AL EZS -
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20.

202

GOODWILL 20. M8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost BN
At 1 January and 31 December WN—A—BAEk+=-—A=+—H 81,781 81,781
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to BETRENR  BEEIEERYK
the CGUs under the food and catering segment. The CGUs were B MBzHEEESEN - EFZBAIZE
identified as follows: SEEBMAT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FATT
Kanysia Investments Limited Kanysia Investments Limited
(“Kanysia Group”) ([Kanysiat== |) 61,775 61,775
Era Catering Management Company Limited ~ ZBEEIRHE AT
(“Era Catering”) ([BEREE]) 6 6
Nippon Gourmet Trading Company Limited HERBEZHERRT
(“Nippon Gourmet”) =E3=40D) 20,000 20,000
81,781 81,781
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20.

—NFEt+t=-—A=t+—H

GOODWILL - continued

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
from value-in-use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period. Cash
flow beyond the five-year period is extrapolated at zero growth
rate, which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
business in which the CGU operates. Key assumptions are as
follows:

20.

mE-w
HeELEMyARESERERER
FHREAEEREMHERL TETRE
RHEEREEET - BBAFHMN
THEERERTHEREY  ITE
RIS EABAIGLTBEL Y &
X TERBMT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —N\FE

% %

Rl Btk

Discount rate BEIE & 12 to 14.6 12
12£14.6

Operating margin AR T R 12.5t0 43.8 1310 48

12.5%43.8 13248

Growth rate within five-year period AFHRR B RE Oto5 0to5

0&5 0%5

Operating margins have been determined based on past
performance, and management’s expectations for market share,
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The weighted average growth rate used is consistent
with the forecasts included in industry reports. The growth rate
reflects the long-term average growth rate for the product line of
the CGU. Discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
related to the CGU. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate recoverable amounts to be lower than the aggregate
carrying amounts of the Kanysia Group, Era Catering and Nippon
Gourmet.

LEGNRERBAERARE R ETEH
ZMBHE T REREZTSEA R
MERET - A ZNEFHIERERET
EREMHF2ER - - ERERBIE
CEEBMNZEMRRI 2 RIFHIE
RE o FTEL A 2 Bh IR K AR AT AL IR X
PRMBESELEM ZHEBIETRR
EEERE  TAUHERKZEMEE
ﬁ%@%@]ﬂﬁT\@%ﬁ—N&@ﬁ'/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘
Kanysiafe B - BERERNBERMZ
H{ER5E -
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21.

204

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. HtiEREE
Trademark Franchise Royalties Total
[ig ke HRRE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FExT FTExT FTET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—hF—HA—H 15,003 8,489 2,508 26,000
Additions — externally Acquired B — SMNERUL S - 904 78 982
Exchange adjustment ME i, & - (58) - (58)
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z-h&+=A=+-—H 15,003 9,335 2,586 26,924
Accumulated amortisation RSt
At 1 January 2019 R=ZZE—nF—H—H - 4,132 1,582 5,714
Amortisation b3S - 870 490 1,360
Exchange adjustment b 5 R - (36) - (36)
At 31 December 2019 R-_E-—hE+=-A=+—H - 4,966 2,072 7,038
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2018 R-_Z-N\F—H—H 3,883 8,437 1,201 13,521
Additions — externally RE — NP UEE
Acquired (note) (BI=E) 11,120 262 1,307 12,689
Exchange adjustment P H = (210) - (210)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E+=HA=+—H 15,003 8,489 2,508 26,000
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2018 RZE—\F—H—H - 3,200 1,191 4,391
Amortisation 3 - 1,015 391 1,406
Exchange adjustment M i, 5 2 - (83) - (83)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\E+=-_A=1—H = 4,132 1,582 5,714
Net book value BRTEFHE
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-BA=+—H 15,003 4,369 514 19,886
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H 15,003 4,357 926 20,286

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired certain
trademarks at a total consideration of HK$11,120,000 from two connected
persons of the Company. Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 September 2018.
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21.

22.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued 21. HtWELSE-#
Impairment tests for trademark with indefinite useful BEERTEAFEH 2 EHEREE
life =
For the purpose of impairment testing, trademark with indefinite AEITRVERI R - A E R A {F B FH
useful life is allocated to one of the CGUs under the food souvenir ZHEEESEERMFEIB2EF—
segment. The recoverable amount of above CGU has been EIREELEMN - tHMIRESELEMN Y
determined based on value in use calculations, covering a detailed AR EIEEE IR EFHARFEE R
five-year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of expected JERABEEET  HEKER
cash flows at the average growth rate of 3% and pre-tax discount HEt A F 8 R R3% LB FATaEE &
rate of 24.7% estimated by management. 24 7T%HTTEHRESRE °
The key assumptions for the Group have been determined by AREBTERIALAEREEERER
the Group’s management based on past performance and its ARBANHEHTERR ZTBHEE ° F7
expectations for the industry development. The discount rate used B2 IR R ABRFIRIEAIR R N R M5 7
is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the food souvenir BERFELIEERME -
segment.
Apart from the considerations described in determining the value GETIRSESSEMNFEREBEE 2
in use of the CGU, the Group’s management is not currently EEREZEIN  ANEEEIEEIRE I ER
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate e AT BhA % 2 (T b A gE
changes in key estimates. EHH) o
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22, R—HSELEZES
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Share of net assets DIhEEFE 5,818 6,337

The Group has a 51% (2018: 51%) interest in a material joint
venture, “Studio City Shiki Hotpot Restaurant”, a restaurant
located in Studio City in Macau, with an original investment cost
of HK$14,280,000 in 2015. The primary activity of this restaurant
is food and beverage business, which is in line with the Group’s
strategy to expand the food and beverage business division.

The contractual arrangement on the decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control
and with the rights to only the net assets of the joint arrangement
resting primarily with Studio City Shiki Hotpot Restaurant. Under
HKFRS 11 this joint arrangement is classified as a joint venture
and has been included in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method. The Group’s share of loss of joint
venture for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$519,000 (2018: HK$871,000).

AEBEBE-—BEBEEECEEES1%
—T -\ 51%) s 0 ERRM
eyEZ[FETENZIRBER] (=
T —hFREZE KA H14,280,0007#
L) c ZBREEBXBE AR ERME
% BALSERVERBERE DB 2R
BEFEAT ©

BT TERBREEE O RRAR
HAZEEHEZSHIEL —HAE -
MEERELHZHE—BEEFBEZER
TEBRIERFENTNRER - BiE
EBMGMEERE115 - A ELHE
WHEAAELE WDEAERNEH
AGEUBRE - HE_T—NEF+=
A=+—RHLFE  AEESEZEE
T EEELHAE519,0008T(ZE—N
£ 1 871,000087T) °
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22.

23.

206

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE - continued 22, R—HESELEZEE-w
Amount due to a joint venture as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZE—NWFR_ZE—NF+=A
was unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. =+—H BN H&ECEREAE
TR - BERILERER -
Summarised financial information in relation to the joint venture is EEEE ¥ 7B ERBEZYMT
presented below:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H
Current assets mENEE 8,686 6,073
Non-current assets EmBNEE 6,705 8,419
Current liabilities Uk N=NE (3,755) (2,066)
Non-current liabilities FRBAIE (228) -
Net assets BEFE 11,408 12,426
Included in the above amounts are: LT BT
Cash and cash equivalents HehERIIRELIAR 1,758 2,255
Amount due from the Group FEU A SR B R IR 5,766 2,853
Year ended 31 December BE+T-A=1+—HLEFE
Revenues &S 20,825 20,338
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year 4 AEE R 2 HEIBESE (1,018) (1,707)
Included in the above amounts are: LA BRI
Depreciation and amortisation e R 3,963 3,962
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 23. ZRFHIB|ITER

Restricted bank deposits classified as current assets in the
amount of HK$27,155,000 (2018: HK$24,181,000) have been
pledged to a bank in respect of the guarantee given in lieu of
paying rental deposit and to secure a bank loan (note 28).

As at 31 December 2018, restricted bank deposits at the amount
of HK$6,271,000 had been pledged to a bank requested by
Zhuhai Hengqgin New Area Administrative Committee for guarantee
of development of investment properties under construction, and
reclassified as assets of a disposal group classified as held for
sale (note 31(a)).
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24.

25.

INVENTORIES 24. ER

2019 2018
—®-nE ST \F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Raw materials — food and catering RE - R RER 27,501 29,065
Raw materials — food souvenir BME—REmFE 12,374 11,571
Consumable goods HE 6,943 11,370
Total azt 46,818 52,006

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. HOARHMEKREA

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash and credit
card settlement. Trade receivables mainly represent the revenue
collected by the operators on the Group’s behalf where the
restaurants of the Group are located. The credit terms granted to
these operators are 30 days from the sales made.

AEEHEFPETIHETEARER
ERREE -BHRUFKBATERREE
BN A B R E AR AR B R
W o WERERER ZEEHNRA
fEHIHEERT30R -

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current portion BNERE 5

Trade receivables B 5 eI 29,797 35,834
Prepayments and deposits (Note) TE R Rk e (BEE) 40,424 36,424
Other receivables H At EUCR IR 4,045 2,042
Total 5t 74,266 74,300

Non-current portion JERNHAER &
Prepayments and deposits (Note) TEf I8 kiR (M) 41,827 50,193

Note:  As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, these balances mainly represented
deposits paid for rental and utilities.

i : R-B-AFER-_ZET-—NE+-_A=+—
B ZEEBHE2ERHESRARRBEX
tzies -
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25.

26.

208

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued 25. BHRHEHMEBIRE-#
The Group and the Company recognised impairment loss based NG B N AR E AR BT R AG) i) P Sk &2 5T IR
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(i)ii). FRIERREEIE ©
Trade debtors are due within 30 days from the date of billing. BoREKESBEEHHEN30ARE
Further details on the group’s credit policy and credit risk arising H-BErEBZEEBRRRELERER
from trade debtors are set out in note 42(e). SEWEZRZEERR ZE—FFBE
T EE42(e) ©
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date B 5 REKFIE(HIRBEEE) &%
(net of impairment losses) is as follows: H Z BREE D ATAAT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 25,861 38,582
91 days to 365 days 912365H 3,914 2,223
Over 365 days HBi8®365H 22 79
Total AT 29,797 35,834
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 26. BAoARBREHABEZSMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BEARnBEFABECEREE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong — BB LM RAIRE 58 108

The financial assets are traded on active liquid markets. The fair
values are determined with reference to quoted market prices
which are under level 1 (quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities) of fair value hierarchy
under HKFRS 7.
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27.

—NFEt+t=-—A=t+—H

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES BORHEMEMNRE
2019 2018
—E-NF — N\
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade payables B S REN R 73,305 80,469
Accruals and other provision J?Efi-;ﬁﬁﬁ N H fih 69,705 77,342
Construction and other payables JE <t TF2 51038 N H b e R 49,491 53,005
Total azt 192,501 210,816

Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following
ageing analysis, based on invoice dates, as of the end of reporting

B 5 RNERE AR S ENHIA
RS RRIRERAHRZRED WZZDT-

period:
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T
Within 90 days 90H A 68,540 75,226
91 to 180 days 91%F180H 1,221 1,930
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 444 1,892
More than 365 days HiB365H 3,100 1,421
Total 4BET 73,305 80,469
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28. INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS 28. HE@EHE
2019 2018
—EZE-hF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Secured bank loan (note a) BEMETER(MiEa) 7,000 7,000
Secured bank overdraft (note b) BEIRITE S (FizED) 35,991 25,534
Mortgage loans (notes ¢ and d) LBER(MsEckd) 356,000 386,731
Unsecured bank loan (note e) EIRRIRITE R (M 5Ee) 26,500 43,197
425,491 462,462
Reclassified as liabilities of a disposal group ~ EFHEADEAFIELE
classified as held for sale (note 31(a)) HEAR B ETEES1(a) - (41,649)
Total interest bearing borrowings STREEET 425,491 420,813
Carrying amount repayable: AEERAE
On demand or within one year MBS —F A 114,381 61,277
More than one year, but not exceeding BiE—F ERmFR
two years 80,049 90,049
More than two years, but not exceeding BBEMEFERAFNR
five years 140,499 160,387
More than five years BilEASF 90,562 109,100
425,491 420,813
Amount due within one year included BEETARBIAEREZ
in current liabilities —F RN EHRE (114,381) (61,277)
311,110 359,536
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28.

INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS - continued

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had one (2018: one) secured bank
loan of approximately HK$7,000,000 (2018: HK$7,000,000). It bears
interest at higher of 1-month Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
and London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.8% per annum. As
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, this loan had been secured by restricted
bank deposit of HK$5,000,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a secured bank overdraft of
approximately HK$35,991,000 (2018: HK$25,534,000) with unutilised
facility of approximately MOP2,929,000 (equivalent to HK$2,844,000)
(2018: approximately to MOP13,700,000 (equivalent to HK$13,301,000))
which is repayable in April 2021. It bears interest at the prime rate less
2.5% per annum and is secured by the investment properties (2018:
land and buildings and investment properties) (notes 18 and 19). Such
overdraft facility also carries a covenant which requires that Mr. Chan and
his associates have to hold not less than 37% (2018: 37%) equity interest
holding of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had five (2018: six) mortgage loans of
approximately HK$356,000,000 (2018: HK$386,731,000), including:

(i) a mortgage loan of approximately HK$61,747,000 (2018:
HK$76,909,000) which is repayable within 15 years from 2011 and
bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum. This mortgage
loan is secured by the investment properties (2018: land and
buildings and investment properties) (notes 18 and 19);

(if) a mortgage loan of approximately HK$30,026,000 (2018:
HK$38,529,000) which is repayable within 7 years from 2016
and bears interest at the prime rate less 2.7% per annum. This
mortgage loan is secured by the investment properties (2018: land
and buildings and investment properties) (notes 18 and 19);

(iii) a mortgage loan of HK$13,500,000 (2018: HK$14,100,000) which
is repayable within 5 years from 2017, bears interest at HIBOR
plus 2.0% per annum and is secured by a land and building (note
18);

(iv) a mortgage loan of approximately HK$153,640,000
(2018:HK$167,000,000) with unutilised facility of approximately
HK$55,000,000 (2018: HK$55,000,000). This mortgage loan
is repayable within 5-7 years from 3 months from the date of
drawdown, bears annual interest rate at 1.8% per annum over
HIBOR, and is secured by the land and building; and

28.
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T_—FMAEE  ABARESELA
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(ZZ—\F : #913,700,0002F 7T (B E
718,301,000/ 7T ) ) » H ik HE BT KR
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R-—_TE—NAE+-_A=+—8 ' &&
BEERB(ZZ—\F: NE)REE
X #9356,000,000 8 L (= Z — )\ F :
386,731,000/ 7T) * B4E ¢

i) — I & 18 B 3 #161,747,000 &
7L (=Z— N\ & : 76,909,000 %
L) HAR—ZE——F#i+h
FENEE  REARITEERS
MEB275F:TE « ZBIRIBE
FARBYE (T —N\F : 1
RIEFUARZE W) (R4 1F (P
$18%19) :

(ii) — I8 1% 1§ & X 49 30,026,000 &
gL (Z=Z — )\ 4 : 38,529,000/
JL) c EAR T —AFRFtE
ANEE  REEBMNEFREL2.7
EitE - ZERIBERUNEEY
H(ZZE—N\F : THREFUR
BEME) EER (18 %19) 5

(i) —IBRZ B E 5113,500,000/ (=
T — )\ : 14,100,000/ T ) °
HEA-T—tFRFARAFERE
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2.0EFE - WAL RIEFER
#(HtEE18)

(iv) — I8 3% 38 B X 49 153,640,000 %5
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28.

212

INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS - Continued

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

— Continued

(v) a mortgage loan of approximately HK$97,087,000 (2018:
HK$48,544,000) with no unutilised facility (2018: unutilised
facility of MOP 50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$48,544,000)). This
mortgage loan is repayable within 5 years from December 2018,
and it bears interest at prime rate less 2.25% per annum and is
secured the investment properties (2018: land and buildings and
investment properties) (notes 18 and 19).

Apart from above, as at 31 December 2018, a mortgage loan of
approximately HK$41,649,000 which is repayable within 7 years from 2017
with unutilised facility of MOP100,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$97,670,000). It bears interest at the prime rate less 2.6% per annum
and is secured by the land and buildings and investment properties (notes
18 and 19). As at 31 December 2018, this mortgage loan classified as
liabilities of a disposal group had been reclassified as held for sale. During
the Year, the Group disposed the disposal group and fully repaid this
mortgage loan.

As at 31 December 2019, four (2018: five) mortgage loans (mentioned in
note ¢ (i),(ii), (iv) and (v)) totalling of approximately HK$342,500,000 (2018:
HK$372,631,000) carried a covenant that Mr. Chan and his associates
have to hold not less than 37% (2018: 37%) equity interest holding of the
Company.

The Group had one (2018: one) unsecured bank loan of approximately
HK$26,500,000 (2018: HK$43,197,000) which is repayable within 5 years
from 2016 with maximum facility of HK$80,000,000. It bears interest at the
prime rate less 1.5% per annum and carried a covenant that Mr. Chan and
his associates have to hold not less than 37% (2018: 37%) equity interest
holding of the Company.
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28.

ARER-w

fisEc

GETE

Bt sEe :

—&

1 18 B 3 #9 97,087,000 &
T — )\ 4F : 48,544,000
CWERDARESE
(Z2E—N\F: xHHRES
%8 50,000,000 38 P9 7t ( 18 & B
48,544,000/ 70 ) ) - Z LB E
FEA_T-—NF+_RAEHA
FANEE  RREEFNTHFES
225[E5 8 - WAREYE (=T
—N\F: L REFURKEY
M) (MisE18%19) ©

BREmESN  RZT—N\FE+_A=+—
B —IHKBER441,649,0008 7 © H
BA_T—tERFILFERNEE  KSH
Bh& £ %8/5100,600,00032 P9 7T (B E R4
97,670,000/ 7T ) ° ERHEBHERFE
268 WAL REFARIEEYE
R (KIsE18%19) s RZZE—N\F+=
A=+—8  2EALEMARBEZZIZ
BEFCEFOERBTELE - RAF
B ASELELEERRBEREEZIR
BER -

R-TE-—NFE+-_A=+—H8 mE(=Z
—)\F : 718)A £49342,500,000/%8 (=
T — )\4 : 372,631,000/ 7T) 2 IBE K
(RHfzEe () ~ (i) ~ (VRWER)EE—HR
O RARLCEREBBALEREAR
RIRDRABT%(ZZ— \5F : 37%) B A4
%o

AEEFE—H(ZT—N\F : —7)EKA
$RITE 426,500,000 T (= —/\£F :
43,197,0007%7T) « BB =T —/~F it
AFRNEE &= etE £ % 480,000,000
BT o HIRGEBMNERFL15EFE
WEB— DR RPEMREEREBHEA
TEBEARRRTDRIT%(ZT—N\F :
37%) A s o
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 29. BERTAAR
Deferred tax liabilities represented the temporary difference arising BB EEEHIEEMERES Y
from revaluation of investment properties. TR EAEEE o
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements RARNEERBAEECHRIRELETRIBA
during the current year and prior year are as follows: BEREESH ZFBLT :
Deferred tax
liabilities
EEHEAE
HK$°000
FET
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-—NF—H—H 53,555
Charged to profit or loss for the year FREBERMNR 4,092
Exchange realignment & H AR 341
Reclassified as liabilities of BN OBRDER
a disposal group classified as BEEEZHE
held for sale HRAaE (20,668)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-NF+A=+—HEK
at 1 January 2019 —E—h&F—H—H 37,320
Credit to profit or loss for the year FRFTAB=E (2,760)
Charged to equity for the year FREERNR 981
At 31 December 2019 N-Z-hE+=-BA=+—H 35,541
NON-INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS 30. EBRESE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders — FEATFE A B FEIE AG AR R 7118
of subsidiaries 6,817 6,817
Amounts due within one year included in FSFARBAEN—FR
current liabilities B HR 2 I8 (1,388) (1,388)
At 31 December n+—_BA=+—H 5,429 5,429

The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing with written
confirmations from certain non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries confirming that they will not demand repayment of
the balance of HK$5,429,000 within one year from the end of the
reporting period.

ZEFBEHAERFEREE - RIEEMH
BARARETIIHERBRIEG 2 EMmE
R EETSERNREPREBT —F
NEE#R%585,429,000/8 7T °
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—NFEt+=A=t+—H

ASSET AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD 31. PHEEBEHEZEERAR
FOR SALE/DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP HEH S5
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the (@) BHE-Z—N\F+_A=+— EI
management initiated a disposal plan to dispose a IEFE BEERRE—BEE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, named Bright %UJ:AHj%*FaWﬁé$%¥?§§&%
Success — Property Agency Company Limited (“Bright ERELH 2 AEEWB AT
Success”), which is engaged in property investment &H%‘ﬂ’/ﬂiﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁ Al ([ =B
and owns the Henggin Land. Accordingly, the following ME]) - Bt R-ZT—N\F
assets and liabilities of the disposal group were classified +=-—A=+—8 Tﬂtﬂ’iiﬂ |
as held for sale as at 31 December 2018. A gain on BERABEHDERFIELE - #
remeasurement of approximately HK$16,367,000 at BHPREMEREN»EBHBRZ
the date of reclassification on investment property E#H = W 416,367,000 5
under construction was recognised in the consolidated TEREBEZE-_Z—N\F+=A
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended = t+—HIEFEHFEE2EKERE
31 December 2018. On 28 October 2019, the Group R o R — )‘1&—1—)5]*—1-)\
entered into a disposal agreement with an independent H A&EEE-—BBILE=F
third party to dispose 100% equity interest in Bright FIVHERZE  MWIREREA
Success and shareholders’ loan due from Bright Success RENBesREARK(TAR
and its subsidiary at a cash consideration of Renminbi # 1) 300,000,000 7T (FBE R4
(“RMB”) 300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 335,664,000 7T ) tH & £ B 1 5
HK$335,664,000). The disposal was approved by the REKB R R 2 250 M EU
shareholders in the special general meeting and completed EBYERENBARZIRRE
on 18 December 2019. Details of the disposal are set ) o HEEBEENEHRERIAS
out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 October FERRIE  WERZZF—H
2019 and the Company’s circular dated 29 November F+A+NBRK - HEFHEF
2019. During the year ended 31 December 2019, a fair BEHRAANRBEH A —NF
value gain of approximately HK$4,577,000 (2018: loss of TAZ+FN\BHAMEARAFHR
approximately HK$23,008,000) on investment property HEZZE-—NF+—HA=+NAH
under construction was recognised in the consolidated HEEK B2 T —NF+=-A
statement of comprehensive income. =T—HLEFE  EEREED
¥R BEWEHK4,577,0007 7T
(ZZ—\#F : E518%923,008,000
/EK)EEAZ %ﬁuﬁ/\%f@uu °
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHT
Assets classified as held for sale: PERABEHEEE !
— Property, plant and equipment (note 18) —E - BB RaE(HEE18) 172
- Investment property under construction —{—Egﬂﬂxﬁ%% 441,961
- Prepayment and deposits —FENRERES 5,702
— Restricted bank deposit (note 23) — X R HRITEE (Bﬁ 23) 6,271
— Trade and other receivable — B 5 R H A fE W RIR 100
— Cash and cash equivalents —-ReENFRELER 17,510
471,716
Liabilities associated with assets classified as BELEARELE
held for sale: EEMHBEZAE:
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R HALER IR 27,565
- Bank loans (note 28(c)) —iRTTER(HIFE28(c)) 41,649
— Deferred tax —IBIERIIR 13,831
83,045
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31. ASSET AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD 31. PHEEBEHEZEERAR
FOR SALE/DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP HEHEHR -#
- Continued
(@) - Continued (@) —4&

The following are the assets and liabilities in respect of the

disposal group disposed of on the date of completion:

BT AE R B E &
R AEREE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FET
Assets and liabilities of the disposal group derecognised X I ERTHEAR T EERBE
— Investment property under construction —EERIEEYHE 440,310
— Restricted bank deposit —ZBRHIRITER 6,154
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 KHEAMEWEIE 671
— Cash and cash equivalents —-ReNFRIELER 5,655
— Trade and other payables — B 5 RHEAMENFIE (12,443)
— Shareholders’ loans —REE K (461,564)
- Deferred tax —RERTE (14,699)
(35,916)
Release of foreign exchange reserve on disposal B R RN (1 42,107
6,191
Cash consideration HeRE 335,664
Less: Shareholders’ loans of disposal group assumed o FTERIER R EERIREREER (461,564)
(125,900)
Loss on disposal HEBE (132,091)
Transaction costs on disposal HERX S (8,540)
Loss on disposal and related transaction costs & B5 18 RABRE R SRR (140,631)
2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEESXZRETRAFRE
Cash consideration HERE 335,664
Less: transaction costs paid B BN R GEHA (8,540)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRES RERBSIEE (5,655)
321,469
(o)  During the year end 31 December 2018, the Group b)) BEZET—N\F+-H=+—H

HEE  AEBLEEFLES
FIEHEEE 232,429,000 7T
THREF  BRERELNBRR

disposed of the land and building reclassified as
assets held for sale amounted to HK$32,429,000 at a
consideration, net of transaction cost, of HK$51,454,000,

realising a gain of on disposal of approximately S A% 551,454,000 7T © B
HK$19,025,000. I & R #4919,025,000%8 7T °
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

216

(@)

(b)

32. B&*x
Authorised and issued share capital (@ ZEEREBRITERAX
Number of shares Total value
ROEE wEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF —N\E —E-NE —T-N\F
'000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T TR T
Authorised: EE
At the beginning and the end of year ~ REHRFREREE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 0BTz Lk 1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRARE :
At the beginning and the end of year ~ RAEHRFREREE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 0BTz Lk 694,302 694,302 69,430 69,430

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with
each class of capital.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A

(b)

HE-_ZT-hhF+=-_HA=+—H
WEFEA - ANQF sk E A B
NRMERES HEXBEEAAR
AR ETWES o

ErRERER
AEBRRERE B WEE
BREMEEEER  WBEBE
B s < FERGRETE -
RERFIEA@E -

A& E 2B EETE SR E
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33.

32. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 32. BRE¥E-w
(b) Capital Risk Management - Continued (b) EXEBEE-&F
The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting period were as REERR s EEABLERNT -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Total liabilities A& 1,095,668 818,886
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREIBEH (261,376) (84,804)
Net debts BEIFEE 834,292 734,082
Equity R 641,727 981,501
Gearing ratio BEBELER 1.300 0.748
RESERVES 33. iR
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B3R E MABER REBEF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Company FIN/NET| FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 376,715 243,302 102,972 722,989
Dividend paid to owners of the IS iZN/NCIEZ ZE PN
Company (note 16(i) 2 & 8 (I sE16(i) - - (13,886) (13,886)
Profit for the year FEEVEA - - 10,430 10,430
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+=A
1 January 2019 e il =53
—E—NF—H—H 376,715 243,302 99,516 719,533
Dividend paid to owners of the I i /NCIE Z =N
Company (note 16iii)) 2 BB (BT EE16(i)) - - (6,943) (6,943)
Loss for the year FEEE - - (87,203) (37,203)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF
+=—A=+—H 376,715 243,302 55,370 675,387
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RESERVES - continued
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve

within owners’ equity:

Reserve

f#E

—NFEt+=A=t+—H

33. (il -
ATHANEEARSE FEREZIEE
KR

Description and purpose

B A&

Share premium

gyl
Contributed surplus

BAZER

Capital reserve

B

Property revaluation reserve

YEEMFER

Foreign exchange reserve

SN e s

Retained profits
RE B

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

RBRAZRELEERD

The difference between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company under the group reorganisation in 2002 and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share issued for the acquisition.
AARBBE_EE_FEEEFAMPERB AR c B EE FREBEADTG
WEEFTB TR EEM 2 Z£58 ©

Amount contributed by the equity holders.
BRFANTENRE -

Gains/losses arising on revaluation of properties.

EEMEMEEZ W BE -

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas operations into
presentation currency.

ENBREBINEBEEFRREBRERMEEZ W B -

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

KB R 2 RIE Wt M ERIFER -

REABRE-NN—FR Tif(ﬂflAZ

contributed surplus account of the Company is available for aT) ARABZBABBEATHSIK

distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its (@)
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than (b)

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =
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34.

LEASES 34.

HKFRS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. For an explanation of the transitional
requirements that were applied as at 1 January 2019, see Note
2(a). The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019, as disclosed in note 4(g)(A).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

Ha
R-Z-NF—A - HBRAKFTEHBR
EFEAFE165 - BEWEEILLEREF -
BT -NF-A—HEMABERTE
ZHA - R c RERERBH
“E-hF-A-HZREANEK
RIBERMIEE4Q)A) °

ERAEEE HEAR

Land and buildings

T RIEF

Right-of-use Lease
assets liabilities
EREEE HEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NFE—HF—H 408,703 408,703
Additions NE 129,506 129,506
Depreciation e (141,238) -
Lease modification HEEB®R (24,643) (25,488)
Loss on impairment* B (68,571) =
Interest expenses MEMZ = 21,619
Lease payments fAEzE = (148,721)
Exchange adjustment [ 5 A (497) (420)
At 31 December 2019 N_E—NF+-_A=+—H 303,260 385,199

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, management of the Group has * HE_Z-NF+_A=+—BILFE"

provided impairment loss on right-of-use assets of several restaurants and
food souvenir shops in Macau, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Mainland China
which were loss-making for quite some time. Due to the lack of an active
market for these right-of-use assets, management has considered that
the right-of-use assets of these restaurants and food souvenir shops may
not be easily sold and may have insignificant re-sale value. Accordingly,
full impairment on such remaining right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$68,571,000 had been made in 2019.

AEBERERUNRM - BF - 8
FERAERANRFERSEEZETE
ERRGFEEZERAEEETIRBER
BREE AZSEREEERZERT
% EEERRUEEERRRFERE
ZHERAEEEAMERSLE - BAJaEl
TESEAEEEE WERZ=ZFT—NF
REZSEHRTERAREEEFEZERERN
68,571,000/ 7T °
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34.

220

LEASES - continued 34.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not been
restated. See note 2(a) for further details about transition.

HE-»
AEBMRERERE B BRELRS
16 AR EEYBEN -
—NE—F— B2 ENEBAEREL
IR EEGEREI7TR I EAE
UHECHERB HERE N
—NE+-A=+—BZAEERT
mEF| - HREIBE Y — ST R
FE2(a) ©

2019

o
HK$’000
FiBx

Current liabilities e
Non-current liabilities EE

it
i

N

A

gy
b

126,980
258,219

385,199

Carrying amount repayable:

RIEERMEE

2019

o
HK$’000
FiET

Within one year —F R

126,980

More than one year, but not later than two years BB —FERFR 111,401
More than two years, but not later than five years BAMFEERFN 144,275

More than five years AR T

2,543

385,199
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34.

LEASES - continued 34.
Operating leases - lessee

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain land
and buildings, and the leases for certain restaurants include
contingent rents, which are determined by applying predetermined
percentages to revenue less the basic rentals of the respective
leases. As at 31 December 2018, these leases have an average
life of one to ten years with renewal option included in the
contracts. The total future minimum lease payments under the
non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

HE-»

REHEE - AAA

AEBMORET HRIEFITvELM
4 METEBZ2ROBERRES
ZIEMASERETE D LREEREEELD
EAMSZARET - RZB—N\F
+-A=+—8 ZEAHTEHARY—
F+E - AHBRAETREE - N
—NE+-A=+—8  TABHE
BEE T HARSERSFRBENT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

T

Not later than one year THEB—F 149,972
Later than one year and not later than five years HBE—FERFA 297,938
Over five years s s Al d 13,404
Total Bt 461,314
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34.

222

LEASES - continued

Operating leases - lessor

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties of the Group
was vacant. Where possible the Group always endeavours to
sub-lease vacant space on short-term lets. No minimum rent
receivables are under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31
December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the investment
property of the Group was leased to a tenant for a term of
approximately 8 years. The rental income during the year ended
31 December 2019 was HK$6,096,000.

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

34.

HE-=

KERE-HBEA
RZE—N\E+_A=+—8 £5E
HEMEDNAHEE - X5B—HES
RATBRATAESHEEFXSHBE
Tl RZTE-NFF+A=+—8 "
BES T AHECERER T &EEKAE

2N
S

REE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HI1LF
B AEER—EEPLHEKREDE -
BHHSE - RBEE-ZT—NF+=A
=+—HIFEZHE WA E6,096,000
PETT °

TAEH A & M E 18 T (K FE YA & 40
T

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHIT

Not later than one year B —F 12,422 -
Later than one year and not later than B —FEMFNRN

two years 17,400 -
Later than two years and not later than BBRRFEE=FRN

three years 17,400 -
Later than three years and not later than BE=FBNFENRN

four years 17,400 -
Later than four years and not later than HBNFERFRN

five years 19,970 -

Later than five years Bl A 69,008 -

153,600 =
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35.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

HOLDING COMPANY

35. HEARZMBRRE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B5E FHET FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB AT R 387,718 63,110
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i A YNGR 820,883 834,116
Other receivables H b fE W FR0R 302 55
Cash and cash equivalents Re kERRESIEE 1,550 769
Total current assets MBEERRE 822,735 834,940
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H b FERIRIR 2,059 3,302
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR SN E e 463,577 105,785
Total current liabilities BB EEE 465,636 109,087
Net current assets REBEEFEHE 357,099 725,853
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAEERE 744,817 788,963
Net assets EEZRE 744,817 788,963
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital H& 32 69,430 69,430
Reserves HE 33 675,387 719,533
Total equity by ] 744,817 788,963
On behalf of the directors RERES

Chan See Kit, Johnny

RBA

JON N

Chan Chak Mo
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36.

224

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The table lists below the subsidiaries of the Group which have in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the
opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

36.

REEARZHES

TERHFINESA/UAKRERENEE
BREAFEZAKENBERR - EF
RB/WINEEMHB AR ZFIFTESE

FHBR T -

Percentage of
Nominal value nominal value of issued/
of issued and registered capital
Place of incorporation/ fully paid/ as at 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations Principal activities registered capital 2018 and 2019
ER=Z-NER
ZE-AFT=A=t+-R
BETRAR BRT/ARRA
WEARER HMRL B e FTEER kE/ERRAEE AEADL
Directly Indirectly
HE GE
Bright Elite Gourmet Company Limited Macau Food souvenir MOP30,000 - 70%
(“Bright Elite”)
ERRABRAR (ER]) 38! RaFR 30,0002 - 70%
Bright Fame Restaurant Limited Hong Kong Operation of franchise HK$3,000,000 = 100%
restaurant
ESRERERAA &R BERHREEE 3,000,000/ - 100%
Bright Gain Restaurant Company Limited ~ Macau Operation of restaurant MOP25,000 - 100%
XBEFARAA 3! BE2E 25,0002 - 100%
Bright Luck Gourmet Company Limited Macau QOperation of food MOP30,000 - 100%
processing centre
EERMERAT 9 BERMMIHL 30,0002 - 100%
Bright Mark Restaurant Limited Hong Kong Operation of franchise HK$1 = 100%
restaurant
ERESARAT &h BERTEEEE 18T - 100%
Bright Noble Company Limited Macau Operation of franchise MOP25,000 - 100%
restaurant
EENERAA i RERHRedE 25,000&F 7T - 100%
Bright Prosper Catering Management Macau Operation of coffee shop MOP30,000 - 100%
Company Limited and restaurant
ERNERERARARA o mensEREE 30,0002 - 100%
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36.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continued 36. RBARZHER -
Percentage of
Nominal value nominal value of issued/
of issued and registered capital
Place of incorporation/ fully paid/ as at 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations Principal activities registered capital 2018 and 2019
ER=B-NER
Z8-hnE+ZA=+-H
BEATRAR BRfT/ERRA
WEAR R EMRL/ AL/ EEHE  TTEE &/ ERRAEE HAERDL
Directly Indirectly
HE i
Bright Rich Restaurant Limited Hong Kong Operation of restaurant HK$300,000 - 100%
ERER(ER)RRAA &E BEZE 300,000 7T - 100%
Bright Success Restaurant Limited Hong Kong Operation of restaurant HK$1,000,000 100% =
EBESBRAT 3 BeEE 1,000,000 100% -
Era Catering Management Macau Operation of restaurant MOP25,000 - 50.8%
Company Limited (“Era Catering”)®
BRERERARNA(RAEHR])R 3! BEEE 25,000&F 7 - 50.8%
FB Group Enterprises Management Macau Administrative and MOP25,000 = 100%
Company Limited (‘FBG") supporting services
ESSECEERARAR(ERER]) &M TR ERE 25,0002 - 100%
Full Power Limited Hong Kong Property investment HK$1 100% =
2ERARAA &k NERE 18T 100% -
Future Bright Restaurant Hong Kong Administrative and HK$1 100% =
(Hong Kong) Limited supporting services
ERER(ER)RRAA &R TRRERS 17T 100% -
Golden Reality Limited Hong Kong Property investment HK$1 = 100%
SRBRAF 3 WERE 1T - 100%
Hamilton Limited Hong Kong Operation of restaurant HK$500,000 - 100%
#EBRAH &R K2EE 500,000% T - 100%
Hou Wan Group Company Limited Macau Property investment MOP25,000 - 100%
FEREARAA 9 WERE 25,0002 - 100%
Nippon Gourmet Trading Company Limited Macau Trading of foods MOP25,000 - 100%
RXRWESABAT 9 RmE% 25,0002 7 - 100%
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36.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. RBARZER -
Percentage of
Nominal value nominal value of issued/
of issued and registered capital
Place of incorporation/ fully paid/ as at 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations Principal activities registered capital 2018 and 2019
ER=Z-NER
“8-nE+ZA=+-H
BRITRER BRT/EREA
WEAR R HMRL B LEns  TEER RE/ERBAEE AERDL
Directly Indirectly
HE i
Regent King Holdings Limited Hong Kong Administrative and HK$1 100% -
supporting services
REEEARAR &k TR RS RRS BT 100% -
Restaurante Chun leng Limitada Macau Operation of restaurant MOP25,000 = 100%
RRERERAA 9 B2EE 25,0002 7 - 100%
Success Cuisine Company Limited Macau Operation of restaurant MOP30,000 - 75%
(“Success Cuisine”)®l
HEHRRERAR( LERR ] = BEEE 30,0002 - 75%
Successful Food Company Limited Macau Operation of restaurant MOP30,000 = 80%
(“Successful Food”)
RERMERAR(&ERR])Y & B2EE 30,0002 - 80%
Wealth Bright Catering Company Limited ~ Macau Operation of franchise MOP25,000 - 100%
restaurant
REEHRE 3! BeRTesE 25,0002 - 100%
ENTERERERAR Mainland China Operation of restaurant US$12,400,000 = 100%
AR KeRE 12,400,000% T - 100%
KEEEERRRAA " Mainland China Operation of franchise RMB10,000,000 - 100%
restaurant
EIKEE BERTREEE AR 10,000,007 - 100%
HENERHBERAR Mainland China QOperation of franchise RMB10,000,000 = 100%
restaurant
B KHE BERHEEEE AR 10,000,007 - 100%
HEEEERBERAR Mainland China Operation of restaurant RMB15,000,000 = 100%
AR LeRE ARH15,000,0007T - 100%

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =
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36.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

REEARZHES -#

Percentage of

Nominal value nominal value of issued/
of issued and registered capital
Place of incorporation/ fully paid/ as at 31 December
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations Principal activities registered capital 2018 and 2019
ER=Z-NER
ZE-NEtZAZT-H
BRITRER BRI/ ZRRA
HWEARER HMRL B EEns  TEER RE/ERBAEE AERDL
Directly Indirectly
HE i
HENEEHBRAR " Mainland China Operation of restaurant RMB10,000,000 = 100%
B K B2EE AE#10,000,0007T - 100%
SHESRBRAR Taiwan Operation of restaurant Taiwan dollars (‘TWD”) = 100%
5,000,000
[ HeZE a%(a%l) - 100%
5,000,0007T
AEEBENEEENERLA Taiwan Operation of franchise TWD5,000,000 - 100%
restaurant
=) BERHREEE &%5,000,0007C - 100%
AENEERERLA Taiwan Operation of franchise TWD5,000,000 = 100%
restaurant
fig BENTReEE &%5,000,0007T - 100%
* These companies are registered as a wholly owned foreign enterprise in * ZERNRNPEAEMBINGBERSE -

Mainland China.

Bright Elite, a 70% owned subsidiary of the Company, has material non-
controlling interests.

Era Catering, a 50.8% owned subsidiary of the Company, has material non-
controlling interests.

Success Cuisine, a 75% owned subsidiary of the Company, has material
non-controlling interests.

Successful Food, a 80% owned subsidiary of the Company, has material
non-controlling interests.

The non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period.

(1) ARRERTONESZHMBRAREEEE

BEARIFERR R o

@ RRABHEBE50.8% = 2 M B ARA

i

AR BN -

@) RARERTRER B AT LERR
BEEEAIFERER o

(4) ARRHEHB0%Em 2 B AR RERM
BEERIERR S -

(6) FIEAEEEEERA 2 HMHBARZ
FFERERRERTERX °

6) RmE L - BEME A R ETERES

B -
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36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36.
Summarised financial information in relation to the non-controlling
interests of Bright Elite, before intra-group eliminations, is
presented below:

REEARZHES -
REBARREEHHER - EERIFER
BB MBERBZZ250T

228

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FA&TT
For the year ended 31 December HETZA=1+T—HIEFE
Revenue &S 98,509 74,749
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year G A EIE & 2 HEE A% (24,623) (27,692)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DEEIEIE S 2 1B (7,387) (8,308)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests KB T IEE R 2 IR B - =
For the year ended 31 December BHE+-_A=1+—RHILEE
Cash flows generated from/(used in) EEEEE(FTA)
operating activities RenR=E 13,454 (10,120)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEERBFMARERE (2,039) (35,511)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEE (R, e
financing activities WEME (14,342) 47,351
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be(Rd),/RAFE (2,927) 1,720
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H
Current assets MBEE 30,309 35,503
Non-current assets ERBEE 60,948 37,327
Current liabilities mENBE (272,918) (254,822)
Non-current liabilities ERBARE (30,382) (5,428)
Net liabilities AEFE (212,043) (187,420)
Accumulated non-controlling interests St IEIe R RS (63,613) (56,226)
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36. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued 36. RMHEBARIZER-#
Summarised financial information in relation to the non-controlling REBNRNRN A M EEAT 0 EBEABPEEIE
interests of Era Catering, before intra-group eliminations, is ERERBACYHBERBEZYMT

presented below:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&TT
For the year ended 31 December HE+Z-A=1T—HIEFE
Revenue WS 24,548 28,173
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRF REE W= ETE
for the year 346 3,405
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests DR IR 2 i A 170 1,675
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IREE T IEE R 2 AR B - =
For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=1+—HItFE
Cash flows used in operating activities KEEBTARESRE (5,452) (3,849)
Cash flows used in investing activities KERBFMARERE (14) (68)
Net cash outflows e mLFeE (5,466) (3,917)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FH&TT
As at 31 December R+=ZRA=+—AH
Current assets mENEE 45,797 46,027
Non-current assets EMENEE 127 178
Current liabilities mEaE (6,560) (7,187)
Net assets BEFHE 39,364 39,018
Accumulated non-controlling interests RIS 19,367 19,197

ANNUAL REPORT &% 2019 229



Notes to the Financial Statements iR HMizE
31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+-_A=+—H

36.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continued 36.
Summarised financial information in relation to the non-controlling
interests of Successful Food, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

REEARZHES -
REBARREHHER - ERERMIE
EREnAREMBEEMIEZ5T

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
For the year ended 31 December HETZA=1+T—HIEFE
Revenue W zs 41,660 53,454
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRF REE K =BT
for the year 16,458 21,809
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests DELE IEIE AR 2 2 S T 3,292 4,362
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests KBS T IEIE R A S 2 AR B - =
For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=+—HIFE
Cash flows generated from operating activities & & EE SRS RE 15,309 18,608
Cash flows used in investing activities KERBMARERE (37,838) (31,662)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) BEESRE(FrA)
financing activities REME 22,809 (3,061)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) WERA Gt F58 280 (16,115)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H
Current assets MBEE 103,695 66,580
Non-current assets ERBEE 79 72
Current liabilities mENBE (50,756) (30,090)
Net assets BE TR 53,018 36,562
Accumulated non-controlling interests IR R 10,604 7,312
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36.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Continued 36.

Summarised financial information in relation to the non-controlling
interests of Success Cuisine, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

REEARZHES -#
REBRRREHHER - 2 EERRIE
ERERARMBEMEZ25T

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT
For the year ended 31 December HE+_-_A=+—"HILFE
Revenue WS 65,751 77,100
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRF REE W= ETE
for the year 22,383 29,014
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests DELE IEIE A R 2 2 Sk T 5,596 7,254
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IREE T IEE R 2 AR B - =
For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=1+—HItFE
Cash flows generated from operating activities &4 E8ERERE 17,557 24,141
Cash flows used in investing activities KEERBFMARERE (108,545) (45,455)
Cash flows generated from financing activities & HEMEREHRE 90,019 5,338
Net cash outflows e ML FER (969) (15,976)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
As at 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H
Current assets MENEE 223,526 116,587
Non-current assets EMENEE 218 243
Current liabilities mEBAE (152,241) (67,710)
Net assets BEFH 71,503 49,120
Accumulated non-controlling interests SEtIEIE RS 17,876 12,280
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—NFEt+=A=t+—H

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the Year, save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following significant transactions
with related parties:

(@)

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED # =

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
received management fee income and promotion
fee income of approximately HK$3,888,000 (2018:
HK$3,812,000) and HK$303,000 (2018: HK$720,000)
respectively, on a reimbursement of expenses sharing
basis, from several companies of which a director of the
Company is also a director and holds an ultimate non-
controlling interest of such companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
made lease payments of HK$3,420,000 (2018:
HK$3,600,000) to Mr. Chan, to lease a shop premise
located at a Em Macau, Patio Da Ameaca No. 1-A, Res-
do-Chao A com Sobreloja, Macau with a gross floor
area of approximately 74 square meters, under the
lease agreement dated 29 August 2014 and a series of
supplementary agreements entered in 2015, 2017, 2018
and 2019 between Mr. Chan (as landlord) and Bright Elite,
a subsidiary of the Company (as tenant), with the latest
maturity date on 30 September 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
paid promotion expenses of approximately MOP270,000
(equivalent to HK$262,000) (2018: MOP270,000 (equivalent
to HK$262,000)) to Mr. Chan under the media advertising
agreement (“LED Advertisement Agreement”) dated 23
August 2018 between Mr. Chan and FBG, a subsidiary
of the Company where FBG had been provided with
advertising services in Macau for a term of one year
commencing from 1 September 2018 to 31 August
2019 at an annual consideration of MOP270,000. On
30 August 2019, Mr. Chan and FBG have renewed this
LED Advertising Agreement for another one year from 1
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 for the same annual
consideration of MOP270,000.

EEERRAT

37.

EXREALRS
RAEE fﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BEEI

AREBEBEBALETZE

ARZ ST

(@)

HE-_ZT—-hAhF+=-A=1+—H
IHFE  AEBBIREMNSER
SEERABR AR (KRAE £
BEENAZERARIZESHES
ZERAZ IR ERS) D
AR EREBRARE EBRA
#93,888,0008 7L (=T — \F :
3,812,000 % 7T ) % 303,000 7T
—\%E : 720,000 7T) °

HE-_Z—-—hF+=-_A=+—H
IEFE - IREFRE AR T
BRARERMEAMEFR)FIFIL
E,ﬁﬂﬁif—mi/\ﬂ_ﬂ'ﬂﬁ
é(ﬁ‘ﬁf—itm LMSUBZ ZF'%A

—HF - —+tF /\
¢&_7—n¢z—§7;wﬁ}m
H(BREIHBEA-ZZ=ZFNA
:"I'EI) Ai%@ﬁﬁ%’ﬁi{fmm
& 133,420,000 T (—ZF— N
£ : 3,600,000 7T) + AMHEA
PRPIERE-ASE L AR &2
HEBLHT4FEFRZIEHHE -

HE-_ZT—NhF+=-A=1+—8H
IHFE  REEREREERR
AEIMBARESEBATRIZ A
BHeE-_ZT-—NFNAZ+=AZ
HeEEHa((LEDES W)
M) BR 55 £ 1 5 E # %9270,000
SBPYIT (M E 1K 262,000/8 ) (=
Z— \4E : 270,000;8F9 7t (&
%262,0005%7%)) %%%IE
PR P R 4 Fiﬁlﬁﬁ Q

—)\Enﬂ HfExE— hi
)\H:Jr—EIJU%,H;@—E FE
KRB A270,00008F 7T - R =F
—NWENA=+H  BRELEE
SEEELEDESHE B =
E-AFENA—BREE-_ZE-F
ENA=1+—HILAH—% &
FERAE1A270,00032FF 7T °
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37.

38.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

- Continued

©

C)

As at 31 December 2019, four (2018:five) mortgage loans
of approximately HK$61,747,000 (2018:HK$76,909,000),
approximately HK$30,026,000 (2018:HK$38,529,000),
approximately HK$153,640,000 (2018: HK$167,000,000)
and approximately HK$97,087,000 (2018: HK$48,544,000)
of the Group contained a covenant that Mr. Chan and
his associates had to hold not less than 37% (2018:
37%) equity interest holding of the Company. As at 31
December 2018, one mortgage bank loan of approximately
HK$41,649,000 of the Group contained a covenant that
Mr. Chan and his associates had to hold not less than
37% equity interest holding of the Company and has been
fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2019, one (2018: one) unsecured
bank loan of approximately HK$26,500,000 (2018:
HK$43,197,000) with maximum facility of HK$80,000,000
(2018:HK$80,000,000) and a bank overdraft facility of
HK$35,991,000 (2018: HK$25,534,000) with maximum
facility of MOP40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,835,000)
(2018: MOP40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,835,000))
of the Group contained a covenant that Mr. Chan and his
associates had to hold not less than 37% (2018: 37%)
equity interest holding of the Company.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year ended 31 December 2019
are disclosed in notes 12 and 13.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2018: nil).

37.

38.

EXREALEZS-#

@ HRZFBE-—hF+=—A=+—8"
AREBEMNBE(ZZE—N\E: |
18 ) 1 18 B 3 4 61,747,000 78
7T (== — /\F : 76,909,000
& JC) ~ #730,026,0007% 7T (=
=T — )\ £ : 38,529,000/ 7T )
#)153,640,0008 T (=& — N\
& : 167,000,000 & 7T ) K 4
97,087,000 7L (=& — )\ -
48,544,000 70) * BIHE—1H R
W BTEREEREBRE AL
BARARBFETLRIT% (=
T— \F : 37%) AR -
—E-NF+=ZA=+—8H "
REBE 2 —BZRBRITERLY
41,649,000 TEBHEREBEE =
E—hhFE+-_A=+—HBItFE
BE ERHE—HRL  RE
PROCAE R EBE A LBRARR
BAETDLRIT%(ZFE—\F :
37%) WAHEER - RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—H A£EEF—HE
(Z=2—N\F : —IH)EEART
B2 4926,500,000/8 T(ZZE— N\
F 1 43,197,000/87L) * IR E
%8 /580,000,000 7L (=& — )\
% 1 80,000,000/ 7)) & —I8ER
1735 % Bt & 35,991,000 7T (=
T — )\ £ : 25,534,000/ T ) °
&= 8 & %8 /440,000,000 F9 7T
(& 138,835,000 L) (=&
— A\ : 40,000,000 97T (8%
738,835,000/8 L)) * & —1H
2H - REREEREBEAL
ARARRBIFBTLNI7%(ZF
— 5 : 37%) R ZAERS ©

(©) BEENHMTIEEBABRES
—E-AE+-_A=+—RHI#E
2 FHBIR TR 12513 o

BRAR
R-ZZT—AF+=-A=+—8  £%H
VEERMEAXIARBE(ZFT-N\F:
&) -
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

()

(b)

234

39. HRAHSRERME
(@) HZERTREXRNRESRER

consolidated statements of cash flows comprise: BSIEEEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TET
Cash and bank balances e MiRTTERS 261,376 84,804

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(b) BMEFHFELEREBIHER:

activities:
Interest
bearing
borrowings
reclassified
as liabilities
of a disposal
Interest group  Non-interest
bearing classified as bearing Lease
borrowings  held for sale  borrowings liabilities
(note 28) (note 31) (note 30) (note 34) Total
BN EA
PEREE
HEZHE
anak
GtERE ZHERE EERE HEAR
(KtzE28) GEXN (Kt&£30) GEXY st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TER TER TR TER
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-F—H 420,813 41,649 6,817 408,703 877,982
Changes from cash flows: Reness :
Proceeds from interest bearing R ETERE
borrowings 59,844 - - - 59,844
Repayment of interest bearing BEFTBER
borrowings (55,166) (41,649 - - (96,815)
Repayment of current portion of BEHEaENHNS
lease liabilities - - - (127,102 (127,102
Interests paid 2FE (14,901) (1,013) - (21,619) (37,533)
(10,223) (42,662) - (148,721) (201,606)
Other changes: Hih s
Interest expenses FlEEY 14,901 1,013 - 21,619 37,533
Exchange adjustment R - - - (420) (420)
Additions of lease liabilities NETRERRE - - - 129,506 129,506
Lease modification HEBH - - - (25,488) (25,488)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+=-RA=1—H 425,491 - 6,817 385,199 817,507
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(b)

39. NOTES SUPPORTING THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEDERNERME-w
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b)) WMETBRELEG2ZY
activities: - Continued BR:—4&
Interest
bearing
borrowings
reclassified
as liabilities
of a disposal
Interest group Non-interest
bearing classified as bearing
borrowings held for sale borrowings
(note 28) (note 31) (note 30) Total
ERHER
DR
LEZHE
G-l
AEEE ATEEE BEEE
(FizE28) (FizE31) (Fiz£30) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET T TET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\F—HA—H 443194 - 6,817 450,011
Changes from cash flows: Benres
Proceeds from interest bearing loans st B E TG E 167,000 - - 167,000
Repayment of interest bearing loans BEITEER (144,036) (3,696) - (147,732)
Interests paid BHAFIS (11,985) (688) = (12,673)
10,979 (4,384) - 6,595
Other changes: H i
Reclassified as liabilities of a disposal ~ EFABADBEAHEEHE
group classified as held for sale ZHERRNERE (45,345) 45,345 = =
Interest expenses 2L 11,129 688 - 11,817
Capitalised borrowing costs BARILEERA 856 - - 856
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—)\F
+=A=1+—"H 420,813 41,649 6,817 469,279
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40.

41.

236

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BTEEIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Contracted but not provided for BRI R ER AR
— property, plant and equipment — W - B NEE - 22,281
— Investment property under construction —ENMDBANERIFE
reclassified as assets of a disposal HEZHEMRAREEZ
group classified as held for sale TP REYSE - 40,697
- Investment property under construction —EERIEEYE - -
Total HEt - 62,978
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 41. BENESZEMEEREMA
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY REE

The following table shows the carrying amount and financial assets
and liabilities as defined in note 4(j). At the end of reporting period,
the carrying values of loans and receivables and financial liabilities
at amortised cost approximate their fair value.

TRINTHFAVIRESREERARE
ZHREE - RI|BEHL - ERRERZK
BARREHK AT EZ BB ERA

EREAABEMES -

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&TT
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial asset measured BAREBEFABZITE
at FVTPL: ZERMEE
— Listed equity investment — FRAEE 58 108
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:  IREESHAN AT 8 2 S REE ¢
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 &k H A EU IR 101,571 111,343
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRFIIRITIER 27,155 24,181
- Cash and bank balances —IRE MIRTTHER 261,376 84,804
Financial liabilities THEeE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IRk 282 SR E & -
— Trade and other payables — B 5 REAERNIE 192,501 204,107
- Amount due to a joint venture —EN—EEeEtENRE 5,766 2,853
— Borrowings —fgE 432,308 427,630
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 385,199 -
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK 42,
MANAGEMENT
The Group’s major financial assets include bank deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and trade and
other receivables. The Group’s major financial liabilities include
trade and other payables and borrowings.

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following
financial risks:

Interest rate risk

Equity price risk

Currency risk

Liquidity risk

Credit risk

Policy for managing these risks is set by the directors of the
Group. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The policy for each of the above risks is described in more detalil

below.

(@)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises primarily
from its variable-rate bank deposits and interest bearing
borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored

by management is set out below.

The following table shown details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s bank deposits, interest bearing borrowings

MEIR-RRETHE

AEET2EREEBCRRITER &

NABEAABGEZEREENRES
REMEWHKIE AEETESRAR

BRESNEMBERNFBEAREE

REE B L EBAZIA THEER

. kAR
. RABRER
. HWEER
. RBELAR
. EAR

AEFEFECDHERRER LSRR

AEEEERREETESETREBT
B2 AAIEARE - UREREEAEE

MBRIRZBETFEE - 5L LR IA
R B TE < BRERF IR T3 »

(@) RI=Eg
AEEZREREFERABRES
REHEZEBRITERERFEE
B -EBREERZAEEMNEAE
BENTX -

TRAVNAEBERITER - 518
EERHERRERREHLZA

and lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period. KPE o
Effective Effective
interest rate 2019 interest rate 2018
BRAI=E “E-0F (I —E-N\E
(%) HK$’000 (%) HK$'000
(BAk) TET (AA) TR
Floating rate FENF R
Bank deposits RITFR 0.01 t0 0.3 227,532 0.01t00.3 74,484
0.01£0.3 0.0120.3
Interest bearing borrowings SFEEE 2.0t03.75 (425,491) 2.0103.75 (462,462)
2.023.75 2.0%3.75
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT- continued

238

(@)

(b)

Interest rate risk- Continued

It is estimated that as at 31 December 2019, a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss after tax and decrease/increase
retained profits by approximately HK$1,742,000 (2018:
HK$3,414,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rate had occurred
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis for 2018.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading).
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy and sell trading securities are
based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the index and other
industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.
Management monitors the price movements and takes
appropriate actions when it is required.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk includes the
Group’s financial instruments, of which fair value fluctuates
because of changes in their corresponding or underlying
asset’s equity price. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% higher/lower, loss after tax
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$5,000
(2018: HK$9,000).

FUTURE BRIGHT HOLDINGS LIMITED £S5 BERA A
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31 December 2019 —F
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT- continued

()

42. MEIR-RBREE-»

Foreign exchange risk () IMNERBS
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through its REFBAZEERAKRTERR
operations in Macau and Mainland China which give rise to HNRFRPBEAREZXB B
financial assets, trade payables and cash balances that are RAZE TS E A LASNE (BB XX 5 4H 8
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other ZEBZNEEEB AT ) FHE
than the functional currency of the operations to which the Zf‘t\ﬁj‘iﬁg B P ENFKRIBRIR
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk Htr o o B ZERZEMTE
are primarily Renminbi and Taiwan dollars. Z%AEM&E\M
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency ANE[E B R A SNE SRR o
hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by AEBBBEYERINEEEE
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency S IR HNEE | B 2 15 2E B 5T N b
rates and will consider entering into forward foreign FERHEIA A LUK FTH AR -
exchange contracts to reduce the exposure should the
need arise.
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the T%%EIJE; MEHREAERR
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from AEEEHBEI B ATt
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency BzEBREEXEBEMAZT 2
other than the functional currency of the entity to which B¥ER  MERMS @ IES
they related. For presentation purposes, the amounts of ZRBSEAB TR - WA
the exposure are shown in HK$, translated using the spot MERR Z BNEAE R E o
rate at the end of the reporting period.
Assets Liabilities
BE 8f
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NF —N\& —B-NF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT
RVMB ARE 99,383 158,652 23,558 52,600
TWD =L 2,913 6,148 48,700 8,557
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK 42, MBEIA-REEE-w
MANAGEMENT - continued
(c) Foreign exchange risk - Continued () HER-&
The following table indicates the approximate change TERBRAEEZBRAAEFREX
in the Group’s loss after income tax expense and other BRHEMGESEZRTER HENE
components of consolidated equity in response to B ARSI E S E KRR 2
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange EEXSEREEH oM
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at B IRIEESTEBHEAEREN
the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis A LABUGR A S IBERA 2 BE B
includes balances between Group companies where the LASNEHEE DB 2 &8k o TRET
denomination of the balances is in a currency other than MAFE > BEINEHLRKEHZ
the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The e EBAEXEBEI%H(ZF
following table indicates the approximate change in the —N\F 1%) REBZBRHEZ
Group’s loss after tax and other component of the equity EE N E M ERTE R 2 LA E) o
for the year a 1% (2018: 1%) appreciation or depreciation
in respective foreign currencies against the Group’s
functional currencies.
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\EF
Decrease/ Effect on Decrease/ Effect on
(increase) other (increase) other
in loss component inloss  component of
after tax of equity after tax equity
HBRER
HRBZER HEtER BE HEHMER
WD/ () HEzEE R /(M) BEZRE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TER THL THL
RMB to MOP: ARMHRMT
Appreciates by 1% FE1% 667 - 932 =
Depreciates by 1% B21E1% (667) - (932) -
TWD to MOP: AREAMT
Appreciates by 1% FHE1% (403) - (21) -
Depreciates by 1% B1E1% 403 - 21 -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT - continued

(c)

(d)

Foreign exchange risk - Continued

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to each of the group entities; exposure to currency risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the end of the next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and the MOP would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the
MOP against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent an aggregation
of the effects on each of the Group entities profit or loss
after tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis for 2018.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities, continuously monitoring payments for potential
investments, cash outflows in ordinary course of business
and regularly reviews its funding position to ensure it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations.

42. MEIR-RBREE-»

(c)

(d)

SNE R B — AT
HRAZEDITRRRINEE K&
HERNBEMRELYCOEAR
EEEEEMET @ EFIER
PTENEITAMB T A 2 G E
B E BB R P E A 2 8
(AR ) 5 T o

P it 8 Bh 45 IR FE RY (kS BEFE K
REZE T EFEHREHRE EHE
ZEEAEES - BUME
R ER P T 88 2 B T IE R 1R
ARELTEXRFITHEME
BEEZEMEDHTE - EXRA
2P MERAREAEEZE
BHRRRENKIBEERZSIM
FERHRERRERERXAAEH
b%%%ﬁ%i%@%%ﬁZ%
B AERE ONMBRE_T

—N\FHEZ EEETT -

REES R
AEBEFEBERRITRE  FE
ERBEREMNNR  AEEBR

b A RERBSEESR
o FERA RSN BB IRE B
BEE  WEBERBESER
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(d)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK 42, MBEIA-REEE-w
MANAGEMENT - continued
Liquidity risk - Continued (d REBEELREKE-&F
The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are shown as SRBEZENETHZY T -
below:
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than Less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
CrERiE)
Ak i -£R —-F% WER
REE | HRER EmER BRER nE#
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR AR AR AR AR
2019 “E2-nf
Non-derivatives: FTETA:
Amount due to a joint venture Ef—FaetEaR 5,766 5,766 5,766 - - -
Trade and other payables BARAMERNTE 192,501 192,501 192,501 - - -
Lease liabilities HERRE 385,199 433,852 134,459 124,910 171,300 3,183
Borrowings EE 432,308 465,368 127,744 88,779 152,147 96,698
1,015,774 1,097,487 460,470 213,689 323,447 99,881
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than Less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
LN
LRENE —FR —# MEf
REE &7 FHEEX {BmER BRER fik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TAL TAL TAL TAL
2018 “E-)\&
Non-derivatives: FHTETR:
Amount due to ajoint venture R -Ragtsaa 2,853 2,853 2,853 - - -
Trade and other payables BARAMENTE 204,107 204,107 204,107 - - -
Borrowings EE 427,630 470,952 74,193 100,579 178,081 118,149
634,590 677,912 281,153 100,579 178,081 118,149
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT - continued

(e)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group exposed to credit risk from receivables.
The Group assesses credit risk based on debtor’s past
due record, trading history, financial condition or credit
rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The following table provides information about the Group’s

42. MEIR-RBREE-»

(e)

FERRE

EERRERZIUTFRERES
MEBEEMERARBELMH
BRI RRR o 76 B B UK
RZEERR I’El@ﬁ%%iﬂ%
AZBEERCE - R P
MBRAKEEFRFBEER

G o
ZON

oh Th A

AEEAZZEERBREERE
BEHRAZBAFERTE - TF
RERETERBERZEZVRR
THEERREZE  EFER
1K o

TREHARASEAR ZES

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: FEWFBEEZERKR LIEEEZEE
B2 ER

Gross
Expected carrying
loss rate amount
EHIEEE REAE
% HK$’000
Aotk FHET

2019 —E—h"E
Current or less than 1 month past due BNEA Y 6 HE A A1 18 A 0.1% 22,063
1 to 3 months past due #HEA1ZE31E A 3% 3,798
More than 3 months past due #H BAERB3{E A 20% 3,993
Total FUIS 29,854
Gross
Expected carrying
loss rate amount
TEHASE X BRE4RE
% HK$’000
Btk FET

2018 —E—N\F
Current or less than 1 month past due B EAski& HA 4 FA1 {E A 0.1% 28,381
1 to 3 months past due wHER1Z=31E A 3% 5,151
More than 3 months past due B HAE3(E A 20% 2,302
Total FES 35,834
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT - continued

42,

MEIR-REREE-#

(e)  Credit risk - Continued () FERM-#
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of EFRNEBE S EIWHIER S B
trade receivables during the year is as follows: IR 2 BT -
2019 2018
—E-hE  —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&% - =
Impairment losses recognised FRERZREEE
during the year 57 -
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—H~ 57 -
The increase in days past due over 90 days resulted in an B BB 1B 90K 2 R B8 hn 8 2UE
increase in loss allowance of HK$57,000 which contributed BB IE IN57,000/8 7T © MimS
to significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of —E-NEFrEBESERFIERE
trade receivables during 2019. BEZESKREE -
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience TEHEBEREERNBASF 2 ER
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect EEREE -  ZEEEXRE/ELH
differences between economic conditions during the period B ARBEFE £ R AR/
over which the historic data has been collected, current kR - BRI A R A EE
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions HEUCGRIB R TR F BB AR
over the expected lives of the receivables. LEERZER o
Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions RITEBRTRNZHEEETRZ
in high credit rating and directors of the Company consider RAIMRE WARAESR AL
the credit risk for such is minimal. HEZEERBRIRE -
43. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 43. HftZEIE
Tax effect relating to each component of other EEMEESARBL BB 2HIE
comprehensive %
2019 2018
—E-NE “E-N\F
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expenses amount amount expenses amount
BRBL AT NERBE BREAT HBRHIA
S8 BERX £ Ea| HERX e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TEx TEx FHL FHL FEL
Item that will not be reclassified ~ BFEEHLEZ
to profit or loss: B#RZER .
Gain on revaluation of properties MESf ks 8,172 (981) 7,191 = = =
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44.

45.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

The current share option scheme of the Company was adopted
in June 2012, under which the Company may grant options to
the directors, employees, non-executive directors, suppliers of
goods and services, customers, advisors and consultants, and
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to them, to subscribe
for shares in the Company with the payment of HK$1 per offer.
The total number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted shall not exceed 30% of the issued Share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Shareholders. The exercise price of
the share option shall be determined at the higher of the average
of closing prices of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options; the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and the nominal value of the Shares. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years from
the date of grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 28 days after the date of offer.

The Company operates an equity-settled share based
remuneration scheme for employees. Several Hong Kong
employees are eligible to participate in the scheme, the only
vesting condition being that the individual remains an employee of
the Group for at least six months from the date of grant.

The Group did not enter into any share-based payment
transactions during last five years or in the year ended 31
December 2019. No options were outstanding as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Covid-19 infection in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across many countries/regions. The Group will
pay close attention to the development of Covid-19 infection and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results
of the Group. Pending development of such subsequent non-
adjusting event, the Group’s financial and operating performance
may be affected, the extent to which cannot be estimated as at
the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant subsequent
events after the year end date of 31 December 2019.

44.

45.

B% {73 3Z 1 ®R IR
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Financial Summary

BT E

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-hFE T RF T—tF T-)\F ZB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FET FHET FAT TER
RESULTS ES |
Turnover = 824,182 853,231 957,054 1,133,308 1,142,308
(Loss)/Profit before income tax B ETEFIAT(E1R) /3% FI (43,275) (2,502) 18,964 (64,760) (386,791)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTsRi(Fx),/ e (7,182) 4,244 (1,901) 9,227 11,624
(Loss)/Profit for the year ERN(ER) %mH (50,457) 1,742 17,063 (565,533) (375,167)
(Loss)/Profit attributable to AR AL
(B18),/ &7
- Owners of the Company —ARFHERA (45,907) (1,539) 11,015 (60,125) (376,838)
- Non-controlling interests — e iR (4,550) 3,281 6,048 4,592 1,671
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EER),&F (50,457) 1,742 17,063 (55,533) (375,167)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-RF ZEF ZZ—+F ZE-)\F ZB-NF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHT TR TERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Total assets BESRE 1,592,234 1,664,579 1,838,812 1,800,387 1,737,395
Total liabilities AfEEE (508,6623) 617,176) (767,688) (818,886)  (1,095,668)
Net assets BEFSE 1,083,571 1,047,403 1,071,124 981,501 641,727
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Group’s Properties

REEY=

PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

HEB A%
R=_—=—h&F+=-AR=+—H

Gross floor Lease Existing
Location area expiry year use
B EBEER AR E4H B A A%
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Unit AD on 2nd Floor of JBPY 849 Not applicable Office
Edif Nam Fong Building, REARNB 102358 i A /NS
No. 1023 Avenida De Amizade MARNE
Macau 2EADE
Unit F on 2nd Floor of JEFT 4,189 Not applicable Godown
Industrial Fu Tai, FRNT KB TE A BE
No. 251 Avenida De Vencoslau 2515}
De Morais BALERNE
Macau 2HEFE
Parcela D5, SEPY 149,017 Not applicable Office, godown,
Estrada Marginal KREBETXER N3 R central food
da llha Verde N° S/N, CRFEE) and logistic
Macau D Ex —D5 processing
158 centre
WAE - B -
RARARY R
Yl N AR 0y
PROPERTIES HELD FOR LEASE HEHERYE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 BH-ZE—h&F+=-HA=+—H
Gross floor Lease Existing
Location area expiry year use
(A= EEER AR E 4 B AT A%
(sq.ft.)
(FHR)
Centro Commercial E Turistico RPERR S 4 S B S 21,986

“S. Paulo”, Largo da Companha
de Jesus N2, Macau (note)

2R IETT RS

Bk O ()

Note:  Whole of the Ground Floor to 3rd Floor and Basement Level 1 to 3 of the property BiaE -

are leased.

Not applicable
NEm

Not applicable
TEm

EZMERNBTE=B2HBERZDENDE—E
= falarkii i
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Group’s Properties A& @Y%

PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION HELD BE_E—NF+-A=+—HIL=EE
FOR SALE DISPOSED DURING YEAR ENDED CEHISEHERERTI ZME
31 DECEMBER 2019
Gross floor Lease Existing
Location area expiry year use
vE EEEE AR BMEH BARIAZR
(sq.ft.)
(EAR)
A parcel of land — MBI A B K 139,625 Not applicable Not applicable
located at the junction HemEENE NiE A TEA
of Ziginan Road and Xiangjiang Road, THIFm@ER
Hengain New District, Zhuhai City, BIERIAR
Mainland China* 2T
* This property was disposed on 18 December 2019. * ZUER_ZE—NE+_A+N\BEH -
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores
BEERESEN TEH—BX

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES

R-E—-AF+ZA=1+—HERS#Z

OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: BB E=RERBEMC TEH
Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1t 26 DIE BHERl b:LB1d BREEE
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Macau:
P
Hotel Lisboa Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Ground Floor, Hotel Lisboa, 1,173
BBE I BARE AXEE Old Wing, Macau
RMERBEER T
Turtle Essence Chinese tonic shop Ground Floor, Hotel Lisboa, 603
BEM s Old Wing, Macau
RERBEERMT
Shiki Hot Pot Restaurant Chinese hot pot Ground Floor, Hotel Lisboa, 5,490
eSS restaurant Old Wing, Macau
W E RMERBEERMT
The Venetian MADEIRA Portuguese Portuguese restaurant Shop No. 2408a, St. Mark’s Square, 4,091
BEHTA Restaurant BHAEE The Venetian Macau
NEEEEE R AE BRA
5] E%2408a8
Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Shop No. 2311, The Grand Canal, 4,036
STEBARE BAZE The Venetian Macau
RFER BT AE BRI K&
FEMRL23114
Hundreds Taste Kitchen Taiwanese food court Shop No. 2500, The Grand Canal, 1,733
BRGAARE counter The Venetian Macau
BAERESIEL EFEVE B AE BRI K&
FEMHR0250040
Toei Delights Japanese food court Shop No. 2522, The Grand Canal, 1,297
BRTN\E counter The Venetian Macau
A ERESEA EFB R AEBRNAEN
By 0252248
Vergnano ltalian Restaurant talian restaurant Shop No. 2410, St. Mark’s Square, 4,091
ERYEATIEE EARE The Venetian Macau

(Converted into
a Bistro Seoul franchise
Korean restaurant in the
Year)

(RAFEREA
FiTc e B LE

HE ¢ B/E)

B E AT AE BN
BB E524108
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-B—NEF+ZA=+—HERBZ
BEXERBECL TEH: -w

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1t 2 DIE BHERl it BREEER
(sa.ft.)
(FAHR)
The Venetian 456 Modern Shanghai Cuisine  Chinese Shanghai Shop No. 2406 & 2408, 6,631
BT A MANHIREE restaurant St. Mark’s Square,
(To be converted into a Shiki R LEEE The Venetian Macau
Hot Pot restaurant in the AR AR INEL S Uh)
first half of 2020) B 5 0] [E152406 % 24084
(BR_Z=ZFL+FR
BUERMEARERE)
One Central Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Shop No. 236-238, 4,597
SHRES IE BARE BAZE One Central, Macau
RPIE Y E5236-2385 48
City of Dreams Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Shop 1101, The Boulevard, 6,767
KM LE BAEE BAEE City of Dreams, Estrada do Lstmo,
Cotai, Macau
-l U S e NS
FRRITRAE11014
Galaxy Macau Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Shop KLG101, Galaxy Macau, 450
SBPTER AT R A IS Cotai, Macau
RPIRE ARPIERITKLG101 48
Senkizen Japanese Restaurant  Japanese restaurant Shop 10486, First Floor, 2,158
TERAARE AREE Galaxy Macau, Cotai, Macau
SRFI I AORFI T — 10465
Sands Cotai Central Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Shop 1027, Sands Cotai Central, 4,961
G/ el TP AARE AXEE Macau
RPIE DI 010275 5
Macau University Food Paradise Student/staff canteen Ground Floor of Block E, Recreational 6,695
of Science and RiBX By BERE Complex, Macau University of
Technology Science and Technology,
AR ARE Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, Macau
EPI RS R
EFIRHR K 2ERE
EE)R LT
Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Ground Floor of Block C 150

Ak

FRHEE MBS
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-B—NF+ZA=+—HERBZ
BE XERGEC TEH: -4

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1t B 2E BHERl i3k BREEE
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Macau World Trade Shiki Hot Pot Restaurant Chinese hot pot restaurant 17 Floor, No. 918 World Trade 2,800
Center Business ey & P A AEE Center, Avenida de Amizade,
Executive Club Macau
AFERESHF D EPIREA BI85,
BBITHEN RFtRESH 078
Kiang Wu Hospital Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Ground Floor, Dr. Henry Y. T. Fok 467
EHER Ak T A NE IS Specialist Medical Center,
Kiang Wu Hospital, Macau
RPENBRERREL
ERBRABMT
University of Macau Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Wu Yee Sun Library, University of 4,455
EFIRE A g REHE 2 MR Macau, Avenida da Universidade,
Taipa, Macau
A LSS N YN 7
REARBLEREESR
Sandwich bar Sandwich bar Wu Yee Sun Library, University of Not
=304 =AIE Macau, Avenida da Universidade, applicable
Taipa, Macau TiE A
EFB T RERERE
RERBMEREER
Fortune Inn Restaurant Chinese restaurant Ground Floor, University Hall, 10,889
SEGE R EE University of Macau, Avenida da
Universidade, Taipa, Macau
EPB T RERER
RMREREGEMT
Student canteen Student canteen Residential Colleges 1 to 4, University Not
BERY BhfghE of Macau, Avenida da Universidade, applicable
Taipa, Macau NEH
EFBFREREHK
BPIRBIE4EEAER
International School Student/staff canteen Student/staff canteen Block K, The International School of Not
of Macau 24 BERE Br /BERE Macau, Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, applicable
RPIBIPR SR Macau NERA

RF A EESE
R B FR SBAKEE
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-B—NEF+ZA=+—HERBZ
BEXERBECL TEH: -w

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1t B o2& B8RSR 31k BEHEE
(sa.ft.)
(FHR)
Meng Fai Building Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot Ground Floor, Block B, 1,455
HEAE HRE = teppan restaurant Meng Fai Building,
e B R EE 34-38 Rua da Pedro Coutinho,
Macau
EPIEM S 134 Z 385
HEA BB T
The Parisian Senkizen Japanese Restaurant  Japanese restaurant Loja 3349, nivel 3, Shoppes at 8,890
ERA TEEAARE AAZE Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3
da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau
BPIRGEBE R F—H - E3E
RPIERABE Y .LIIE33495 5
Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot Loja 3558, nivel 5, Shoppes at 660
HE = teppan restaurant Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3
R A EIRER da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau
EPIRKEENK - F35 - B3R
RPIERABE Y.L 61235535 #
Hundred Taste Kitchen Taiwanese food court Loja 3555, nivel 5, Shoppes at 450
By & EE counter Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3
aAERESEN da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau
RPIRKEE AR - F—i5 - FE3MER
RPIEZR A B Y.L 51235555 #
Toei Delights Japanese food court Loja 3552, nivel 5, Shoppes at 610
REmTN\&E counter Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3
BAERESEN da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau
BPIREERE - Bl - S
EPIE R A BB 512355255 i
Le Sourire Vietnamese food court Shop 3559, nivel 5, Shoppes at Not
EA ¢ AR counter Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3 applicable
BAERBSEA da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau NEF
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES

R-E—-AF+ZA=1+—HERS#Z

OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued EB XERBEL TEH: -4
Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
12 25 BHER 31k BEEEE
(sa.ft.)
(FAHR)
The Parisian The Hua Xia House Chinese food court counter  Shop 3551, nivel 5, Shoppes at Not
M3 A HEE L PR EREISEM Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3 applicable
da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau .
RFBREEA SR Fowgk Al
EFIER AR L6235515
Azores Express Macanese food court Shop 3560, nivel 5, Not
TR R counter Shoppes at Parisian Estrada do applicable
EPAERBESER Istmo, <
Lote 3 da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau gl
RPIRKEE AR - E—i5 - E3MER
EFIER AR L6 3560%: 5
Soupot Kitchen Chinese food court Shop 3561, nivel 5, Shoppes at Not
RIS counter Parisian Estrada do Istmo, Lote 3 applicable
FRERESEL da Parcela 1 Coloane Macau o
APBREEA  E—bR - Fowk  an
RPIERAEY D .L6235615% 5
Rua do Campo Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot EM Macau, Rua do Campo N°280, 2,367
KB R R teppan restaurant Kuan Kei, Res-do-chao A, Macau
e A EREE RPIKIE £72805%
b ERYNER NS
Rue de Evora Good Fortune Kitchen Chinese restaurant Blocks C & D, Ground Floor, 2,186
ERRA NG R &EE Flower City, No. 278-282 and
290 Rue de Evora, Cotai, Macau
RPYZR TR R 727828255 K 2905
TES I~ C DR
Macau International Foodlane (Azores Express) Macanese food court AV. Wai Long, North Mezzanine Level, Not
Airport ERB(THRRMR) counter Airside Shop E of the applicable
RP BRI EFAERBSEL MIA Passenger Terminal Building, .
Macau TEm
RPTRPIER KSR EREER
IEEFE
Foodlane (Bari-Uma) Franchise Japanese ramen  AV. Wai Long, North Mezzanine Level, Not
EREB(LSHEHBAM) food court counter Airside Shop E of the applicable
R A MIA Passenger Terminal Building, <
ERELEM Macau TEm
EFTRMER RS RENESR
EEFE
Foodlane (Pepper Lunch) Franchise Japanese hot AV. Wai Long, North Mezzanine Level, Not
ERB(HNEE) teppan food court Airside Shop E of the applicable
counter MIA Passenger Terminal Building, o
RS U Macau Ol
EREGRA RPIRPIBR#E T ENERR

L EE
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES

R-E—-AF+ZA=1+—HERS#Z

OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued BW =REBELL EH: -»
Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1 B D5 EHER 3k BEEEE
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Hong Kong:
B
Kimberley Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Lower Ground Floor, Kimberley 26, 1,030
SEF INCY L restaurant 26 Kimberley Road,
B2 A AR Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
BBERDEEEHE26%
HTMEE
Times Square Mad for Garlic Franchise Korean restaurant  Shop 1104, 11th Floor, Times Square, 3,217
BRES (To be closed down soon) B ane 2Ee Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(BN Fae) BEMEERRES11E
11045748
Cafe Terceira Macanese restaurant Shop 1302, 13th Floor, Times Square, 2,376
NG o BPIE RN Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB EER L E 51318130248
Lee Tung Avenue Bistro Seoul Franchise Korean restaurant  Shop G22-23, Ground Floor, 4,460
FIERE BHE « BB R eB\Ee Lee Tung Avenue, Wan Chai,
(To be closed down soon) Hong Kong
(GIE 2B BB AR T
G22-23%i 48
D’Aguilar Street Central ~ Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Ground Floor, 22 D’Aguilar Street, 700
RIRED INSEELEok restaurant Hong Kong
BreE A nagE BRECUEH25HT
W Square Fu-Un-Maru Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop B, Ground Floor, W Square, 1,103
[EE A, restaurant 314-324 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
(Closed on February 2020) B g AR EE Hong Kong
(R=ZZ_ZF_ABH) BB HEFFB314-3245%
W Squarelts B
Metro City Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop Nos.1070-71, Level 1, 787
HE INCE= o restaurant Metro City, Phase Il,
(To be closed down soon) S g AR E Tseung Kwan O, New Territories,
GIESED Hong Kong
BERMARE RTINS
1#81070-7148
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-B—NF+ZA=+—HERBZ
BE XERGEC TEH: -4

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1 B BIE EHER LB BEREER
(sa.ft)
(FHR)
Tuen Mun Town Plaza  Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop No. 3233, Third Floor, 2,544
mAmES LEBEENE restaurant Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Phase |,
e HANARE Tuen Mun, Hong Kong
BB PIEPI T RS 15
31232334
Festival Walk Mad For Garlic Franchise Korean restaurant  Unit L1-34, Festival Walk, 3,630
X% BT E A EE 80 Tat Chee Avenue,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BB NENEIREZIR0R
X —HL11E3448
Olympian City Mad For Garlic Franchise Korean restaurant  Shop No.105A, First Floor, 2,791
:<bisy Frrg e gE Olympian City 2, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BB ERGHH
118105A%
Yoho Mall Azores Macanese Cuisine Macanese restaurant Shop 2056, Level 2, Yoho Mall, 3,110
i DEBRPIX RAER Yuen Long, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BB R URATY Bh2122056%
Lockhart Road Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  No. 487 and 489, Lockhart Road, 1,000
SFRE LEBESNE restaurant Hong Kong
(To be closed down soon) Rireg A NEZE BB 718487 % A489%
(BN RAR)
Mody Road Fu-Un-Maru Franchise Japanese ramen  Ground Floor, Mody House, 774
fEHE BEA restaurant No. 30 Mody Road, Kowloon,
e A NEEE Hong Kong
BN 305 Mody Houselts T
New Town Plaza Azores Macanese Cuisine Macanese restaurant Shop No. 107 on Level 1, 1,783
T ES TERRRPIX RAAEE New Town Plaza, Sha Tin,
Hong Kong
ERD BN TES 110755
K11 Musea Food Playground Food court counters Level Basement 2, K11 Musea, 4,650
K118 inte ERBESEN 18 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Hong Kong
BBRDHEETERE185KI
BB B8
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES

R-E—-AF+ZA=1+—HERS#Z

OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued B SEESEL TEE -
Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1 B PIE BHER 31k BEEEE
(sa.ft.)
(F5R)
Hong Kong International  Bari-Uma/SinsaEat Korean Franchise Japanese ramen/  Unit No. 7E162, Airside, Terminal 1, 1,361
Airport Kitchen Korean food court counter ~ Hong Kong International Airport,
BB INCEEL e (Vb)) e A, Hong Kong
FAEXREGEL ERBBERKS —RTENE
R 7E1625540
West Kowloon Station  Canton Roast Chinese food court counter  Shop No. WEK B2-9, 786
FojLBENh BiE R EREISE B2 Level Arrival Concourse,
Hong Kong West Kowloon Station,
3 Austin Road West, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BBNERDBA T BEFEIRES
7 /LBE VB2 A SR EWEK B2-95%
Mainland China:
MEIKHE :
Huafa Mall Musashi Japanese Restaurant  Japanese restaurant Shop A3023a, Huafa Mall, 12,193
ZEPH R A ARE AAEE Zhuhai, Mainland China
(To be closed down before B AR ST
the end of the first quarter FEHHEA3023a5
of 2020)
(H—rﬁA:f: T
—ZHERATFM)
Seasons Bright Restaurant Chinese restaurant Shops C4001 and C5001, 47,105
MEESER R B Huafa Mall, Zhuhai, Mainland China
B ARETR T
EZREC4001 RC500148
Azores Portuguese Restaurant ~ Portuguese restaurant Shops B2018 and B2021, 9,535
DHREREEE BALE Huafa Mall, Zhuhai, Mainland China
(To be closed down before FBIARBETET
the end of the first quarter EHFEIB2018 & B202143
of 2020)
(H#ﬁA— T-TF
—ZERAIBH)
Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot Shops A1032 and A1060, 3,790
A= teppan restaurant Huafa Mall, Zhuhai, Mainland China
e AR EE B ARELR T
EEFHA1032RA10608
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-B—NF+ZA=+—HERBZ
BEXERGEC TEH -#

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
12 DIE BHER it BEEEE
(sa.ft.)
(FAHR)
Uniwalk Azores Portuguese Restaurant  Portuguese restaurant Shop 13/13A, B2 Floor, 3,524
S5 DEHRENEE BAEE Shopping mall, Uniwalk,
Shenzhen, Mainland China
FREIRRSRIIE A ED O
B2/E13/13A5: 4
Musashi Japanese Restaurant  Japanese restaurant Shops 41842, L4 Floor, 7,717
B B R AAZE Shopping mall, Uniwalk,
Shenzhen, Mainland China
FREIRESRINZ A E DO
LAE 41842548
Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot Shop 50, B2 Floor, Shopping mall, 1,861
HHERE teppan restaurant Uniwalk, Shenzhen,
g e B XERER Mainland China
REABE RIS AL
B2[E50%% 4
Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop 25, B2 Floor, Shopping mall, 2,044
LEBESNE restaurant Uniwalk, Shenzhen,
S E AR AR E Mainland China
REIABERYIZ AP O
B2iE255: 4
Sheraton Zhuhai Hotel ~ Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant 1663 Yin Wan Road Wanzai, 5,554
BEERS BB SIF AR E AXEE Xiang Zhou District, Zhuhai,
Mainland China

hEARKEEHE
17885516635
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
OPENED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-Z—-NEFE+ZA=+—HER®Z
BEXERBECL TEH: -w

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
2 PIE EHER 3 BEEEE
(sa.ft.)
(FHR)
Po Park Pepper Lunch Franchise Japanese hot TB208, Po Park, Linhe Zhong Lu, 2,722
RTHER HRE = teppan restaurant Guangzhou, Mainland China
Bt B EREER FR B e B M AR AT AR BR B 7 B R TB208
Cocopark Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop No. B1S-110, 1,243
[LE B hAE restaurant Cocopark Shopping Mall,
BHge A NEEE Shenzhen, Mainland China
B KRR I Cocopark &I /E 5
B1S-110%:48
Taiwan:
= F
Taipei 101 Canton 12 Chinese restaurant Shop L4. 09a Taipei 101, 3,021
&a3k101 +-& B Taipei, Taiwan
(Closed down by the end of SEAI101BYH L4209
the first quarter of 2020)
(BRZZEZZHF
F—FHEREER)
Breeze Nan Shan Bari-Uma Franchise Japanese ramen  Shop 11, 5th Floor, 1,763
R INSE L 7] restaurant Breeze Nan Shan, Taipei, Taiwan
(To be closed down soon) Rireg A NEEE BEILHEELSEIE
(BN RaR)
Mad for Garlic Franchise Korean restaurant  Shop 3, 7th Floor, Breeze Nan Shan, 4,930
Frrg e gE Taipei, Taiwan
A AL AT IESH
Self-owned and franchise restaurants 233,256
BRER RS EEE
Studio City Shiki Hot Pot Restaurant Chinese hot pot restaurant ~ Shop 1069, Level 1, 6,158
RTIE EJSENER P A AEE The Boulevard at Studio City,
(Joint venture’s restaurant) Cotai, Macau
(RELXEE) R ITRTE
FBYIRE—E1069%
239,414
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES

CLOSED DURING YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019:

8E_FT—-NE+-A=+—HLEE
RBRZER SREFBHEL 15

Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1t 2 DIE BHERl 3k BREEE
(sa.ft.)
(FHR)
Macau:
R
Broadway of Galaxy Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Shop E-G034, Ground Floor, 664
Macau AN M e S L IBEfE Broadway of Galaxy Macau,
BP9 B EE Cotai, Macau
RFIRAORFIRA B EEM T
E-G03448
Macau University Noodle and Congee shop Chinese restaurant Ground Floor, Block E, Not
of Science and of 5 R EEE Extension Recreational Complex, applicable
Technology Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, Macau TiEA
PR A EPIEk T B RE B IRERE
EEROHT
University of Macau Food Paradise Student/staff canteen Ground Floor of Area A and 1st 17,571
RPIRE RiBX 24/ BERE Floor of Area B, Central Teaching
Building, University of Macau,
Avenida da Universidade,
Taipa, Macau
EFB T RERER
EFIRBhRH 2SR
AR T RBE1E
One Qasis Residential Sandwich bar Sandwich bar Club Qasis, One Oasis Residential Not
Complex =3ORIE =30/ Complex, Estrada de Seac Pai Van, applicable
SI8 e HEATIER Coloane, Macau TER
BPIRIRAHESR
®& e FEFEEHEE Club Oasis
Largo da Companha Pacific Coffee Franchise coffee shop Centro Commercial E 1,779

de Jesus N2, Macau

REERELTES

Ak

RS M E

Taristico “S Paulo”, Largo da

Companha de Jesus N2, Macau
RF B E 22 E525

WL 5 B MR g R 0
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List of Restaurants/Food Court Counters/Stores & = &ESEN JEH—Bx

RESTAURANTS/FOOD COURT COUNTERS/STORES
CLOSED DURING YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019:

BE_S—hAE+_A=+—HLEE
RBRZER XRRBHEL TEH : -

- Continued &
Total floor
Location Branch Type of cuisine Address area
1 2E BHER 3tk BEEEER
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Hong Kong:
BB
West Kowloon Station Foodium Food court with multiple Shop No. WEK B2-10, Not
P LB ZERRY cuisines B2 Level Arrival Concourse, applicable
BtnEg s ERES Hong Kong West Kowloon Station, TER
3 Austin Road West, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NERNDBA L+ @B
BEFNEEL
B2 AR EWEK B2-105% 4
Mainland China:
KRR
Guangzhou Pearl River  Edo Japanese Restaurant Japanese restaurant Third Floor, International Finance Place, 20,708

New Town

BN H

SLE BAREE

AAEE

No. 8 Huaxia Road, Pearl River New

Town, Guangzhou, Mainland China
o B0 A I B N RT3 3 B R85

ARERERES =8
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List of Food Souvenir Shops/Kiosks

BEmFEETHEST—BEX

FOOD SOUVENIR SHOPS/KIOSKS OPENED AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2019:

B=E—AF+-A=+—HEMRZ
REFHE BEF

Location Branch Type of shop Address Total floor area
B s BRI e 31k fRIEEE S
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
Macau:
- Js
Rua do Cunha Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store No. 17 Rua do Cunha, 1,200
B REHREH D& Taipa, Macau
B B A1 75
Rua de Cinco de Outubro Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store No. 175 R/C Rua de Cinco 420
TR¥EMH ERHHIER D IE de Outubro, Macau
B+ A EE1755
Patio da Ameaca Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Em Macau, Patio da Ameaca, 796
EX[E B BR E 4 DG No. 1-A, Res-do-Chao
A com Sobreloja, Macau
RPIEREN-ASAEH T
Broadway of Galaxy Macau Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Shop E-G034A, Ground Floor, 286
RFT A EE REHRER AE Broadway of Galaxy Macau,
Cotai, Macau
RPN HRFIERR B ZEM T
E-GO34A%H
Sands Cotai Central Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Shop 1029A, Level 1, 477
S YDA L R BER R4 D& Sands Cotai Central, Macau
RPIE DA 01 B 1020A
Macau Ferry Terminal Yeng Kee Bakery Kiosk  Kiosk No. 3009, 3rd Floor, Macau Ferry Not applicable
pARES L] REHKHET HEF Terminal, Macau TEH
SRPIZIE IS8 = 30095
Travessa des Algibebes Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store No. 28 Travessa des Algibebes, Macau 1,983
=ES (REM) ERHKIER DIE RFERS (REH) 28%
Studio City, Cotai Yeng Kee Bakery Kiosk  Kiosk Shop 2059, Level 2, The Boulevard at 409
Bk FT R E REHREET HEF Studio City, Cotai, Macau

SRR TR R BB KB 2820594
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List of Food Souvenir Shops/Kiosks & RFEE EE=—8%

FOOD SOUVENIR SHOPS/KIOSKS OPENED AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2019: - Continued

R-E—hF+-_A=+—HEMRRZ
BERFEE HET: -#

Location Branch Type of shop Address Total floor area
B 2IE & & R i HREER
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
The Venetian Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Shop 240643, Level 3, St. Mark's 695
BEET A BB B4 SIE Square, The Venetian Macau
EPIBUE T AE R
555 7] B35 38 2406a%
Macau International Airport Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Avenida Wai Long, Airside Space 1,398
S5 PY B R e 15 B [E 4 DIE No. 10-01-0048, MIA Passenger
Terminal Building, Macau
RFDRPIEIR 5 R B K IE
£810-01-00485% R Z R
7,664
FOOD SOUVENIR SHOPS/KIOSKS CLOSED DURING RBE_Z—NE+-_B=+—HI%E
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019: ERECERFEE Hes:
Location Branch Type of shop Address Total floor area
Bl DIE JE &R 31t HEEEE
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
Macau:
Py
The Macau Roosevelt Yeng Kee Bakery Shop Store Shop ABP, First Floor, 307
SRPA RIS BB E 4 DE The Macau Roosevelt, Macau
RPIRHTRIEE 112 ACPH
Largo da Companha de Jesus  Yeng Kee Bakery Kiosk  Kiosk Portion of basement Level 1&3 of 70
N2, Macau RN ES e Centro Commercial E Turistico
B ER R & 42 5 B 5258 “S. Paulo”, Largo da Companha
de Jesus N2, Macau
RPN g 42 2 B 525 M T B
IR O T 1 ERIGE
Macau Taipa Ferry Terminal Yeng Kee Bakery Kiosk  Store Shop 2311, First Floor, Macau 1,056
SRPIEK T RIENS SR REHKHET DI Taipa Ferry Terminal, Macau
BPTRPI K RE TS5 — 1223114
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Definitions

In this annual report, the following expressions have the following

meanings unless the context requires otherwise:

2019 AGM
—E-NFRRAFAE

2020 AGM
—EoTFRREFAR

Board
=£5g

Bye-laws
NSIEE

CG Code
hEEETH
CcGuU
WeEFER
Company
ZAN/NE]
Director(s)
=F
EBITDA
EBITDA

Financial Statements

AR

Group
A%E

HKAS(s)

BB ER|
HKFRS(s)

BB RS %R
HKICPA
BEBEFRIAE
HK$

BT

Hong Kong
HE

RAEHT  BXESBHAEIN

BATRE -

The Company’s annual general meeting held on 21 May 2019
AARIRZE—NFREA-+—BHETZREBRFAE

The Company’s annual general meeting to be held on 25 May 2020
RAARER - E-_EFAA-+HBRETZREBFAS

The board of Directors

B2

AT RE

\

The Company’s bye-laws as amended, supplemented or modified from time to

time

ARRRTHRHER « MERERZ A TR

The Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ETARAM SR AR EE R T RI

A cash-generating unit
BEeELBM

Future Bright Holdings Limited

EREEBRAA]

Director(s) of the Company

RRRER

Profit before interests, tax expense, depreciation and amortization

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEE 2 AEERERGE

The Company together with its subsidiaries

RRRREWMBAT

B R

Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

B GRTEA

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)

BB HRE £

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

BAGMAE

Hong Kong Dollars
BT

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China

B AFER B R RITT R
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Definitions 2%

Independent Third Parties

BULE=T

Key Investment Property

FEREME
Listing Rules
EmERAl

Mainland China
FR B K e

Model Code
=<7

MOP
RFITT

Mr. Chan

BRoe4

Net Ordinary Operating Profit/(Loss)

TREEEN(BR)FE

SFO
& 75 R B 1R B)

Share(s)

a0
Shareholder(s)
S

Stock Exchange
522 P

Sq.ft.

FHR

Year

AEE

Parties that are not connected with the Company, any directors, chief executives,
controlling shareholders or substantial shareholders of the Company or its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates

FREARNE ~ RAGHMEMES « THAER - ERERFRESRRIEMMB R FK
HEEQZEABBATHERE2 A+

The Group’s investment property which is a 6-storey commercial building located
at the Centro Commercial E Turistico “S. Paulo”, Largo da Companha de Jesus
N°2, Em Macau
REEUNRFIESFE L2 EZ2R RN ESEDIREP LESNBZEEREZ
KREME

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
B2 PaE 5 AR Al

People’s Republic of China
HREE A RHAE

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR BIERTFrE E T EITAERETIE SR HHIRLESFR

Macau Patacas
SBPTT

Mr. Chan Chak Mo, the managing director and controlling shareholder of the
Company
BOEE A - ARREFRKIE RITRAR

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company including the net loss of some
HK$140.6 million from the disposal of the Henggin Land in December 2019 but
excluding any net fair value gain/loss of the investment properties

RAREB AENET,(BER)  BERZZ-—NF+_ALEES TR
JFFE#)140,600,0008 7T - BETBEREME 2 A AR BEREEEFHE

Renminbi

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEBEDIFEST1EE M RAEIED

Ordinary share(s) of the Company

RARE AR

Shareholder(s) of the Company

RARKRR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERMARIMBERAR]

Square feet

FHR

Year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z—hAE+-A=1+—HILEE
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